
Managers: 
Klayton Eckles, President  Celia Wirth, Vice-President  Gerald Johnson, Treasurer  Chuck LeRoux, Secretary Debra Sahulka, Manager 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF MANAGERS 
Wednesday, December 13, 2023 at 6:30 PM 

 
NOTE MEETING LOCATION  

Regular Board Meeting will be held at  
Family Means 

1875 Northwestern Ave, Stillwater, MN 55082 
 

1) Call Regular Meeting to order  
 

2) Approve Regular Meeting Agenda and Discussion Agenda -Board Action  
 

3) Public Comments 
 

4) Consent Agenda – Board Action (all items listed under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the 
Board of Managers and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion on these items 
unless a Manager removes an item from the consent agenda for discussion or there is a request to remove the 
item from the consent agenda, in which event the board will consider whether to remove the item from the consent 
agenda and consider it separately.) 
a) Approve board meeting minutes of the November 8, 2023 regular meeting 
b) Accept permit fee statement 
c) Approve the Lower St. Croix Partnership's 2024 Annual Work Plan  
d) Appoint Hallie Chasensky to the citizen advisory committee 
e) Approve Oak Glen Golf Course reuse project operation and maintenance scope for 2024 

 
5) Treasurer’s Report  

a) Review Authorized Funds Spreadsheet 
b) Current Items Payable-Board Action (Roll Call Vote) 

 

6) Permits 
a) BCWD Permit #23-17 Sundance Townhomes – Board Action 

 
7) Projects 

a) Brown’s Creek Restoration Project 
(1) Public Hearing – Environmental Assessment Worksheet 
(2) Signage Scope – Board Action 
(3) Agreements: Van Tassel, City of Stillwater, MN Department of Natural Resources 

b) Resolution 23-06 Adopting the Washington County All Hazard Mitigation Plan- Board Action 
 

8) Planning 
a) 2027-2036 Watershed Management Plan – 60-day initial notice and initial meeting – Board Action 
b) Enhanced Stakeholder Engagement –  

(1) Interview Assignments – Board Action 
(2) Handout Scope – Board Action 

 
9) Budget 

a) Public Meeting regarding 2024 Budget and Levy 
b) Resolution 23-07 Final 2024 Budget and Levy– Board Action (Roll Call Vote) 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10) Training 
a) Home Owner Associations – Michael Welch 

 
11) Discussion Agenda - No Action Required 

a) Updates  
(1) Administrator –  

(a) Valley Branch Watershed District Open House Management Plan Initial Meeting 
(b) MPCA Draft Impaired Waters List – no new listings for BCWD 
(c) Name Tag Order 
(d) BCWD Apparel Order 

(2) Legal   
(3) Engineer  
(4) Managers 

b) January 10, 2024 Annual & Regular Meeting BCWD Board Agenda 
 

12) Adjournment 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 2



 

1 
DRAFT Minutes of the regular meeting of the Brown’s Creek Watershed District Board of 2 
Managers, Wednesday November 8, 2023 3 
 4 
ROLL CALL 5 
Managers Present: Others Present: 
Klayton Eckles, President Karen Kill, BCWD administrator 
Celia Wirth, Vice President Camilla Correll, EOR, BCWD engineer 
Gerald Johnson, Treasurer Michael Welch, Smith Partners, BCWD counsel 

(attended remotely) 
Debra Sahulka Cameron Blake, BCWD staff 
 John Sarafolean, EOR, BCWD engineer 
Manager absent:  
Charles LeRoux, Secretary  

 6 
1) Call Regular Meeting to Order @ 6:30 p.m. 7 

Manager Klayton Eckles called the regular meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.  8 
 9 

2) Oath of Office – Debra Sahulka 10 
 Debra Sahulka took the oath of office, and become a BCWD manager. 11 
 12 
3) Approve Agenda  13 

Manager Johnson moved, seconded by Manager Wirth, to approve the agenda as 14 
presented. Motion carried, vote 4/0.  15 

 16 
4) Public Comments 17 

None. 18 
 19 

5) Consent Agenda 20 
 Manager Celia Wirth requested to removal of the approval of modification of BCWD 21 

Permit 23-10 Curio Dance studio from the consent agenda for discussion. 22 
Manager Johnson moved, seconded by Manager Wirth, to approve the consent 23 
agenda as amended: 24 

a) Approve Board Meeting Minutes of October 11, 2023 Regular Meeting 25 
b) Accept Permit Fee Statement 26 
d) Determine completeness of Brown’s Creek Restoration Environmental 27 
Assessment Worksheet and approve for distribution 28 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 3



Draft November 8, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5 

e) Approve Minnesota Watersheds registration not to exceed $325 for Rosie 1 
Russell to facilitate session on behalf of BCWD as part of our enhanced 2 
stakeholder engagement in our watershed. 3 
 Motion carried, vote 4/0. 4 
 5 
With regard to modification of permit 23-10 Curio Dance Studio, Manager Wirth 6 
asked why the state Plumbing Board approved the project even though the board 7 
seemed to indicate the design did not meet requirements. Administrator Kill 8 
explained the district doesn’t have any comment or review on the plumbing board’s 9 
decision. The Plumbing Board decision was included by the applicant as proof the 10 
board approved its modified design. Administrator Kill also clarified that 11 
Rainguardian bunkers are a type of pretreatment structure that ensure stormwater 12 
features function as intended.  13 
Manager Wirth moved, seconded by Manager Johnson, to approve modification 14 
of BCWD Permit 23-10 Curio Dance studio. Motion carried, vote 4/0. 15 
 16 
Manager Eckles asked whether the language in the environmental assessment 17 
worksheet for the Brown’s Creek Restoration project about a wetland being “changed 18 
but not eliminated” should be expanded to reflect the change being beneficial. Mike 19 
Majeski explained there was more detailed information elsewhere in the EAW which 20 
specifies supporting wetland habitat as one of the project benefits. 21 

 22 
6) Treasurer’s Report 23 

a) Review Authorized Funds Spreadsheet 24 
Ms. Kill explained the highlighted items reflecting board decisions made at the last 25 
meeting: the district’s hydrologic and hydraulic model maintenance, of which about 26 
$9,000 is funded from 923-0000 Management Plan Implementation, and about 27 
$15,000 from the district’s contingency reserve to cover work done under the 2023 28 
budget. The second change shows $4,000 added to the legal counsel budget item for 29 
the chloride liability legislative work. 30 
Manager Johnson moved, seconded by Manager Wirth, to accept the authorized 31 
funds spreadsheet as amended. Motion carried, vote 4/0. 32 
 33 

b) Current Items Payable  34 
Manager Eckles explained to Manager Sahulka that the current items are a monthly 35 
item that reflects past services, and the total budget balances can be seen in the 36 
monthly treasurer’s report. 37 
Manager Johnson moved, seconded by Manager Wirth, to approve payment of 38 
bills as presented in the amount of $118,366.57. 39 
  Yea Nay Abstain Absent 40 
Manager Eckles X 41 
Manager LeRoux X 42 
Manager Wirth X 43 
Manager Sahulka X 44 
Manager LeRoux        X 45 
Motion carried 4/0. 46 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 4



Draft November 8, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5 

 1 
Ms. Kill explained that the Royal Credit Union certificates of deposit will mature next 2 
week and the board’s intent is to withdraw those funds and add them to the district’s 3 
4M fund. Ms. Kill needs two managers who are authorized signers to withdraw the 4 
funds and transfer into the 4M fund. Managers Eckles and Johnson will assist her 5 
with this. 6 
 7 

7) Planning  8 
 a) Mendel Wetland Community Engagement Scope 9 

 Ms. Kill introduced the item, noting that BCWD has recently explored the feasibility 10 
of restoring the Mendel Road wetland to achieve numerous district goals. The 11 
wetland is a large bog and fresh meadow wetland complex that has been altered by an 12 
artificial drainage system. It has a mix of good quality and highly degraded plant 13 
communities. Hydrologic restoration through removal or reduction of the artificial 14 
drainage coupled with invasive species management would enhance the wetland and 15 
would also likely reduce nutrient and thermal loading to Brown’s Creek. During the 16 
growing seasons of 2021 and 2022 the district monitored local groundwater to assess 17 
impacts stemming from the project on grazing in adjacent fields. The findings of the 18 
monitoring indicated that hydrologic restoration would not degrade grazing of the 15 19 
acres currently grazed.  20 

 Ms. Kill explained that she requested a scope and fee for the board to consider that 21 
would advance the project further by a meeting with landowners and stakeholders, 22 
likely once virtually and once in-person. Six private landowners would need to agree 23 
with the district’s project to move forward, and one of them is currently using his land 24 
for grazing. Ms. Kill explained the landowner has expressed the most concern in the 25 
past and she would make sure he are available for the meeting. The timing of this 26 
effort would likely be after the holidays in 2024. 27 

 28 
Manager Wirth moved, seconded by Manager LeRoux, to approve an engineering 29 
budget not to exceed $6,800 for EOR to assist district staff in engaging landowners 30 
and stakeholders from account 961-0000. Motion carried 4/0. 31 
 32 
b) Enhanced Stakeholder Engagement 33 

Camilla Correll reminded the managers that they had been assigned the task of 34 
identifying stakeholders that may be missing from the list as well as stakeholders they 35 
have a relationship with. Additionally, Karen Kill asked the managers to identify 36 
organizations that they think would be especially important to engage with. If the 37 
managers don’t have a contact for them, they can indicate this and district staff will 38 
follow up on identifying a contact. Manager Eckles wondered if some groups may be 39 
more important than others to engage with such as engineer’s and land surveyor 40 
companies. Ms. Correll explained that those types of stakeholders already engage 41 
with the watershed district and the goal is to explore and expand outreach to them as 42 
well as others the district doesn’t normally engage with. The managers suggested 43 
railroad companies, the Lily Lake Association, and St. Croix water recreation 44 
companies. The managers are asked to submit their lists by November 15 and the 45 
process update will occur at the December board meeting.  46 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 5



Draft November 8, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5 

 1 
8) Program  2 
 a) Citizen Advisory Committee 2023 events summary 3 

 Cameron Blake presented pictures from the 2023 Open Yard Series and Community 4 
event put on by the BCWD Citizen Advisory Committee. Ms. Kill explained the CAC 5 
also performs biological surveying efforts at the Brown’s Creek Conservation Area.  6 

 7 
Manager Eckles asked if signage could be created for the public for ongoing district 8 
capital improvement projects. The signs could have a short description of the project 9 
and a QR code to the district’s website for current status updates. Ms. Kill agreed and 10 
explained this would be part of the planning for the upcoming Brown’s Creek 11 
Restoration project as a way to help the public understand what changes they will be 12 
seeing. The EAW will also be posted on the webpage.  13 

 14 
9) Training 15 
 a) Climate Resiliency Planning Tools 16 

Ms. Correll shared climate resiliency tools she learned about at the Midwest Climate 17 
Resilience Conference in October. CliMat TOOL from the University of Minnesota 18 
provides climate change projections for different emissions scenarios, providing great 19 
information that can be used in conversations with the county, Citizen Advisory 20 
Committee and Technical Advisory Panel. The university also has a hazard mitigation 21 
planning tool which has been developed for one third of the counties in the state so far. It 22 
provides information on what a hazard mitigation plan is as well as provides information 23 
regarding risk and vulnerability for counties that have been completed. This is a good 24 
resource for counties that don’t have the staff and capacity to do this kind of planning 25 
work on their own. It can be useful to counties, communities, and residents.  26 
Ms. Correll noted that the 5th National Climate Assessment is at the White House waiting 27 
to be released. This assessment will be a valuable tool for the watershed management 28 
plan update. 29 
 30 

   31 
10) Discussion Agenda 32 

 a) Updates 33 
  (1) Administrator 34 

Ms. Kill said the BCWD office will be closed Friday in recognition of 35 
Veteran’s Day. She attended a meeting of the plumbing board’s stormwater 36 
facility committee on the recent plumbing code decision. The City of Hutchinson 37 
brought forward a request for interpretation of this decision and explained the 38 
basics of stormwater features and their function. She felt the board did not seem 39 
to have knowledge of these systems, did not know other stakeholders have 40 
already been reviewing them, but also did not seem to indicate any movement on 41 
the decision that was made. The main concern of the plumbing board is surcharge, 42 
of which stormwater systems are not applicable. The board discussed the 43 
engineering, environmental, and financial implications of this decision if it is not 44 
reinterpreted. Manager Eckles explained the decision would result in inferior 45 
designs and stressed the importance of this issue being resolved.  46 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 6



Draft November 8, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5 

Ms. Kill updated the board that the Minnesota Department of Health (has 1 
engaged EOR to explore stormwater capture and reuse, and has invited watershed 2 
organizations and municipalities with reuse projects to provide input. The concern 3 
for the district is if the MDH decides that stormwater needs to be held to drinking 4 
water standards. This would be cost prohibitive for using reuse systems as a tool 5 
to address volume standards in areas in which infiltration is not feasible. This 6 
action is following criticism of the MDH releasing a white paper on this topic 7 
with engaging stakeholders of interest to this topic.  8 

Ms. Kill said Minnesota Watersheds’ annual meeting in Alexandria 9 
November 28 to December 1. Minnesota Watersheds also has a legislative 10 
meeting in February and host a summer tour, along with additional education 11 
opportunities for watershed staff and managers. The organization also have a 12 
lobbyist on behalf of watersheds in Minnesota who will be changing after this 13 
year. The requirement to be on their board is to also be a board manager of a 14 
watershed district. The organization’s business meeting is December 1 and 15 
BCWD needs to select two voting members on behalf of the BCWD. Manager 16 
Wirth plans to attend and Manager Johnson may be.  17 

 18 
Manager Sahulka moved, seconded by Manager Eckles, to designate 19 
Manager Wirth and Manager Johnson as BCWD voting members for the 20 
Minnesota Watersheds annual meeting. Motion carried 4/0. 21 

 22 
(2) Legal 23 

Mr. Welch said the Metropolitan Council is seeking input on the policy 24 
underlying its regional planning, which is the framework for its review of 25 
cities’ comprehensive plans. Ms. Kill will forward the information to 26 
managers to provide input. 27 
 28 

  (3) Engineers 29 
John Sarafolean said White Oak Savannah lot 106 has addressed cited 30 
erosion and sediment problems and is stabilize. 31 

 32 
11) Adjournment 33 
Manager Johnson moved, seconded by Manager Wirth, to adjourn the regular meeting at 34 
8:33 p.m. Motion carried 4/0. 35 

 36 
Respectfully submitted by 37 
Cameron Blake, BCWD Staff and Charles LeRoux, Recording Secretary  38 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 7



BROWN'S CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT

12/6/2023

APPLICANT/PERMIT NO. PERMIT DATE 2 3 4 5 6 7

Dec
omp
acti
on

GOV
SF 

RES
RES 
DEV

COM EXEMPT AMT DUE

Bergmann Development/Sanctuary 10/14/2005 X X X X X -$                               

Permit No. 05-12

Stillwater Medical Center Parking X X X X $3,039.10

Permit 13-26

Brown's Creek Cove X X X X X $8,238.52

Permit 15-07

Heifort Hills X X X X X X $1,158.59

Permit 16-03

Farms of Grant/White Oaks Savannah X X X X X $18,272.02

Permit 17-01

The Lakes of Stillwater X X X X X $3,368.08

Permit 17-04

West Ridge X X X X X X $701.51

Permit 17-17

Heifort Hills Estates X X X X X X $41,206.46

Permit 18-02

Boutwell Farms X X X X X X ($546.84)

Permit 18-04A

Hazel Place/Hertiage Ridge X X X X X X ($2,445.17)

Permit 18-05 (Was 17-09)

Nottingham Village X X X X X $650.03

Permit 18-06

Ridgecrest X X X X X $16.68

Permit 18-11

St Croix Valley Recreation Center Expansion X X X X $6,970.28

Permit 18-14

Central Commons 11/11/2025 X X X X X X ($5,000.00)

Permit 19-05

Neal Ave Road Reconstruction 6/1/2020 X X X $19,088.31

Permit 20-05

CSAH 15-36 Interchange 3/24/2021 X X X X $19,233.85

RULES TYPE FEES OWED

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 8



APPLICANT/PERMIT NO. PERMIT DATE 2 3 4 5 6 7

Dec
omp
acti
on

GOV
SF 

RES
RES 
DEV

COM EXEMPT AMT DUE

RULES TYPE FEES OWED

Permit 20-08 3 year approval

White Pine Ridge 6/7/2021 X X X ($631.32)

Permit 20-12 surety redution request 1/12/23

Westridge Block 1 Lot 1 8/6/2021 X x x $2,851.61

Permit 21-09 - NOPV, no permit received
stable/closable when 

maintenance is determined

Maryland Gateway Addition 9/29/2021 x x x x ($854.61)

Permit 21-13

Schwartz Residence 5/6/2021 erosion control only x x x ($319.38)

Permit 21-15

Millbrook Park- City of Stillwater 8/25/2021 x x x x $6,970.18

Permit 21-21

Fahey 11/4/2021 x x ($743.78)

Permit 21-34

Norell Ave N Improvements
(Fall 2022 BMP still needs to be 

finalized fall 2023) x x x x $10,458.63

Permit 21-45

Gonyea (8 lots)- White Pine Ridge x x ($746.26)

Permit 22-02

Wetridge (12 lots) - Sharkey/GreenHalo 3/25/2022 x x ($513.73)

Permit 22-03 (Transferred  21-30 and 21-31)

13290 Boutwell Road N - Sharkey/GreenHalo 3/25/2022 x x ($590.51)

Permit 22-05

7125 Lone Oak Trail (WOS L106)-weichman 9/25/2022 x x $7,257.42

Permit 22-11 

13199 Dellwood Rd ??? x x $217.83

Permit 22-15

Read Residence 11/7/2022 x x x $1,129.52

Permit 22-17

Stillwater Oaks conditional approval x x x $4,293.00

Permit 22-18

Miller Flood Protection 10/20/2022 x x $2,836.25

Permit 22-19

Popeyes OPH 11/9/2022 x x ($266.26)

Permit 22-20

Fanberg Residence - Manning Estates L4B3 10/21/2022 x x ($729.36)

Permi 22-22

7138 Lone Oak Trl N (WOS L109) 12/6/2022 x x ($125.40)

Permit 22-24

7164 Lone Oak Trl (WOS L113) 12/6/2022 x x ($175.03)

Permit 22-25

Wash Co. CSAH 5 Phase II 1/19/2023 x $820.28

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 9



APPLICANT/PERMIT NO. PERMIT DATE 2 3 4 5 6 7

Dec
omp
acti
on

GOV
SF 

RES
RES 
DEV

COM EXEMPT AMT DUE

RULES TYPE FEES OWED

Permit 22-30 x

Wash Co. CSAH 57 culverts 2/2/2023 x x $0.00

Permit 22-31

Cty Rd 61 Re-alignment 4/12/2023 x x  x $8,073.47

Permit 23-01 not yet closable

WOS L114 - Cates (7211 Lone Oak Trail Tweden) 9/26/2023 submittal x x x x $3,500.12

Permit 23-02

Boutwell Farm Lot 1 (2545 Boutwell Farm Rd) 5/3/2023 x $3,472.66

Permit 23-03 NOPV Board Order Items

Westridge B1L4 (986 Creekside) 5/3/2023 x ($693.54)

Permit 23-04

Rocket Carwash conditional approval 4/12/2023 x x $4,824.00

Permit 23-05

7239 Lone Oak Trail (WOS L118) 5/3/2023 x $416.38

Permit 23-07

72nd St Road and Trail Improvements 5/26/2023 $3,233.95

Permit 23-08

Kirn Residence (McLafferty 8000 Neal Ave)
ready to permit upon ownership 

verification 6/7/23 x x ($693.29)

Permit 23-09

Curio Dance Studio 10/2/2023 x x x $5,267.50

Permit 23-10

7273 Lone Oak Trail- WOS Lot 122 - Freiroy Residence x x $371.16

Permit 23-11
Conditions not met but started 

construction 7/27/2023

CSAH 9 -Keystone Ave - Culvert Replacement 6/7/2023 x x $1,504.58

Permit 23-12

The Lakes - Phase III/Sandhill Shores 6/8/2023 x x ($472.55)

Permit 23-13

Wiskow Berm 6/28/2023 x x ($889.00)

Permit 23-14

7085 Lone Oak Trail- WOS L102- Mensah Res/Cates App recieved 7/10 x x $973.16

Permit 23-15
John reviewing/conditions 

7/27/2023

13294 Boutwell Rd. N
need erosion control revisions 

10/2023 x ($853.75)

Permit 23-16

Sundance Townhomes submittal 11/15/2023 $1,091.50

Permit 23-17 completeness due 

7285 Lone Oak Trl- WOS L124 erosion control revisions needed ($78.20)

Permit 23-18

90 326 34 15 27 160 71 153 13 119

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 10



APPLICANT/PERMIT NO. PERMIT DATE 2 3 4 5 6 7

Dec
omp
acti
on

GOV
SF 

RES
RES 
DEV

COM EXEMPT AMT DUE

RULES TYPE FEES OWED

TOTAL NON-EXEMPT DUE BCWD: $112,316.85

Total due back to applicants if closed: ($213,041.78)

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 11



Lower St. Croix Watershed Partners 
2024 Annual Work Plan 

 
The Lower St. Croix River Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan adopted in October 2020 
includes implementation activities for the 10-year life of the plan in Table 5-1. The 2024 work plan 
presented here is derived directly from Table 5-1 including estimated outputs (i.e., results) and 
estimated expenses. Many activities are eligible for Watershed Based Implementation Funds (WBIF) 
through the use of applicable policies (see attachments). Other activities will use local funds or other 
grants as allocated and approved by local partners.  
 
The table is broken into four major implementation areas. A summary of each is shown below.  
 
Additional attachments are included for a complete set of existing calendars, policies, and the joint 
powers agreement:  
Attachment A: 2024 work plan from Table 5-1 of LSC Comprehensive Plan  
Attachment B: 2024 LSC Project Process Calendar 
Attachment C: WBIF Proposed Project Evaluation and Approval Process for the Lower St. Croix 
Watershed Partnership 
Attachment D: Non-Structural Agricultural BMP Policy 
Attachment E: Non-Structural Urban BMP Policy 
Attachment F: Tree Canopy Assessment Protocol for Enhanced Street Sweeping Prioritization 
Attachment G: Lower St. Croix Fast Track Project Policy 
Attachment H: Joint Powers Agreement  

2024 Work Plan Summary 
 

 
Part A. Implementation Actions for Agricultural Lands 

 
Estimated Expenses  
 

$1,233,900* 

Activities Shared Services: Agronomy Outreach Specialist 
Structural agricultural BMPs 
Non-structural agricultural BMPs 
Conservation planning and technical assistance 
Ditch management 

2024 Estimated Outputs 200 acres with non-structural BMPs that improve soil health and/or 
reduce nitrogen and pesticide pollution to groundwater 
412 lbs total phosphorus reduction through structural BMPs in priority 
areas 
5 irrigation systems with smart technology installed 
10 - 20 Upgraded SSTS in sensitive areas and shoreland 

  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 12

https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5b0dadc59772aeb1df30d0d8/t/5f9aea83cfd1f030c1d3bb17/1603988135744/Final+Lower+St+Croix+Comp+Plan+OCT+2020.pdf


 
Part B. Implementation for Developed and Developing Lands 

 
Estimated Expenses  
 

$1,195,800*  
 

Activities Shared Services: Educator 
Structural urban BMPs 
Non-structural urban BMPs 
Project reviews and technical assistance on stormwater management 
and urban BMPs 
Interagency coordination 
Land acquisition and management 

2024 Estimated Outputs 2 developments retrofitted with infiltration, recharge or reuse projects  
20 lbs total phosphorus reduction through structural BMPs in priority 
areas  
15% of all cities with staff certified in Smart Salting Training 
10 irrigation systems with smart technology installed 
10 - 20 upgraded SSTS in sensitive areas and shoreland 
10 shoreline restoration projects 
1 LGU with new wetland protections 
1 easement or acquisition in priority lakeshed 
1 landlocked basin analyzed 

 
Part C. Implementation for Ecosystem Services 

 
Estimated Expenses  
 

$1,668,500*  

Activities Wetland restoration 
Culvert Inventory 
Ag/Urban non-structural BMPs 
AIS Prevention and management 
Land and shoreland protection and management 
Technical assistance 

2024 Estimated Outputs 1 stream restoration project 
100 acres restored wetlands 
2.5% increase in watercraft inspections for AIS 
2 new boat launches with AIS signage 
5 phragmites infestations removed 
1 LGU with new shoreland protections 
2 new landscape designs for climate resiliency 
100 acres protected through easement or acquisition 
100 acres managed with new Landscape Steward Plan 

  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 13



 
Part D. Implementation for Prioritization and Analysis 

 
Estimated Expenses  
 

$743,225*  
 

Activities Targeting analyses 
Technical assistance 
Monitoring lakes, streams, wetlands, ditches, groundwater 
Internal lake analyses 
Gully and erosion inventories 
Mapping 
Chisago Chain of Lakes channel and weir operation/maintenance 

2024 Estimated Outputs 3 subwatershed analyses for priority lakes 
3 subwatershed analyses for priority streams 
1 lake analyzed for internal loading 
Implementation of robust water monitoring programs by all partners 

*Sources of funding include WBIF, local partner funds, other grants, etc. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 14



Lower St. Croix Partnership 2024 Annual Plan of Work (based on LSC CWMP Table 5-1)

# Activity Priority Location Measurable Output Implementation Actions
2024 Estimated 

Outputs
2024 Estimated 

Cost
Activity Categories

Part A. Implementation Actions for Agricultural Lands

$125,000 A5 Ag Outreach

$470,000 
A1 + A3 Structural and Non-
structural Ag BMPs

$273,900 
A7 Technical/Engineering

1 GW Quality (Table 3-1 GW1A, 2B) Basin Wide Priority - Agricultural 
lands where:
1) DWSMA vulnerability is 
moderate, high, or very high; or
2) Pollution sensitivity to wells is 
high or very high; or
3) Pollution sensitivity to near 
surface materials is karst or high; or
4) Well testing show ≥ 5 mg/L 
nitrate
See Figure 5-1

Install BMPs on 2,200 acres that 
improve soil health and/or reduce 
nitrogen and pesticide pollution to 
groundwater

200 ac A3 Ag Non-structural BMPs

2 Rivers & Streams + St. Croix River 
WQ (Table 3-1 R&S 1A; STC 1B, C)

Regionally Significant Rivers and 
Streams:
-     All streams and tributaries in 
Sunrise River Watershed (whole 
watershed regardless of direct 
drainage)
-     Direct drainage areas to St. 
Croix River through Rock, Rush, 
Goose, Lawrence, and Browns 
Creeks and Trout Brook and other 
small streams shown in Figure 5-2
See Table 5-2 for streams and total 
phosphorus reduction goals; see 
Figure 5-2

Reduce total phosphorus by 3,300 
lbs/year (install approximately 220 
BMPs @ estimated 15 lbs/BMP) 
and reduce TSS, bacteria, and 
nitrogen as secondary benefit

300 lbs TP 
(approx. 20 
BMPs)

A1 Ag Structural BMPs

3 Lake WQ from ag (Table 3-1
LK1A, 2A)

Regionally Significant Lakes for 
Agricultural BMPs See Table 5-3 for 
lakes and total phosphorus 
reduction goals; see Figure 5-3 for 
map

Install conservation BMPs, near 
sensitive lakes or in direct lake 
catchments to reduce TP by 1,275 
lbs (estimated 15 lbs/BMP) and to 
reduce TSS, bacteria, and nitrogen 
as

 

112.5 lbs TP
(approx. 200 ac)

A1 Ag Structural BMPs

4 GW Quantity (Table 3-1 GW2A) All agricultural irrigators; highest 
priority given to highest consumers 
[For context : Active water use 
permits from MPARS database 
2018: 100 agricultural irrigators; 
157 Water Supply Wells; 37 
Non‐crop irrigators. Total = 294. 
100 of those used >1MG in 2018 .]

Install or retrofit smart technology 
on 40 irrigation systems

5 systems $72,500 A3 Non-structural Ag BMPs

Shared Services: Agronomy Outreach Specialist

Cost Share for Agricultural BMPs (structural and non-structural)

Conservation planning and technical assistance

Page 1 of 9
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 15

Home
Text Box
Attachment A

Home
Text Box



# Activity Priority Location Measurable Output Implementation Actions
2024 Estimated 

Outputs
2024 Estimated 

Cost
Activity Categories

5 River & Stream Flows (Table 3-1 R&S 
3A)

Basin wide Identify and map 100% of private 
ditches as part of developing 
Conservation Plans

A7 Technical/Engineering

$5,000 A14 Ditch Management

$500 A6 + A5 Shared Services 
Education and Ag outreach

6 Drainage impacts on wetlands 
(Table 3-1 WTL 1B)

All public and private ditches Review 100% of drainage projects 
for possible impacts to wetland 
quality

$17,000 A14 Ditch Management

7 Drainage impact on rivers & streams 
(Table 3-1 R&S 1C)

Judicial and public ditches Maintain or improve downstream 
water quality following ditch 
maintenance

A14 Ditch Management

8 GW quality from contaminants
(Table 3-1 GW1B)

Priority areas: Where pollution 
sensitivity to near surface materials 
is high, or in karst areas, or where
bedrock is at or near the surface; 
see Figure 1-3 for map Secondary 
priority: Basin wide

Upgrade 100 non-conforming or 
non-
compliant SSTS to properly 
functioning,
compliant systems. [For context: 
Estimated 4,202 SSTS basin wide 
failing to protect GW. Source: SSTS 
Annual Report 2018 (MPCA, Aug 
2019) Number of SSTS per county * 
% of county in LSC * estimated 15% 

10 systems $270,000 A3 Ag Non-structural BMPs

9 Lake impacts from SSTS (Table 3-1 
LK 1C)

Basin wide:
Shorelands adjacent to nutrient 
impaired lakes Chisago Co:
Countywide

Basin wide: Decrease 
non-compliant and non-conforming 
SSTS in shorelands adjacent to 
nutrient impaired lakes
Chisago Co: Decrease 
non-compliant and non-conforming 
SSTS in all areas by 50% and in 
shorelands adjacent to nutrient 
impaired lakes by 80%
[For context: Estimated 5,323 
non‐compliant SSTS basin wide. 
Source: SSTS Annual Report 2018 
(MPCA, Aug 2019): Number of SSTS 
per county * % of county in LSC * 

10 systems A3 Ag Non-structural BMPs

10 GW quality from contaminants
(Table 3-1 GW1B)

Basin wide Properly seal or floodproof 100% of 
known or discovered abandoned 
wells or wells at risk of flooding

A3 Non-structural  Ag BMPs

Provide training for local staff on topics related to drainage management, wetland
management, and related areas

Develop and implement plan for management and maintenance of ditch system including a
system and protocol for establishing BMPs within easement right of ways of existing public
ditches.

Page 2 of 9
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 16



# Activity Priority Location Measurable Output Implementation Actions
2024 Estimated 

Outputs
2024 Estimated 

Cost
Activity Categories

SUBTOTAL: Part A. Implementation Actions for Agricultural Lands $1,233,900 
Part B. Implementation for Developed and Developing Lands

$110,000 A6 Shared Educator

$300,000 A2 + A3 Urban Structural and 
Non-structural BMPs

$250,800 A7 Technical/Engineering

11 GW recharge & infiltration (Table 
3-1 GW 2B) + Lake & stream WQ 
(Table 3-1 LK1B, R&S
1A)

Basin wide
[Estimated 40 communities in basin 
without MIDS or similar standards]

Implement Minimal Impact Design 
Standards or more restrictive in 20 
communities; including climate 
resiliency provisions or standards

0 $0 A6 Shared Services Education 

12 GW recharge & stream flow (Table 
3-1 GW 2B, R&S 3A)

In critical groundwater recharge 
areas as identified in existing or 
future maps or studies

Retrofit 20 existing developments 
with infiltration, recharge and 
reuse projects

2 projects A2 Structural Urban BMPs

13 St. Croix River flows (Table 3-1
STC 3A)

Direct catchments to the St. Croix 
River and Lake St. Croix

Evaluate and update small storm 
volume control and large storm 
rate control ordinances in 4 

A15 Interagency Coordination

14 St. Croix River + Rivers & streams 
WQ (Table 3-1 STC 1B; R&S 1A)

Regionally Significant Rivers and 
Streams:
-     All streams and tributaries in 
Sunrise River Watershed (whole 
watershed regardless of direct 
drainage)
-     Direct drainage areas to St. 
Croix River through Rock, Rush, 
Goose, Lawrence, and Browns 
Creeks and Trout Brook and other 
small streams shown in Figure 5-2
See Table 5-2 for streams and total 
phosphorus reduction goals; See 
Figure 5-2

Reduce TP by 100 lbs. 
(approximately 100 BMPs) and 
reduce TSS, bacteria, and nitrogen 
as secondary benefit [Assume 1 
lb/BMP; typical reduction for 
raingarden or similar BMP]

10 lbs. TP
(approx. 10 
BMPs)

A2 Structural Urban BMPs

15 Lake WQ (Table 3-1 LK 1B) Regionally Significant Lakes for 
Urban BMPs See Table 5-3 for lakes 
and total phosphorus reduction 
goals; See Figure 5-3

Reduce TP by 100 lbs. 
(approximately 100 BMPs) and 
reduce TSS, bacteria, and nitrogen 
as secondary benefit [Assume 1 
lb/BMP; typical reduction for 
raingarden or similar BMP]

10 lbs. TP
(approx. 10 
BMPs)

A2 Structural Urban BMPs

16 St. Croix River chlorides (Table 3-1 
STC 1D)

Basin wide 75% of all cities have staff certified 
in MPCA’s Level 1 and Level 2 
Smart Salting Training

Total of 15% of 
cities

A15 Interagency Coordination

17 GW quantity (Table 3-1 GW 2A) All irrigators; highest priority given 
to highest consumers and 
communities with highest 
residential usage

Install or retrofit smart technology 
on 40 irrigation systems

10 systems $145,000 A2 Structural Urban BMPs

Shared Services: Educator 1) Provide outreach, education and ordinance development on Minimal Impact Design Standards with local governments, 
developers, and others; 2) Facilitate shared education and outreach program across basin to provide education; engage residents, businesses, and local 
officials; and promote and market programs and practices.

Cost Share for Urban BMPs (structural and non-structural)

Provide project reviews and technical assistance on stormwater management and urban best management practices through local staff and local 
initiatives including evaluating small storm volume control and large storm rate control ordinances.

Page 3 of 9
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 17



# Activity Priority Location Measurable Output Implementation Actions
2024 Estimated 

Outputs
2024 Estimated 

Cost
Activity Categories

18 GW contaminants (Table 3-1
GW 1B)

Basin wide - all currently unlicensed 
facilities and generators

License 100% of hazardous waste 
generators

A15 Interagency Coordination

19 GW contaminants
(Table 3-1 GW 1B)

Priority areas: Where pollution 
sensitivity to near surface materials 
is high, or in karst areas, or where 
bedrock is at or near the surface
Secondary priority: Basin wide

Upgrade non-conforming or 
non-compliant SSTS to properly 
functioning, compliant systems. 
[See Line 8 of this table for 
context.]

A3 Urban Non-Structural BMPs

20 Lake impacts from SSTS (Table 3-1 
LK 1C)

Basin wide:
Shorelands adjacent to nutrient 
impaired lakes
Chisago Co: Countywide

Basin wide: Decrease 
non-compliant and non- 
conforming SSTS in shorelands 
adjacent to nutrient impaired lakes
Chisago Co: Decrease 
non-compliant and non- 
conforming SSTS in all areas by 50% 
and in shorelands adjacent to 
nutrient impaired lakes by 80% 

A3 Urban Non-Structural BMPs

21 Lake shorelines (Table 3-1 LK 2B & 
UP 2A)

Regionally Significant Lakes for 
Protection and Sustainable 
Development: Table 5-3 and Figure 
5-3

Install 100 shoreline restoration 
projects
[100% of lakeshore owners with 
altered shorelines are provided 
information on restoration 
programs]

10 projects $40,000 A2 Structural Urban BMPs

22 Protect wetlands (Table 3-1
WTL 1A)

Basin wide during land use change 
or alteration, development or 
redevelopment

Increase by 5 the number of LGUs 
with adopted wetland protections 
including buffer requirements and 
setbacks for permanent
structures

1 LGU A15 Interagency Coordination

23 Maintain & restore habitat (Table 
3-1 UP 1F)

Land with priority habitats and 
corridor connections

10% of land in new developments 
is dedicated to wildlife habitat 
[significant new areas of land 
conversion from vacant or rural 
land to residential, 
commercial/industrial, institutional, 
or transportation]

5% of land in new 
development

A12 Land Acquisition & 
Management

24 Sensitive lake protection (Table 3-1 
LK 2A)

Regionally Significant Lakes for 
Protection and Sustainable 
Development: Table 5-3 and Figure 
5-3

Implement sustainable 
development and land preservation 
programs in lakesheds of priority 
lakes through 10 easements or 

1 easement or 
acquistion

A3 Urban Non-Structural BMPs

25 Landlocked basin impact on River 
(Table 3-1 STC 1B, 3A, 4C)

Eutrophic natural landlocked basins 
to be discharged to St. Croix River

Perform analysis and implement 
measures to meet state standards 
for nutrients on 3 waterbodies

1 basin $350,000 A7 Technical/Engineering

SUBTOTAL: Part B. Implementation for Developed and Developing Lands $1,195,800 
Part C. Implementation for Ecosystem Services

$100,000 A7 Technical/EngineeringPerform culvert inventory: redesign and restore as road projects are completed to help manage to natural hydrologic conditions through use of MnDNR 
Geomorphic Approach to infrastructure Design at Road-Watercourse Intersections

Page 4 of 9
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 18



# Activity Priority Location Measurable Output Implementation Actions
2024 Estimated 

Outputs
2024 Estimated 

Cost
Activity Categories

26 Rivers & Streams ecosyste ms & 
flow (Table 3-1 R&S 2A, 3A, STC
1B)

St. Croix River and Lake St. Croix 
direct drainage tributaries

Reduce TP loading and TSS loading 
by 425 lbs and 1,085 tons, 
respectively. Implement 5 stream 
restoration projects to restore and 
improve stream corridors, instream 
habitat, and riparian area stability 
[Average TP reduction/restoration 
= 85 lbs; Average TSS 
reduction/restoration = 217 tons]

1 stream 
restoration 
project

$350,000 A3 Ag/Urban Non-Structural 
BMPs

27 Trout populations
(Table 3-1 R&S 1B)

Trout streams (Brown's Creek, 
Valley Creek, Lawrence Creek, Trout 
Brook, Willow Brooke, Mill Stream, 
Falls Creek, Gilbertsons’s Creek)

Trout populations maintained 
through stream restorations, BMP 
installations, and enforcement of 
development standards

Year 4: All 
streams trout 
YOY recruit- 
ment, survival of
previous year 
class

A3 Ag/Urban Non-Structural 
BMPs

28 Wetland quantity (Table 3-1
WTL 2A, 2B)

1. In highest priority catchments 
(red, yellow
and green areas) within BWSR’s
Compensation Planning Framework 
priority
catchments in the Lower St. Croix 
River
Watershed (Figure 5-5)
2. In locations where studies or 
mapping tools
find that restoration will have 
significant
positive impact on natural 

Create or restore 1,000 acres of 
historic wetlands lost to land use 
changes

100 acres created 
or restored

$495,000 A4 Wetland Restoration

29 Wetland loss (Table 3-1 WTL 2A,
1B)

Judicial and public ditches Mitigate loss of wetland acres 
resulting from ditch maintenance 
activities

No net wetland 
loss

A14 Ditch Management

30 Wetland quantity (Table 3-1
WTL 2B)

Basin wide Create and maintain 2 new BWSR 
and USACE approved wetland 
banks within the basin

A4 Wetland Restoration

31 AIS in Lakes & St. Croix River (Table 
3-1 LK 2C; STC 2A)

High traffic boat launches on St. 
Croix River and Lake St. Croix

Increase watercraft inspection 
hours by 25%

Increase hours by 
2.5%

A13 Aquatic Invasive Species 
Prevention & Management

32 AIS (Table 3-1 LK 2C; STC 2A; R&S
2B)

Within 15 miles of all public boat 
launches on zebra mussel infested 
lakes and rivers

Within 15 miles of all public boat 
launches on zebra mussel infested 
lakes and rivers

A13 Aquatic Invasive Species 
Prevention & Management

33 AIS signs (Table 3-1 LK 2C; STC 2A; 
R&S 2B)

Basin wide Install AIS informational signage at 
20 boat launches and marinas

2 new launches 
w/ signage

A13 Aquatic Invasive Species 
Prevention & Management

34 AIS in Lakes (Table 3-1 LK 2C) Lakes in Chisago Co. and Isanti Co. 
with public access

Develop 1 comprehensive AIS rapid 
response plan for lakes

A13 Aquatic Invasive Species 
Prevention & Management$443,500 

Page 5 of 9
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 19



# Activity Priority Location Measurable Output Implementation Actions
2024 Estimated 

Outputs
2024 Estimated 

Cost
Activity Categories

35 Phragmites (Table 3-1 WTL 1C) In order of priority
1. Chisago Lakes LID
2. Carlos Avery WMA
3. Elsewhere in Chisago Co and 
Isanti Co
4. Headwaters of North Branch & 
West
Branch Sunrise River

Reduce the size and number of 
invasive phragmites locations as 
reported on EddMaps by 50% or 45 
infestation areas. Stabilize and 
eradicate those small infestataions 
less than 1,000 – 2,000 sq. ft. 
through rapid response
plans, where available

Reduce by 5 
infestations

A13 Aquatic Invasive Species 
Prevention & Management

36 Lake levels (Table 3-1
LK 3A)

Chisago Co. Lakes = Chisago Lakes 
Chain of Lakes (Chisago, South 
Lindstrom, North Lindstrom, Green, 
Little Green, North Center, South 
Center), Fish, Horseshoe, Little
Horseshoe, Sunrise

Develop resiliency plans or 
responses, such as a Slow-No-Wake 
Ordinance or Channel and Weir 
Operations and Maintenance Plans, 
to address vulnerable properties

$10,000 A11 Shoreland Protection & 
Management

37 Internal loading (Table 3-1 LK 1D) In lakes where internal loading is 
estimated to be a significant 
contributor to degraded water 
quality and where not addressing 
the internal loading would result in 
sustained degradation
(See Internal Loading Lakes 
Table 5-4)

Address source of internal loading 
3 in lakes

0 $0 A1 + A2 + A3 Structural and 
Non-structural Ag/Urban BMPs

38 Shoreland (Table 3-1 UP 1A, R&S 2A, 
LK 2B)

Basin wide Increase the number of LGUs  
(including counties) by 2 that adopt 
innovative shoreland standards

1 new LGU w/ 
adopted 
standards

$40,000 A11 Shoreland Protection & 
Management

39 Resilient lands (Table 3-1 UP 1C,
1D)

Private lands in priority corridors 
and critical habitat areas and 
large-scale developments with 
land-use change

Increase in the number of diverse 
landscape designs and plantings 
resilient to climate change

2 designs $50,000 A7 Technical/Engineering

40 Land protection (Table 3-1 UP 1B; 
R&S 2A; LK 2A)

First priority: Areas near already 
protected lands (public or private), 
tributaries near impaired waters, 
areas where known endangered 
species are present and identified 
biologically significant natural areas 
as identified by MLCCS mapping
Second priority: Basin wide

At least 1000 acres protected 
through acquisition and easements.

100 acres 
protected

A12 Land Acquisition & 
Management

41 Land protection (Table 3-1 UP 1C, LK 
1B)

First priority: Areas where upland 
habitat is fractured and shoreline 
areas where there is high to 
moderate development or land 
under future development pressure
Second priority: Basin wide

Create 20 new Landscape 
Stewardship Plans

2 new plans A7 Technical/Engineering

42 Habitat improve (Table 3-1 UP 2C) Basin wide based on prioritized 
mapping including MLCCS maps 
and other critical habitat mapping

1,000 new acres managed for 
better habitat, or as recommended 
in Landscape Stewardship Plans

100 new acres 
managed

A7 Technical/Engineering

 

$180,000 

Page 6 of 9
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 20



# Activity Priority Location Measurable Output Implementation Actions
2024 Estimated 

Outputs
2024 Estimated 

Cost
Activity Categories

43 Protected lands (Table 3-1 UP 2B) Areas located along bluffland or 
adjacent to publicly owned forest 
land such as state parks and trails

Increase acres under private Forest 
Management Plans or Woodland 
Stewardship Plans by 20% [23 plans 
over 10 years]

2 new plans 
developed

A7 Technical/Engineering

SUBTOTAL: Part C. Implementation for Ecosystem Services $1,668,500 
Part D. Implementation for Prioritization and Analysis: Issues, Goals, Actions, Measurable Outputs, and Priority Locations
44 STC 1A Basin wide Evaluate the water quality metrics, 

set reporting standards, report on 
goal progress for the St. Croix
River

Identify, appoint, and empower entity or 
person to lead/evaluate the water quality 
metrics, set reporting standards, report on 
goal progress.

$25,000 A9 Targeting Analysis

45 GW 3A Order of Priority:
1) Surrounding known 
contamination sites where data are 
lacking
2) DWSMAs
3) Townships without nitrate 
testing

  

Pollution sources (including mines), 
areas around chemical 
contamination sites, vulnerable 
areas, and surface water-GW 
interactions are studied and 
mapped

Work with State agencies and 
Metropolitan Council to study and map 
pollution sources (including mines), areas 
around chemical contamination sites, 
vulnerable areas, and surface water-GW 
interactions

$0 A9 Targeting Analysis

46 GW 3A Basin wide 100% of recharge areas and 
groundwatersheds of GW 
dependent natural resources are 
mapped

Support agencies such as DNR and Met 
Council in mapping recharge areas and 
groundwatersheds of GW dependent 
natural resources

$20,000 A9 Targeting Analysis

47 GW 3A Basin wide where needed Complete at least one county 
groundwater plan

Build on existing GRAPS to develop 
groundwater plans that lay out technical 
framework, issues, policies and 
implementation actions for the protection 
and conservation of groundwater 

$0 A7 Technical/Engineering

48 GW 3A Maintain basin wide; expand in 
Isanti and Pine Co.
1) DWSMAs
2) Groundwatersheds of 
GW-dependent natural resources

Maintain existing or increase 
number of new observation wells

Work with MnDNR to maintain and 
expand observation well program

$41,865 A9 Targeting Analysis

49 LK 1D Regionally Significant Lakes for 
Internal Loading Analyses Table 5-4

Calculate internal loading of 
phosphorus

Calculate internal loading of phosphorus 
on 15 lakes @ $25,000 each

1 lake analyzed $37,500 A8 Internal Analysis

50 LK 4A Anoka Co. Lakes = Pet, Rice, South 
Coon, Skunk, Tamarack
Chisago Co. Lakes = Sunrise, Little 
Horseshoe
Isanti Co. Lakes = Hoffman, 
Horseleg, Horseshoe, Upper and 
Lower birch, East and West Twin, 
Tamarack (30‐ 0001‐00), Long 
(30-0002-
00,) Big Pine (30-0015-00),
Grass (30-0017-00), Splittstoeser 
(30-00041-00)

Baseline data such as transparency, 
total phosphorus and chlorophyll- a 
are collected

Develop monitoring plan and collect data 
using available means such as volunteers, 
Met Council's CAMP, MPCA's citizen 
monitoring program, MPCA's Intensive 
watershed monitoring program, SWCDs, 
counties, parks departments, lake 
associations, etc.
Anoka Co annual costs (5 lakes *
$2,100/lake) = $10,500
Chisago Co annual costs (2 lakes) =
$1,200
Isanti Co annual costs (12 lakes) =
$1,430/lake = $17,160

$28,860 A9 Targeting Analysis

 

Page 7 of 9
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 21



# Activity Priority Location Measurable Output Implementation Actions
2024 Estimated 

Outputs
2024 Estimated 

Cost
Activity Categories

51 LK 4A STC 2B,
4C

Basin wide Participate in studies and/or stay 
informed of latest science to assess 
the impact of a changing climate on 
lakes and the St. Croix River

Use latest climate science to implement 
adaptive management

Included in 
existing work

A9 Targeting Analysis

52 LK 4A Chisago Chain of Lakes 100% of lakes prone to 
anthropogenic water level variation 
are identified

Manage the channel and weir system with 
an approved operation and maintenance 
plan.

$36,000 A7 Technical/Engineering

53 LK 4A Basin wide 100% of lakes prone to direct 
anthropogenic water level variation 
are identified

Participate in DNR lake level monitoring 
program to routinely collect lake level data

$13,000 A7 Technical/Engineering

54 LK 1A, 1B, 4A Subwatersheds of Regionally 
Significant Lakes
Table 5-3 and Figure 5-3

20 subwatershed project targeting 
analyses are completed (estimated
$10,000-$50,000/SWA or
$30,000 ave)

Conduct analyses to identify and prioritize 
water quality improvement projects within 
a priority subwatershed. Methods and 
analyses can include site or field scale 
subwatershed analyses, diagnostic 
monitoring, spatial analysis and

3 SWAs $90,000 A9 Targeting Analysis

55 R&S 1A, STC 4B Regionally Significant Rivers and 
Streams:
-     Streams and tributaries in 
Sunrise R. Watershed
-     Direct drainage areas to St. 
Croix River through Rock, Rush, 
Goose, and Browns Creeks and 
Trout Brook and other small 
streams as shown in Table 5-2 and 
Figure

20 subwatershed project targeting 
analyses are completed (estimated
$10,000 - $50,000/SWA or
$30,000 ave)

mapping, modeling, cost benefit analyses, 
or other data-driven targeting activities. 
See Section VII.B. for further description.

3 SWAs $90,000 A9 Targeting Analysis

56 STC 4A, 4C Tributaries to the St. Croix Coordinated hydrologic, chemical, 
and biological monitoring of the St. 
Croix River and its tributaries; 
nutrient loading data of major 
tributaries to the St. Croix River is 
evaluated.

Operate up to 10 new monitoring stations 
that lack data (quality and quantity) to 
evaluate progress toward achieving the 
TMDL and to identify priority 
subwatersheds. @
$10,000/year/station

$100,000 A7 Technical/Engineering

57 STC 3A Land use authorities in the St. Croix 
Riverway.

Evaluate the floodplain and zoning 
ordinances for consistency and 
effectiveness in protecting the 
floodplain function and preventing 
flood damages. Include impacts of 
variances
in the evaluation.

Work with land use authorities along St. 
Croix River and MnDNR Area Hydrologists 
to evaluate floodplain and zoning 
ordinances and update where appropriate.

$25,000 A7 Technical/Engineering

58 STC 4B & UP 2A Intermittent and perennial 
tributaries and watercourses 
flowing directly to St. Croix River

Inventory and prioritize active 
erosion sites.

Identify, evaluate, and rank active gullies 
directly discharging into the St. Croix or its 
tributaries [LIDAR to identify gully 
locations; RUSLE & BWSR pollution 
reduction calculator to determine 
pollution reduction

$25,000 A9 Targeting Analysis

Page 8 of 9
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 22



# Activity Priority Location Measurable Output Implementation Actions
2024 Estimated 

Outputs
2024 Estimated 

Cost
Activity Categories

59 STC 2B, 4C UP 1A Basin wide Map priority restoration and 
protection areas for acquisition, 
easements, and voluntary 
stewardship

Complete level 4/5 MLCCS basin wide. 
Expand the Washington County Natural 
Resource Framework and use their 
methodology in Anoka, Chisago, Isanti, and 
Pine Counties.
(MLCCS = $1,000/sq mi * 640 sq miles)

$100,000 A9 Targeting Analysis

60 UP 1E First priority: Public lands or near 
public lands; areas may be further 
prioritized thru cooperative weed 
mgmt area
Second priority: Basin wide

Map and target "eradicate and 
control list" invasive species 
populations for each county
Contact 50% of landowners for 
species on restricted list

Implement a cooperative weed 
management area (including MNDOT 
when possible) and promote associated 
implementation strategies.

$0 A9 Targeting Analysis

61 WTL 3E Pine County Complete soil survey Complete soil survey as developed by 
NRCS, USDA & shown in Soil Survey
Geographic (SSURGO) Database

To be completed 
by NRCS

A7 Technical/Engineering

62 WTL 3D Wetlands upstream of nutrient 
impaired streams and lakes

Monitor 10 identified wetlands for 
nutrient and volume contribution 
to impaired lakes and streams

Use subwatershed analyses or 
monitoring/modeling data to identify 
degraded wetlands with the potential of 
contributing high nutrient loads to 
downstream resources.

$75,000 A7 Technical/Engineering

63 WTL 3D Basin wide Identify 5 degraded wetlands with 
best restoration potential in each 
HUC 10

Use existing Restorable Wetland 
Prioritization Tool to focus effort

To be completed 
in conjunction 
with existing 

ti iti

A9 Targeting Analysis

64 WTL 3E & 1D 1st priority: Public ditches in Isanti 
Co.
2nd priority: Basin wide

Obtain Nutrient Loading Data in 
basins/wetlands near Ditch outlets 
to identify areas for ditch 
improvements to filter runoff

Collect water quality data near ditch 
outlets of 25 ditches (estimated
$2,000 per ditch)

$5,000 A9 Targeting Analysis

65 WTL 3A, 3B, 3C 1st Priority: Isanti County 2nd 

Priority: Basin wide
Create wetland inventory based on 
MLCCS, and function and value 
assessment and/or floristic quality 
assessment

Increase by 5 the number of LGUs with 
policies requiring wetland function and 
value assessments with project proposals 
such as developments or ditch work.

$25,000 A7 Technical/Engineering

66 WTL 3B Pine County and Isanti County An inventory and map of all areas 
of wetland loss and historic 
wetlands is locally verified

Verify recently completed inventory and 
map % of areas of wetland loss and 
historic wetlands

$6,000 A7 Technical/Engineering

SUBTOTAL: Part D. Implementation for Prioritization and Analysis: Issues, Goals, Actions, Measurable Outputs, and Priority Locations $743,225

Page 9 of 9
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 23



2024 LSC Project Process Calendar 
Policy Committee meets quarterly  (4 th  Monday of the month)  
Steering Committee meets monthly  (4 th  Wednesday of the month)  
Planning Team meets monthly  (2nd  Wednesday of the month)  
Advisory Committee meets as needed (e.g., AC meets to approve annual work plan)  

This calendar only shows meetings which pertain to the proposed project approval process. Additional meetings are held 

at the frequencies described above. 

January 

1/5 Deadline: All partners submit 
2023 activity reports to Reporting 
Lead 
 
1/15 Deadline: Policy Committee 
meeting packet posted, including 
2023 grant activity report  
 
1/22 Policy Committee: At regular 
quarterly meeting review 2023 grant 
activity report 

February 

2/14 Deadline: Project requests 
<$50K submitted to Meeting 
Facilitator (2 weeks before SC 
meeting) 
 
2/28 Steering Committee: At regular 
monthly meeting consider project 
requests <$50K 

March 

3/8 Notice: Meeting Facilitator will 
send out call for projects reminder to 
all partners 60 days in advance of the 
May application deadline 
 
3/13 Deadline: Project requests 
>$50K submitted to Meeting 
Facilitator 
 
3/27 Steering Committee: At regular 
monthly meeting review project 
requests >$50K that are due to come 
to PC in April 

April 

4/15 Deadline: Policy Committee 
meeting packet posted, including 
project requests >$50K 
 
4/22 Policy Committee: At regular 
quarterly meeting consider project 
requests >$50K once per year 
 

May 

5/8 Deadline: Project requests <$50K 
submitted to Meeting Facilitator (2 
weeks before SC meeting) 
 
5/22 Steering Committee: At regular 
monthly meeting consider project 
requests <$50,000 

June 

6/14 Notice: Meeting Facilitator will 
send out call for projects reminder to 
all partners 60 days in advance of the 
August application deadline 
 

July 

 

August 

8/14 Deadline: Project requests 
<$50K submitted to Meeting 
Facilitator (2 weeks before SC 
meeting) 
 
8/28 Steering Committee: At regular 
monthly meeting consider project 
requests <$50,000 

September 

October 

 
 

November 

 
 
 

December 

12/13 Notice: Meeting Facilitator will 
send out call for projects reminder to 
all partners 60 days in advance of the 
February application deadlines (dual 
notice this month – projects less than 
and greater than $50K) 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 24

Home
Text Box
Attachment B



 

 

 

WBIF Proposed Project Evaluation and Approval Process for the Lower St. Croix 

Watershed Partnership 

Updated February 1, 2023 

 

 

Contents 
Purpose ................................................................................................................................................. 2 

WBIF Funding Applicability .................................................................................................................. 2 

Project Review Schedule ...................................................................................................................... 3 

Request for Projects and Submission Deadlines ............................................................................... 3 

Reviews ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

Evaluation Process................................................................................................................................ 4 

Step 1: Application ............................................................................................................................ 4 

Step 2: Steering Committee Evaluation ............................................................................................ 4 

Step 3: Steering Committee Recommendations ............................................................................... 5 

Step 4: Policy Committee .................................................................................................................. 5 

Step 5: Fiscal Agent. .......................................................................................................................... 5 

Step 6: Post Project Administrative Steps ......................................................................................... 6 

Appeals .............................................................................................................................................. 6 

Exceptions and Additional Requirements ......................................................................................... 6 

Lower St. Croix Fast-Track Project Policy ............................................................................................ 7 

Conflict of Interest Policy ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Definition .......................................................................................................................................... 8 

Application ........................................................................................................................................ 8 

Implementation ................................................................................................................................ 9 

 

 

  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 25

Home
Text Box
Attachment C



 

2 
 

 

Purpose 
This document provides a detailed overview of the evaluation and approval of projects proposing to use 

Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership (LSCP) Watershed-Based Implementation Funds (WBIF). This 

document is intended to be reviewed each December to evaluate its effectiveness in relation to 

Comprehensive Plan implementation, and determine what modifications to improve process, address 

gaps, or to better align with other policies or procedures should be made. 

The process described in this document is an aggregation of the following sources: 

• Appendix to the 2022 Annual Plan of Work: Lower St. Croix Project Approval Process Policy 

• Appendix to the 2022-23 Annual Plan of Work: Lower St. Croix Fast Track Project Policy 

• September 26, 2022 – Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership Policy Committee Meeting 

Minutes 

• Review process graphics for proposed WBIF projects 

 

WBIF Funding Applicability 
To apply for WBIF-funding, eligible entities/applicants are limited to the 15 local government unit (LGU) 

partners that signed on to the joint power’s agreement for implementation of the Lower St. Croix 

Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan. Non-included entities/individuals can work with one of 

the 15 partners to submit an application.  

Partners include: Chisago County, Isanti County, Pine County, Washington County, Anoka Conservation 

District, Chisago Soil and Water Conservation District, Isanti Soil and Water Conservation District, Pine 

Soil and Water Conservation District, Washington Conservation District, Brown’s Creek Watershed 

District, Carnelian-Marine-St. Croix Watershed District, Comfort Lake Forest Lake Watershed District, 

South Washington Watershed District, Valley Branch Watershed District, and Middle St. Croix 

Watershed Management Organization. 

 

  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 26



 

3 
 

Project Review Schedule  
 

Request for Projects and Submission Deadlines 

• The Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership staff will send out requests for projects to all 

partners 60 days in advance of a scheduled Steering or Policy Committee meeting in which 

projects will be reviewed by an appointed individual of a partner. 1 

 

• Submission deadlines are 2 weeks prior to the applicable Steering or Policy Committee meeting 

to provide adequate time to assemble meeting packets.  

 

• The 2023 submission deadlines and meeting schedule is shown in 2023 LSC Project Process 

Calendar (Attachment 1). 

 

Reviews 

The projects reviewed and considered by the Steering and/or Policy Committee will fall into one of two 

broad categories.  

1. Projects equal to and exceeding $50,0002 

 

2. Projects less than $50,000 

The primary difference in these categories is the review schedule/frequency, and the review audience. 

Both categories will generally follow the same core process. The primary differences between the 

project types are outlined below. 

• Projects equal to and exceeding $50,000 

 

o Schedule:  

▪ Reviewed one time annually (March by the Steering Committee; April by the 

Policy Committee). 

 

o Audience:  

▪ Projects must be reviewed by the Steering Committee, who provides a 

recommendation for approval/denial to the Policy Committee. 

▪ Projects must be reviewed by the Policy Committee, who provides a 

recommendation for approval/denial to the fiscal agent.3 

 

 

 

 
1 Each December calls for proposals will be sent for both categories of projects (less $50,000 - reviewed in 
February; and, equal to or exceeding $50,000 - reviewed in March). 
2 Amounts above, equal to, or below $50,000 refers to the grant fund request amount, not total project cost. 
3 Projects do not require approval by the Lower St. Croix Watershed local partner boards unless the project 
requires a grant agreement amendment or work plan revision equal to or exceeding $50,000. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 27



 

4 
 

 

• Projects less than $50,000 

 

o Schedule:  

▪ Reviewed three times annually in February, May, and August 

 

o Audience:  

▪ Projects must be reviewed by the Steering Committee, who provides a 

recommendation for approval/denial to the fiscal agent. 

Evaluation Process 
 

Step 1: Application  

An eligible applicant fills out a project request form plus appropriate attachments (see attachments 

listed on project request form) and self-evaluates the project.  

Application Criteria: The following are required for a project to qualify for WBIF funds. 

1. The eligible applicant has investigated potential match funding options from other sources. 

 

2. The eligible applicant has submitted a Funding Request Form and any necessary 

attachments/self-evaluation forms at least two weeks in advance of the Steering Committee 

meeting to the Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership meeting facilitator. 

 

3. The project is indicated as a priority in the Lower St. Croix 10-year Comprehensive 

Watershed Management Plan. 

 

4. The project is in alignment with the Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership WBIF grant work 

plan.4 

 

5. The project meets all of the Gatekeeper Criteria (see page 95). 

 

Step 2: Steering Committee Evaluation  

The Steering Committee evaluates the project. Projects meeting these criteria will be weighted higher 

than those that do not. 

1. How project scores (the forms linked below are viewable on the LSCP website): 

a. CWMP Scoring Matrix 

b. Wetland Restoration 

c. Internal Loading Analyses 

d. Targeting Analyses 

 
4 If a partner is proposing a project that is not in alignment with the Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership (LSCP) 
WBIF grant work plan, the partner must first request and receive a work plan amendment prior to submitting an 
application for LSCP WBIF funding consideration. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 28

https://clflwd.org/documents/LSCProjectRequestForm_TEMPLATE.docx
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5b0dadc59772aeb1df30d0d8/t/5f9aea83cfd1f030c1d3bb17/1603988135744/Final+Lower+St+Croix+Comp+Plan+OCT+2020.pdf
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.lsc1w1p.org%2Fplan-forms&data=05%7C01%7Ctom.dietrich%40co.washington.mn.us%7C8fadae1d188448a08bdd08daf418fdf9%7Caf7dac79e089421cab43010f4aa6d917%7C0%7C0%7C638090686033358926%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=drk2%2BYzhKFvg7GiyliPIhsAt7U8D2cgu2ydK8TS2boc%3D&reserved=0
https://clflwd.org/documents/Attach3_CWMPAppendixCProjectScoringMatrix.docx
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fclflwd.org%2Fdocuments%2FAttach4_WetlandRestorationScoringMatrix.docx&data=05%7C01%7Ctom.dietrich%40co.washington.mn.us%7C8fadae1d188448a08bdd08daf418fdf9%7Caf7dac79e089421cab43010f4aa6d917%7C0%7C0%7C638090686033358926%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=OU2Wk%2FlP9UOoQ28%2FO9dhUc1EKKBevRL3w797SwViGtQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.clflwd.org%2Fdocuments%2FAttach6_InternalAnalysisSelectionCriteria.docx&data=05%7C01%7Ctom.dietrich%40co.washington.mn.us%7C8fadae1d188448a08bdd08daf418fdf9%7Caf7dac79e089421cab43010f4aa6d917%7C0%7C0%7C638090686033358926%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1%2FRZlEbKVTzjIjah8AQzeP1WmgjW0fVgugO9DgZlPM0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.clflwd.org%2Fdocuments%2FAttach6_InternalAnalysisSelectionCriteria.docx&data=05%7C01%7Ctom.dietrich%40co.washington.mn.us%7C8fadae1d188448a08bdd08daf418fdf9%7Caf7dac79e089421cab43010f4aa6d917%7C0%7C0%7C638090686033358926%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1%2FRZlEbKVTzjIjah8AQzeP1WmgjW0fVgugO9DgZlPM0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.clflwd.org%2Fdocuments%2FAttach7_TargetingEligibilityCriteria.docx&data=05%7C01%7Ctom.dietrich%40co.washington.mn.us%7C8fadae1d188448a08bdd08daf418fdf9%7Caf7dac79e089421cab43010f4aa6d917%7C0%7C0%7C638090686033358926%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=vyQOUhCO67kYPT3pKhb4Z7rwsrw2R9fFaha%2BkoEzz1c%3D&reserved=0


 

5 
 

2. The applicant is in good standing with the LSC (e.g., has delivered and/or closed previous 

projects in a timely fashion). 

 

3. The project will take place in the current grant cycle. 

 

4. The project will utilize funds on the cusp of expiration. 

 

Step 3: Steering Committee Recommendations  

The Steering Committee makes a recommendation. Recommendations require a simple majority vote, 

(50% plus one of partners attending the meeting). Only a single representative from each entity may 

cast a vote. If the recommendation is for approval, Step 4 is followed for project requests equal or 

exceeding $50,000.  Skip to Step 5 for project requests less than $50,000.  

• If the project was not selected for funding, a Partner may pursue an Appeal. 

The Fiscal Agent and a designated member of the Steering Committee will keep an ongoing 

list of projects that have been approved/recommended. 

 

• If a project is not selected for funding, an applicant may resubmit the same project at a 

future date for consideration. Re-submitted projects will be evaluated as described in Step 

2. 

 

Step 4: Policy Committee 

The Policy Committee considers the project.  

• Prior to making any recommendations, the Policy Committee will review the Conflict of 

Interest Policy, as part of the agenda, requesting members to disclose any actual, potential, 

or perceived conflicts.  

 

• The Policy Committee will make a decision on projects rankings, based on merit, either 

choosing to uphold Steering Committee recommendations or modifying the Steering 

Committee’s recommendations based on its own analysis.  

 

• Recommendations of approval from the Policy Committee require a super majority vote of 

the members attending the meeting (2/3 or 66%). 

 

• A recommendation for approval advances the project to Step 5. 

 

Step 5: Fiscal Agent. 

The fiscal agent will take action on the project request for funding. If approved, the fiscal agent executes 

a subcontract with the partner sponsor who submitted the application.  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 29



 

6 
 

 

Step 6: Post Project Administrative Steps 

• Upon completion of the project, the partner fills out the Invoice Template, and submits it to the 

fiscal agent.5 

 

• The fiscal agent and the Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership Progress Reporter review the 

project invoice and work through any remaining items with the project partner. 

 

• Upon project completion, partners are required to provide an update to the Steering 

Committee, who will subsequently review and accept final documentation. 

 

• When all reimbursement documentation has been determined to be complete and approved by 

the Steering Committee, the project payment is processed at the fiscal agent’s next regularly 

scheduled meeting. 

 

Appeals 

An eligible partner who submitted an application that was not recommended for funding or full funding 

by the Steering Committee may appeal directly to the Policy Committee. The partner requesting the 

appeal will be expected to: 

• At least one week prior to the Policy Committee meeting, submit a written memo, quantitative 

demonstration of the value or merit of the project. 

 

• Attend the Policy Committee meeting in which the appeal will be considered. 

 

Exceptions and Additional Requirements 

Non-structural Projects: These projects are not subject to review by the Steering Committee at pre-

determined evaluation meetings (February, May, August). 

• Projects will be eligible for funding already allocated to each soil and water conservation district.  

Projects will be reviewed against prioritization criteria listed in the non-structural agricultural 

practices policy (See the CWMP, pg. 40), and a decision will be made by a committee of: 

 

o The agronomy outreach specialist;  

 

o The Lower St. Croix Watershed Partner(s); and,  

 

o Applicable soil and water conservation district. 

 

 
5 If a partner wishes to receive partial payments for a particular project, the partner must execute a project 
assurance that is acceptable to both the fiscal agent and the Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR). 
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 30

https://clflwd.org/documents/InvoiceTemplateJune72021.xlsx
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fclflwd.org%2Fdocuments%2FAttach3_CWMPAppendixCProjectScoringMatrix.docx&data=05%7C01%7Ctom.dietrich%40co.washington.mn.us%7C8fadae1d188448a08bdd08daf418fdf9%7Caf7dac79e089421cab43010f4aa6d917%7C0%7C0%7C638090686033358926%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PoIyJjGpfwlfXwmIJDiOjtjaK18HYqMNFU5uov4LcpQ%3D&reserved=0
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5b0dadc59772aeb1df30d0d8/t/5f9aea83cfd1f030c1d3bb17/1603988135744/Final+Lower+St+Croix+Comp+Plan+OCT+2020.pdf


 

7 
 

 

Urban Non-structural Street Sweeping: These projects are not subject to review by the Steering 

Committee at pre-determined evaluation meetings (February, May, August). Incentive funding will only 

be available to communities with enhanced street sweeping plans approved by the LSCP. 

• For projects (including studies), the project proposer is required to bring an information item to 

the Steering Committee, notifying the Committee of the project’s completion, and any related 

reports or data. 

 

Contracts: Contracts dealing with the employment or continued funding of Lower St. Croix Partnership 

staff are not subject to the Project Evaluation and Approval Process outlined in this document. Contracts 

will be handled between the Fiscal Agent and the contracting party independently. 

 

Interim Applications: Partners may submit a written request to the LSCP Progress Reporter that their 

projects be reviewed at the next scheduled monthly Steering Committee meeting. The partner must 

demonstrate that the project review cannot wait until the next scheduled review meeting, in 

accordance with the LSCP’s Fast-Track Project Policy, adopted April 25, 2022.  The Progress Reporter will 

forward the request to the Planning Team, who will review the request, either in a special meeting, or 

through other communications, and determine if the project warrants a fast-track designation and 

should advance to the Steering Committee.   

If the Steering Committee reviews the interim application outside of the approved calendar, the review 

process will be identical to the process outlined for other project reviews. 

 

Lower St. Croix Fast-Track Project Policy 
 

“Beginning on July 1, 2022, the Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership will use a stream-lined approach 

to review and recommend projects for funding. Projects submitted by participating entities will be 

ranked and reviewed two to three times per year in spring, summer, and fall.  

On occasion, however, the Partnership recognizes that high value projects may arise that are well-

aligned with the goals of our Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan but require more timely 

review in order to be completed within the calendar year. For time-sensitive projects such as these, local 

partners may request that their project be reviewed at the next scheduled monthly steering committee 

meeting.  

All projects that are recommended for funding by the Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership will be 

required to follow the same process, regardless of the timing for their review. This includes: completing 

a project request form and self-evaluation; submitting the project for steering committee and/or policy 

committee review; executing a contract for funding with the fiscal agent; and filling out and submitting 

an invoice template to the fiscal agent upon project completion.  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 31



 

8 
 

Projects will only be fast-tracked if they cannot wait until the next scheduled review meeting and their 

benefit would significantly outweigh that of future projects that will be considered. 

This policy should not be construed to include “emergency projects”, as defined by Minnesota Statute 

103D.615. The term “emergency project” is strictly applicable to watershed districts and counties during 

a declared State of Emergency. The Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership does not have authority 

under Minnesota Statute to declare a State of Emergency nor complete “emergency projects.””  

 

Conflict of Interest Policy 
 

This policy follows, supports, and expands upon items outlined in the Lower St. Croix Comprehensive 

Watershed Management Plan Policy Committee Bylaws, adopted January 25, 2021 (Article II, Subsection 

3). 

Definition  

A conflict of interest, whether actual, potential, or perceived occurs “when a person has actual or 

apparent duty or loyalty to more than one organization and the competing duties or loyalties may result 

in actions which are adverse to one or both parties. A conflict of interest exists even if no unethical, 

improper or illegal act results from it.” (Office of Grants Management, Policy 08-01).   

According to the Office of Grants Management Policy 08-01: 

• ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST: An actual conflict of interest occurs when a decision or action 

would compromise a duty to a party without taking immediate appropriate action to eliminate 

the conflict. 

 

• POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST: A potential conflict of interest may exist if a grant reviewer 

has a relationship, affiliation, or other interest that could create an inappropriate influence if the 

person is called on to make a decision or recommendation that would affect one or more of 

those relationships, affiliations, or interests. 

 

• PERCEIVED CONFLICT OF INTEREST: A perceived conflict of interest is any situation in which a 

reasonable third party would conclude that conflicting duties or loyalties exist. 

Application 

No LSC member or representative shall participate personally through decisions, approval, disapproval, 

recommendation, the rendering of advice, investigation, or otherwise in any proceeding, application, 

request for a ruling or other determination, contract, award, cooperative agreement, claim, controversy, 

or other particular matter in which award funds (including program income or other funds generated by 

federally-funded activities) are used, where to his/her knowledge, he/she or his/her immediate families, 

partners, organization other than a public agency in which he/she is serving as an officer, director, 

trustee, partner, or employee, or any person or organization with whom he/she is negotiating or has any 

arrangement concerning prospective employment has a financial interest of less than an arms-length 

transaction. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 32



 

9 
 

In the use of agency project funds, personnel and other officials shall avoid any action which might 

result in, or create the appearance of: 

• Using his or her official position for private gain. 

• Giving preferential treatment to any person. 

• Losing complete independence or impartiality. 

• Making an official decision outside of official channels. 

• Affecting adversely the confidence of the public in the integrity of the government or the 

program. 

Implementation 

During a Policy Committee meeting, and prior to the Policy Committee’s review or discussion of any 

items that involves a grant or funding decision/recommendation, an agenda item will be included to 

identify and/or disclose actual or perceived conflicts of interest. During this agenda item, the Policy 

Committee Chair will review the Definition of a Conflict of Interest, and request that meeting 

participants disclose any actual, potential, or perceived conflicts. It is the participant’s obligation to be 

familiar with the LSC’s Conflict of Interest Policy, and to disclose any conflicts of interest. A disclosure 

does not automatically result in a participant being removed from the meeting or process, only that the 

conflict has been identified.   

 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 33



Non-Structural Ag BMP Policy          adopted 5/25/2022 

Activity 4 – Non-Structural Ag BMP 

Process of Submitting Project Requests  

Funds will annually be allocated to each District based on the percentage of acres the LSCW encompasses to provide 
program payments to administer within their county for the non-structural ag BMP practices, allocation as follows: 

1.  Anoka SWCD $10,000 
2. Chisago SWCD $40,000 
3. Isanti SWCD $10,000 
4. Pine SWCD $10,000 
5. Washington CD $30,000 

Districts wishing to utilize WBIF funds for implementing agricultural non-structural BMPs will submit a project request 
form for the allocation of funding to the Fiscal Agent (Chisago SWCD), including local approved non-structural ag BMP 
cost share policy and JAA with submittal. 

Individual Districts will approve or disapprove contracts with interested land occupiers according to their local policies 
and following the most up to date Grants Administration Manual and the Watershed-Based Implementation Funding 
Policy –FY20-21.  A District may request additional funds if available in another District of which funds are not 
encumbered, through a request to the Chisago SWCD and approval of the contributing District. 

The Districts will abide by the most up to date Grants Administration Manual and the Watershed-Based Implementation 
Funding Policy –FY20-21 guidelines and their local policies.  This attachment will be updated to reflect future Watershed-
Based Implementation Funding Policies. 

Processing Applications - Conservation staff will use their local non-structural ag BMP policy to rank and select non-
structural BMP projects to be submitted to the District the project is located in.  Reference Section VII.B of the Lower St. 
Croix Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan for targeting process and Appendix C for scoring projects. 

Ag Priority Areas 

● Tier 1: Rock Lake, Rock Creek, Sunrise River and tributaries, St. Croix River tributaries with direct discharge (Rock, 
Rush, Goose, Lawrence, Browns, and Trout Brook, Creeks, and small creeks south of Lawrence Creek and north 
of Valley Branch).  

● Tier 2: lakes that drain to St. Croix tributaries.  
o Rush and Goose Lakes in Chisago County  
o Forest and Comfort Lakes in CLFLWD (drain to Sunrise River)  

● Projects may also occur at other priority waters as identified in Table 5-2 and Table 5-3 of the LSC CWMP. The 
project ranking subcommittee will also consider CWMP Figure 5-1 Vulnerable Groundwater in Agricultural Areas 
when evaluating potential projects.  

Program Requirements 

Cost share is available for implementing non-structural BMPs that have erosion control or water quality improvement 
benefits in accordance with the Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) Watershed-Based Implementation Funding 
Policy –FY20-21.  Non-structural BMPs will be planned and implemented according to the Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) standards and specifications found on the Electronic Field Office Technical Guide (EFOTG). 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 34

Home
Text Box
Attachment D



Cost Share Contract:  

A contract between the District and land occupier receiving state funds is required to provide a legal standing to ensure 
practices are installed and maintained according to approved standards and specifications. 

All practices must be consistent with USDA Natural Resources Conservation Services Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG) 
or be professionally accepted engineering or ecological practices. Design standards for all practices must include 
specifications for operation and maintenance for the effective life of the given practice, including an inspection schedule 
and procedure.  Technical services will be provided by local SWCD staff with appropriate job approval authority; 
conservation partners with appropriate job approval authority (such as: Natural Resources Conservation Service); or a 
NRCS approved Technical Service Provider (TSP).  Non-structural vegetative practices must follow the Native Vegetation 
Establishment and Enhancement Guidelines from WBIF policy. 

Review of proposed practice(s) with client including technical information (implementation requirements, seed mixes, 
design quantities, O&M, etc.) and programmatic requirements (length of contract/lifespan, cost share rates, maximum 
payments, noncompliance, etc.) and agreement of client will be required prior to submitting the project for 
recommendation to the local SWCD.   

The local SWCD from the county the practice is implemented in will be responsible for the operation and maintenance 
(O&M) inspections.  

Incentives to install or adopt land management practices must have a minimum duration of 3 years.  Contract 
compliance will follow the most up to date Grants Administrative Manual and the District’s local policy.   

Rates and General Requirements: 

Cost share rates will comprise of a flat per acre rate for all non-structural BMP practices based on the Minnesota NRCS 
Practice Average Annual Cost Information Spreadsheet FY2018 and the Practice Cost Information Workbook Tool 2019 
found in the EFOTG.  Practices will be planned for 3 years of implementation and the maximum total WBIF per contract 
will follow local policies.  Local policies will dictate whether annual or one-time payments will be made to land occupiers.  
Practices may be implemented on the same acres for the 3 year duration (required for nutrient management and 
prescribed grazing), practices may move with the rotation but must implement the same amount or greater acres in 
years 2 and 3, or two or more practices may be implemented on the same acres for the 3 year period alternating years 
(ex. Plant cover crops after corn harvest, no-till soybeans the following year).  Eligibility requirements include that 
planned practices are newly adopted; not previously implemented on the acres by the current owner/operator and did 
not previously meet NRCS standards and specifications. 

● Cover Crops - Must follow NRCS Practice Standard 340 
o 1-2 species $50/acre/year 
o 3+ species $60/acre/year 
o Implementation can occur on different acres within the three-year contract or on the same acres 

consecutively 
● Nutrient Management - Must follow NRCS Practice Standard 590 

o $20/acre/year 
o Implemented on the same acres annually 

● Prescribed Grazing - Must follow NRCS Practice Standard 528 
o $40/acre/year 
o Implemented on the same acres annually 

● Residue and Tillage Management – No-Till & Strip Till - Must follow NRCS Practice Standard 329 for No-
Till/Strip-Till 

o $20/acre/year 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 35



o Implementation can occur on different acres within the three-year contract or on the same acres 
consecutively 

● Residue and Tillage Management - Conservation Tillage - Must follow NRCS Practice Standard 345 for 
Conservation Till 

● $10/acre/year 
● Residue cover following a corn crop at the time of planting the subsequent crop must be 60% or greater.   
● Residue cover following a soybean crop at the time of planting the subsequent crop must be 30% or 

greater.   
● Residue cover following a small grain crop at the time of planting the subsequent crop must be 60% or 

greater.   
● Implementation can occur on different acres within the three-year contract or on the same acres 

consecutively 
 

Project Selection Criteria 

Districts will follow their respective non-structural ag BMP policy for selecting projects of which are to be located in the 
ag priority locations and following the Grants Administration Manual and the Watershed-Based Implementation Funding 
Policy –FY20-21.  Reference Section VII.B of the Lower St. Croix Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan for 
targeting process and Appendix C for scoring projects. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 36



Non-Structural Urban BMP Policy       Adopted May 25, 2022  

Activity 4 – Non-Structural Urban BMP 

Program Summary  

Canopy cover, sweeping frequency, timing of sweeping, and sweeper type can reduce sediment and phosphorus 
discharges from urban areas.  Increasing late spring, early summer, and fall sweepings in catchments with medium or 
high tree canopy cover reduces the greatest amount of phosphorus discharging from streets.   The Lower St. Croix 
Partnership provides funds to implement increased sweeping in late spring, early summer, and fall in catchments with 
medium or high tree canopy and directly flowing to priority water resources.  Participating communities will be 
responsible for implementing increased sweeping in late spring, early summer and fall in targeted areas identified in an 
enhanced sweeping plan.  

To qualify for a grant, communities must have an approved enhanced sweeping plan completed by the Lower St. Croix 
Partnership.   

Enhanced Street Sweeping Plan  

The LSCP will conduct an Enhanced Street Sweeping Evaluation at the request of communities interested in participating 
in the enhanced street sweeping grant program.  To initiate the evaluation, a community must apply to have a street 
sweeping study completed with the intent to adopt changes to their street sweeping operations. Enhanced Street 
Sweeping Evaluations will be completed for a cost between $3,000-$5,000 each, depending on scale.   During the 
evaluation, the community will be requested to provide information regarding the existing sweeping operations. The 
draft plan will be reviewed with community staff or the appointed representative for the community.  

Sweeping plans will be developed utilizing GIS with the following steps: 1. identify direct drainage to priority catchments, 
2. Identify current sweeping frequency in the direct drainage catchments, 3. Identify canopy cover density (low, 
medium, high) based on tree canopy assessment protocol, 4. Identify increased sweeping frequency in late spring, early 
summary and fall in medium and high-density canopy cover areas directly draining to priority water resources, 4. 
Produce color coded street maps that indicate sweeping frequencies in late spring, early summer, and fall; summarize 
recommended enhanced sweeping curb miles, and identify total cost estimate for implementing enhanced street 
sweeping.   

$40,000 has been identified for developing these plans in the LSC Watershed Partnership Watershed Based 
Implementation Funding work plan under Activity 8: Targeting Analyses 

Process of Submitting Project Requests  

Once a LSC WP JPA partner self-scores their project, submit to the Steering Committee (SC).  The SC will review projects 
and make recommendations to the Lower St. Croix Policy Committee (PC), which in turn makes a recommendation to 
the Fiscal Agent (Chisago SWCD).  Final funding decisions are made by the Chisago SWCD.  

The Districts will abide by the Grants Administration Manual and the Watershed-Based Implementation Funding Policy –
FY20-21 guidelines and their local policies. 

Processing Applications   

LSC WP JPA staff will use Appendix C to rank and select urban non-structural BMP projects to be recommended to the 
SC.   Reference Section VII.B of the Lower St. Croix Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan for targeting process. 

 

Urban Priority Areas:  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 37

Home
Text Box
Attachment E



● Rush Creek (Rush City)  
● Goose Creek (Harris)  
● Sunrise River (North Branch, Stacy, Wyoming)  
● St. Croix River (Taylors Falls, Marine on the St. Croix, Stillwater, and MSCWMO cities including Afton, Bayport, 

Baytown Township, Lakeland, Lakeland Shores, Lake St. Croix Beach, Oak Park Heights, St. Mary’s Point, 
Stillwater, and West Lakeland Township).  

Program Requirements 

Cost share is available for implementing non-structural BMPs that have erosion control or water quality improvement 
benefits in accordance with the Board of Water and Soil Resource’s (BWSR) Watershed-Based Implementation Funding 
Policy –FY20-21.  Non-structural BMPs will be planned and implemented according to the Minnesota Stormwater 
Manual and will follow the most up to date Grants Administrative Manual. 

Cost Share Contract: A contract between the LSC WP JPA partner and land occupier receiving state funds is required to 
provide a legal standing to ensure practices are installed and maintained according to approved standards and 
specifications.  The LSC WP JPA will enter into one contract with each community for 3 years of the contract. 

The local LSC WP JPA partner from the county the practice is implemented in will be responsible for the operation and 
maintenance (O&M) inspections.  

Rates and General Requirements: 

The contracts will provide an annual incentive payment for the 3-years. The rate, set by the Lower St. Croix Partnership 
allows for up to 50 miles per community per year (not to exceed $5,000 per year), with a program goal of sweeping 350 
curb miles per year.   

Tier 1 $100/curb-mile/year (complete the MPCA credit calculator based on curb miles swept and provide the report)  

Tier 2 $125/curb-mile/year (complete the MPCA credit calculator based on the tracking of weights, dates, and provide 
the report) 

To participate, communities will need to implement increased sweeping as prescribed by the adopted Enhanced Street 
Sweeping Plan.  Participating communities will be required to enter into a 3-year contract. After the three year 
enhanced sweeping payment for an area is complete, that area is no longer eligible for payments. The community may 
apply for incentive payments to expand enhanced sweeping in other areas identified in an enhanced sweeping plan. 

Annual payments will be made at the end of each year of the 3-year contract based on actual miles swept in the spring 
and fall within the enhanced street sweeping zones.  Communities will complete 3 years of implementation.  If a 
community fails to implement one of the years, they would be considered in contract non-compliance, and the SWCD 
who has a contract with them works to bring them into compliance. If they can not be brought into compliance, they are 
liable to the State (through the local government grantee) for up to 150% of the financial assistance received. 

Project Selection Criteria 

Districts will follow their respective non-structural urban BMP policy for selecting projects of which are to be located in 
the urban priority locations and following the Grants Administration Manual and the Watershed-Based Implementation 
Funding Policy –FY20-21.  Reference Section VII.B of the Lower St. Croix Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
for targeting process and Appendix C for scoring projects. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 38



Project Name |  LSCWP Tree Canopy Assessment Protocol Date | 7/15/22 

To / Contact info | 
Craig Mell, Chisago SWCD 
Mike Isensee, CMSCWD 

Cc / Contact info | LSCWP Subcommittee A8 Members 

From / Contact info | 
Paula Kalinosky, EOR 
Sarah Voje, EOR 

Regarding | Tree Canopy Assessment for Street Sweeping Prioritization – Final Report 

 

Tree Canopy Assessment Protocol for Enhanced Street Sweeping Prioritization 

In December 2021, the Lower St. Croix Water Partnership (LSCWP) hired EOR to develop 
methodology to assessment street corridor tree canopy for use in planning street sweeping practices. 
The methods described in this memo have been developed to help municipalities identify and 
prioritize areas within their jurisdiction for enhanced street sweeping practices using GIS data 
sources that are widely available and analysis methods that do not require advanced software or 
special training. The method was developed for the  LSCWP initiatives plan to improve water quality 
in the Lower St. Croix region. This plan includes goals for implementation of non-structural BMPs 
like street sweeping.  

 

1 Background and Definitions 

In this section we provide a brief summary of the rationale for enhanced street sweeping based along 
with a discussion of key terms. The information in the section is based on research conducted by the 
University of Minnesota in 2011-2013 for the Prior Lake, MN Street Sweeping Study (see References 
and Works Consulted). 

What is Enhanced Street Sweeping? 

Most municipalities sweep streets in the spring to remove accumulated sand and tracked sediment 
that collects during the winter months. This process is typically repeated in the fall to reduce leaf 
litter on street surfaces. Enhanced street sweeping is simply additional sweeping protocols that are 
completed for surface water quality protection and other potential benefits (Table 1).  

What is Street Corridor Tree Canopy? 

As a concept, street corridor tree canopy includes trees located within right-of-way areas and front 
yards or other areas that are likely to contribute leaf litter and duff to road surfaces. For the purpose 
of this the assessment outlined in this memo, street corridor tree canopy is defined as canopy cover 
located within the road right-of-way plus 10 feet. This choice is discussed further in Section 2.1.3 

Why Assess Street Corridor Tree Canopy Cover? 

Solids that collect on road surfaces include organic litter from trees like leaves, pollen, seeds, and 
other duff. These inputs to street surfaces are obvious during fall leaf drop but can be a significant 
source of nutrients in accumulated solids at other times during the growing season (Kalinosky, 2015).  

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 39

Home
Text Box
Attachment F



Aren’t Trees ‘Good’ for Water Quality?  

Yes, trees provide multiple benefits including reducing stormwater runoff, reducing pollutants in 
runoff, and moderating heat island impacts from impervious surfaces like roads in urban areas.  

 

Table 1. Benefits of street sweeping and factors that influence the effectiveness and cost-effectiveness of 
street sweeping programs.  

Benefits of Street Sweeping 
(Objectives) 

Factors that Influence: 
Accumulation of Solids on Road 

Surfaces 
Cost-Effectiveness of Street 

Sweeping 
• Aesthetics (clean streets) • Adjacent land use • Accumulated Solids: 

• BMP maintenance benefits (L) • Construction activity o Location of sweeping 

• Driver and pedestrian safety (S) • Local topography o Frequency of sweeping 

• Local flood control (clogged catch basins) • Roadway traffic volume o Timing of sweeping   

• Surface water quality  • Tree canopy density (This Study) • Objectives for Sweeping 

• Pavement management (L) • Weather 
• Sweeper 

Financing/Ownership 

 • Winter road practices • Sweeper Type  

 = Benefits, and implementation factors that are associated to tree canopy 
(L) = Sparse  research available 
(S) = Seasonal benefit 

 

2 Tree Canopy Assessment Methods 

Quantitative Assessment 
Tree canopy cover can be assessed quantitatively through geospatial analysis if mapped tree canopy 
cover data are available for the area of interest. In the method described in Section 2.1, street corridor 
areas are defined using road centerline data and right-of-way widths. Mapped tree canopy cover is 
then intersected with defined corridor areas to calculate a percent tree canopy cover over for each 
street. This assessment method is most efficient for municipalities located within the  7-County Twin 
Cities Metropolitan Area and other metropolitan areas for which high resolution land cover data are 
available (e.g., Duluth, Rochester).  

Parameters and recommended methods for quantitative assessment of tree canopy cover are 
discussed in Section 2.1. 

Qualitative Assessment 
For small municipalities or neighborhood-scale analysis, qualitative assessment of tree canopy cover 
may be more efficient than geospatial analysis and quantification. Tree canopy cover can be inspected 
visually using recent aerial photographs or other satellite imagery along with a visual guide to classify 
canopy cover at a neighborhood or development scale. This method is outlined in Section 2.2. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 40



2.1 Quantitative Assessment of Street Corridor Canopy using Geospatial Analysis 

2.1.1 Municipalities inside the 7-County Metropolitan Area (TCMA) 

For municipalities located with the TCMA, mapped tree canopy data are available in raster format 
through the Minnesota Geospatial Commons. The TCMA 1-Meter (horizontal resolution) Urban Tree 
Canopy Classification data  set distinguishes deciduous and coniferous tree canopy from buildings, 
bare soil, paved surfaces, and 7 other land cover classifications. 

This data set was developed in 2015 by the University of Minnesota Remote Sensing and Geospatial 
Analysis Laboratory for the purpose of evaluating existing tree canopy cover, particularly where tree 
canopy overhangs buildings, roads, parking areas and other impervious surfaces.  

Because tree canopy cover is not static – trees mature, are removed to develop land or because they 
are damaged, tree canopy density estimates developed using mapped canopy cover will include some 
inaccuracies. These are especially accentuated in areas of recent development. In the context of 
planning street sweeping, these inaccuracies are generally tolerable, though some manual correction 
may be needed where development has occurred few years before 2015 or after 2015. Examples of 
2015 TCMA mapped canopy vs. aerial imagery are shown in Figure 1. 

Other land cover data sets typically prioritize impervious surfaces to define roads, buildings, and 
other paved surfaces (e.g., TCMA High Resolution Land Cover) or to characterize land cover in urban 
areas using composite values. For example, urban areas are classified using percent impervious 
rating in the Minnesota Land Cover Classification System (MLCCS). The same areas may be classified 
as Low-, Medium-, or High-Intensity Developed land cover in the National Landcover Database 
(NLCD).  
 

2.1.2 Municipalities outside the TCMA 

For municipalities outside the 7-County TCMA, mapped tree canopy data are not readily available. 
Canopy data sets can be developed using false color imagery in combination with LiDAR data that 
has been processed to reveal bare earth points. This method was used  by the University of Minnesota 
to develop the TCMA 1-meter Urban Tree Canopy data set described in the previous section. While 
the data required to perform this analysis are available through various government agencies, the 
methodology requires advanced GIS analytics which are outside the scope of this protocol. Additional 
information about the methodology is available through the University of Minnesota Digital 
Conservancy: https://conservancy.umn.edu/handle/11299/183470mn 

See Section 2.2 for further discussion of tree canopy cover assessment for areas outside the 7-county 
TCMA. 

 

  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 41

https://conservancy.umn.edu/handle/11299/183470mn


2015 TCMA Mapped tree canopy cover data is most accurate in areas with mature trees where 
development has not occurred in the last decade. 

  
2021 Aerial Imagery (NAIP, Natural Color) in an area of 

mature tree canopy, Prior Lake, MN 
2021 Aerial Imagery with 2015 TCMA mapped tree canopy 

overlay shown in purple 

Tree canopy data may be out-of-date in areas developed few years before 2015 or after 2015  

  
2021 Aerial Imagery - In areas developed in 2015 or later, 
mapped tree canopy cover (purple) may include trees that 
have since been removed. 

2021 Aerial Imagery - In areas developed before 2015, 
mapped canopy cover (purple) may not be totally 
representative of current canopy cover. 

Figure 1. Comparison of aerial imagery and 2015 tree cover (TCMA High Resolution Land Cover Data). 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 42



2.1.3 Defining boundaries for assessment of street corridor tree canopy 

For assessing potential leaf litter and organic inputs to street surface, we recommend quantifying 
tree canopy at the roadway right-of-way distance plus an additional 10 feet. This recommendation is 
based on finding from the Prior Lake Street Sweeping Study (Kalinosky, et. al., 2013). When assessed 
at different buffer distances from the street, correlations between tree canopy cover and recovered 
pollutant loads tended to increase with increasing distance from the street up to about 20 feet from 
curb lines (or 10 feet from the right-of-way). Appendix B shows these results numerically and 
graphically. Figure 2 illustrates that the percentage of tree canopy increases significantly (3% to 
26%) when the curb line footprint is expanded by 20 feet. After 20 feet, the percentage of canopy 
cover increase is relatively small (i.e., 26% at 20 feet and 32% at 50 feet). 

Using the boundary width of the right-of-way distance plus an additional 10 feet was considered 
appropriate for the following reasons: 

• Reduced error in estimates compared to smaller assessment corridors – the data sets 
used in this assessment each contain some amount of error and error accumulates as 
data sets are clipped and intersected with one another. For raster data, like the tree 
canopy data used in this assessment, error will increase as feature scale approaches the 
raster resolution. 

• Extending the assessment boundary into front yard areas help account for leaves and 
organic litter transported to street surfaces by wind and runoff, rather than just what 
falls onto the street directly. 

• Many developed area retain wooded areas in backyard. Including areas like this, which 
are less likely to contribute organic litter to road surfaces when compared to front 
yards, may artificially inflate street corridor canopy estimates in some areas, especially  
newly developed areas. 

 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 43



Figure 2. Percent tree canopy cover quantified over and within variable distances from the curb line. 

Tree canopy cover within curb line ~3% Tree canopy cover within curb line plus 10 feet ~ 16%  

  
Tree canopy cover within curb line plus 20 feet ~ 26%  Tree canopy cover within curb line plus 50 feet ~32% 

  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 44



2.1.4 Geospatial Analysis for Assessment of Street Corridor Tree Canopy Cover 

There are several different methods that can be used to quantify tree canopy cover for defined 
corridors. A  limiting factor for all methods is availability of data sets characterizing the extents of 
tree canopy. Depending on what tree canopy data is available (if any) for the area of interest, the 
assessment will be more or less complex. The method summarized below is one that uses public data 
sets that are readily available and commonly used in water/natural resources  planning, analysis, and 
mapping. This method was chosen for its simplicity and adaptability of the end product for use in 
different street sweeping prioritization exercises.  

2.1.4.1 Recommended workflow for simple quantification of street corridor tree canopy cover.  

The workflow summarized below is shown diagrammatically in Figure 4. These are the Workflow 
steps: 

Identify and isolate candidate roads 
1) Where available, begin the analysis using road centerline data maintained by the municipality. If 

county or state-level data are used, the fist step is to refine the data set to eliminate roadways 
owned by other jurisdictional entities: 

A. Clip road centerline data  using  the applicable municipal boundary. 
B. Select roads segments by jurisdiction using the MNDOT Route System Code (‘ROUTE_SYS’ 

attribute) that is shown in Appendix C. The route system code for municipal streets is 
number ‘10’. Other route system codes (e.g., 05 Municipal State Aid Street) may be 
applicable depending on individual context.  

C. Inspect Road data, remove duplicate linework if coincident segments are present.  

Determine the extents of tree canopy quantification   
Using minimum (local ordinance) or typical right-of-way widths (Table 2), assign centerline buffer 
distances to define the extents of the tree canopy assessment.  

2) For road centerline data that do not include an attribute describing the functional classification 
OR the ROW width: 

A. Add a text field to classify road segments by functional class. Review data for attributes 
that can serve as a proxy for functional class (e.g., lane width, speed limit). 

B. If no suitable proxy attributes are included in the data, functional class can be added 
through visual inspection. It may be easier to identify primary throughfare or high 
capacity routes visually using satellite/aerial imagery in combination with roadway 
names. Remaining roads can then be assigned an ‘uncategorized’ function class (Table 2). 

C. Assign function class based on proxy attribute or manual selection.  
 

3) If road centerline data do include a functional class, but do not include ROW width data: 
A. Add a new double field, ‘ROW,’ to the attribute table in the municipal road data set defined 

in step 1C.  
B. Assign ROW width based on the function classification using minimum ROW widths from 

local zoning code, engineering standards, or the recommended values in Table 2.  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 45



Table 2. Recommended road centerline buffer distance for street corridor canopy assessment. 

Road Type (Functional Class) 
Typical ROW 
Width (feet) 

Assessment 
Boundary 

Recommended Centerline 
Buffer Distance 

Major or Minor Arterial 150 

ROW + 10 feet 
on either side  

85 feet 

Collector (neighborhood or other)  80 - 120 60 feet 

Commercial or Industrial Service Street 80 50 feet 

Local Road 50 - 60 40 feet 

Uncategorized (classification or 
suitable proxy attribute not available) 50 - 80 50 feet 

 
4) Calculate centerline buffer distance for canopy assessment  

A. Add a new double field, ‘Buffer’ to the road centerline data from step 3B. 
B. Select the ‘Buffer’ attribute field and assign values using the ‘Field Calculator’ tool. Set  the 

field value to = 0.5 *[ROW] + 10 (one-half the ROW width plus 10 feet).  
C. Geoprocessing – buffer the road segments layer using the ‘by field’ buffer distance 

assignment option. 

Table 3. Example of  intermediate buffer polygons (left) shortened road segments (middle), and refined 
buffer polygons (right) described in  steps 4C, 5A, and 6C. 

Initial buffer polygons (step 2D), 
Many points of overlap present Shortened road segment (step 3C) 

Refined buffer polygons (step 3D),  
Few points of overlap present 

   
 
Refine buffer polygons  
5) Buffering  line segments, like road centerline,  which intersect  one another, will produce  buffer 

polygons that overlap at intersections and road segment breaks. Buffer polygons should be 
‘cleaned’ to eliminate double counting tree canopy in the assessment. The following is one simple 
methods for clean polygon buffers.  

A. Intersect the road segment data from Step 1C with the buffer polygons created in step 4C. 
This will produce a road centerline data layer with all of the attributes assigned in steps 
3 and 4, but with breaks at intersections with buffer polygons as well as centerline 
intersections.  
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 46



6) Eliminate road segment within buffer overlap zones: 
A. Calculate the length of the road segments produced in the step 5A. 
B. Select all road segments that have a length less than or equal to the longest specified 

buffer distance calculated in step 4B. Delete these segments. 
C. Buffer the remaining road segments using the buffer distance attribute. This will produce 

buffer polygons with no overlap. Gaps on the order of 10 feet may be present at some 
locations, but for the purpose street sweeping prioritization, these gaps will not introduce 
significant error in canopy density estimates. 

Process tree canopy data 
7) The 7-County TCMA Urban Tree Canopy data set is quite large. To reduce processing times, clip 

the data set to the area of interest. 
A. Use ‘Extract by Mask’ to clip the TCMA tree canopy raster to the applicable jurisdictional 

boundary. 
B. Use the ‘Reclass’ tool to reclassify the ‘Value’ field, replacing the value ‘6’ for coniferous 

tree canopy with ‘1’ and reclassifying all other values as 0.  
C. (Optional) If available, burn in tree inventory points to the raster 

i. Use ‘Rasterize’ tool to assign all tree points as 1 and remaining points null or 0 
ii. Use ‘Raster Calculator’ to burn in or replace any pixels in the Tree Canopy Raster 

that have tree inventory points associated with them to 1, indicating tree 
presence.  

Calculate % canopy cover  
8) Overlay tree canopy data and buffer polygons to determine % canopy cover within each polygon.  

A. Using the buffer polygons created in step 6C and the reclassified tree canopy raster from 
step 7B (if using tree inventory data, use raster from 7C), run the ‘Zonal Statistics’ tool 
to calculate the count and sum of tree canopy cover within street corridor areas.  

B. Add a new field, ‘canopy, type = float, to the new layer produced in step 8A. 
C. Calculate the percent canopy per road polygon by taking area occupied by tree cover 

(sum) divided by the area of the road polygon (count). 

  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 47



Refine symbology  
9) Use symbology to highlight differences in street corridor canopy visually. An example is shown 

in Figure 3. 
 

Tree canopy raster produced through raster 
reclassification (step 7B) overlaid by buffer 
polygons (step 6C). 

Street corridor tree canopy buffer polygons, 
symbolized to show % tree canopy cover 
categorically (steps 8 & 9). 

  
Figure 3. Tree canopy raster overlaid by buffer polygons (left) and canopy cover buffer polygons with 
symbology applies to show canopy ratings visually (right). 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 48



 

Figure 4. Workflow diagram for simple quantification of street corridor tree canopy cover using geospatial analysis.  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 49



2.1.4.2 Recommended Data Sources for Geospatial Analysis of Tree Canopy 

The following data were used in developing the workflow outlined in Section 2.1.4.1. These data sources 
were chosen because are publicly available, are developed by reliable state and local agencies, and are 
commonly used in mapping and analysis.  

Table 4. Summary of recommended data sources for geospatial analysis of street corridor tree canopy cover. 
Tree Canopy 
Inside the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area 

Data/Source 
‘2015 Twin Cities Metropolitan Area (TCMA)Urban Tree Canopy Assessment, University 
of MN’ 
Download available on MN Geospatial Commons 

Format Raster, 8-bit GEOTIFF, 1m x 1m pixels 

Extent 7-County TCMA 

Description 
1-Meter high resolution urban land cover classification data set that is optimized for tree 
canopy mapping. In places where tree canopy overhangs an impervious surface such as a 
street, the canopy edge mapped rather than the impervious surface. 

Comments 

The data were developed using NAIP imagery from 2011 (fall) and 2015 (summer) and 
lidar from 2011. 
• Data accuracy is highest in areas with mature tree canopy. 
• Where development has occurred few years before 2015, canopy data may be less 

accurate and should be inspected by comparing to recent aerial photographs.  
• Data can be supplemented with local tree inventories where available. 

Note: High resolution land cover data for the TCMA is also available in an impervious surface-focused format 
which prioritizes impervious surface edges over canopy. This version can also be used to assess ROW canopy. 
Users should be aware that canopy covers values derived through the  geoprocessing using the impervious 
surface-focused version will be somewhat lower than those derived from the TCMA Urban Tree Canopy layer. 
Outside the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area 

Data/Source National Agricultural Imagery Program (NAIP) Color Infrared Imagery, raw 
LiDAR data for the area of interest 

Format Raster 

Extent County 

Description False color high-resolution imagery (1-meter or better) developed from aerial imagery 
acquired during the growing season. 

Comments 
Special methodology, see University of Minnesota Digital Conservancy:  
https://conservancy.umn.edu/handle/11299/183470mn  

Roadway Centerline Data Sets 

#1 choice 

Data maintained by the county of municipality of interest. Key attributes used in this 
analysis include: 

• jurisdiction (state, county, local, private) 
• municipal classification (e.g., arterial, collector, local) or the ROW width.  

#2 choice 
MnDOT Route Centerlines (Statewide). This data set is reliable, but some additional 
processing may be needed to isolate road of interest when compared to county or local 
data sets. 

Format Vector, typically polylines with breaks at intersections, start/end of curves, changes in 
jurisdiction or name, and at expansion/contraction in lane number 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 50

https://gisdata.mn.gov/dataset/base-treecanopy-twincities
https://conservancy.umn.edu/handle/11299/183470mn


Extent Varies depending on jurisdiction 

Description 
Typically shows centerlines of public and some private roads within extents of the data 
set. It may also include attributes to describe road type, number of lanes, length, name, 
jurisdiction of roadway, width, etc.  

Comments 
Road centerline data are available statewide and at the county level for most Minnesota 
counties through the Minnesota Geospatial Commons. Some municipalities maintain 
geospatial records of local, municipal roads that is available upon request.  

Municipal/Jurisdictional Boundary   

Data/Source 
‘City, Township, and Unorganized Territory in Minnesota’ 
MN DOT and Minnesota Geospatial Information Office 
Available through the MN Geospatial Commons 

Format Vector 

Extent Statewide 

Description Dataset represents the boundaries of cities, townships, and unorganized territories 
(CTUs) in Minnesota 

 

2.2 Visual  Assessment of Tree Canopy using Aerial Imagery 

For small municipalities, visual assessment of street corridor tree canopy may be more cost effective 
than geospatial analysis. Tree canopy cover characteristics tends to be fairly homogenous within 
development boundaries. Also, developments of similar age often concentrated geographically. 
Likewise,  zoning ordinances, which dictate allowable land cover changes by land use, often have the 
effect of producing large areas within which tree canopy characteristics are similar. These development 
patterns and the tree canopy characteristics associated with them are discernable on aerial imagery (see 
Figure 7 in Appendix A).  

Visual assessment, streets should be assessed at a development, neighborhood, or zoning scale (or 
combination thereof) using a categorical tree canopy rating to describe canopy cover. Canopy cover 
estimates, whether derived quantitatively as described in Section 2.1.4.1 or through Canopy cover 
estimates - whether derived quantitatively as described in Section 2.1.4.1 or through visual assessment, 
can be clipped or aggregated to derive average canopy cover for larger or small areas of interest using 
area-weighting. 

Visual examples of quantified street corridor canopy are provided in Appendix A: Guide for Visual 
Assessment of Street Corridor Tree Canopy. A recommended rating scale (low, moderate, medium, high, 
or very high) is paired with neighborhood-scale examples that are categorized by average percent tree 
canopy cover within the area shown.  

Canopy cover estimates or rating derived through this method can be added as an attribute to road 
centerline data sets and used in street sweeping prioritization exercises (Section 3). A sample workflow 
for integration of visual assessment in street sweeping prioritization is outline below. The workflow is 
shown diagrammatically in Figure 5 

 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 51

https://gisdata.mn.gov/dataset/bdry-mn-city-township-unorg


Workflow Summary 
Identify and isolate candidate roads 
1) See description in Section 2.1.4.1 

Group roads by land use zoning type (Optional)   
2) For visual assessment of tree canopy, it may be useful to assign a land use classification to road 

segment by intersecting municipal roads and municipal zoning boundaries. This field can be used to 
refine selections in step 3.  

Assign Tree Canopy Rating 
3) For visual assessment of tree canopy cover, NAIP true color aerial imagery is preferred to: 

A. Add a new text field, ‘Canopy’ to the road centerline layer. 
B. Select roads within areas are that have similar tree canopy cover characterizes and assign a 

canopy rating using the visual comparisons provided in Appendix A. 
Repeat Step 3B as needed until all roads have been assigned a tree canopy rating. 

 
Figure 5. Workflow diagram for using visual assessment of street corridor tree canopy to associate canopy 
cover rating with municipal road segments. 
  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 52



2.2.1 Recommended Data Sources for Visual Assessment of Tree Canopy 

The following data sources are recommended for visual assessment of tree canopy cover. 
Table 5. Summary of recommended data sources for geospatial analysis of street corridor tree canopy cover. 

Aerial Imagery   

Data/Source National Agricultural Imagery Program (NAIP), True Color Imagery1 

Format Raster 

Extent Statewide by County 

Description NAIP Imagery is available through the USDA: https://naip-usdaonline.hub.arcgis.com/  

Boundary Layer (Optional) 

Data/Source 

Data layer representing boundaries that characterize land areas within the municipality 
such as drainage, zoning, or development boundaries may be useful in visual assessment 
of tree canopy cover. 
This type of data is typically available through the local agencies (city, county, watershed 
district, etc.). 

Description Typically vector format. 
1  The same imagery may be available at a statewide extent as ‘color FSA’ imagery through a WMS server. Note that county-

level imagery available through WMS servers tends to favor leaf-off imagery (flown during the spring or fall) any may be 
difficult to use for the purpose of assessing tree canopy cover. For more information on imager available through WMS 
servers see Minnesota Geospatial Image Service: 
 https://www.mngeo.state.mn.us/chouse/wms/geo_image_server.html 

 

3 Using Tree Canopy Cover Data to Identify Priority Area for Street Sweeping 

Outside of additional context, street corridor tree canopy cover data alone would not define priority 
street sweeping zones. Canopy cover density occurs across a continuum and even where there is stark 
contrast in canopy cover density, other factors like direct connectivity between streets and surface 
waters, may provide a context that makes sweeping in lower canopy density areas more beneficial or 
more cost-effective than sweeping in high canopy density areas. 

When used in combination with other data like, storm sewer or BMP catchment boundaries, surface 
water drainage areas, zoning or neighborhood boundaries, canopy cover provides a means to rank and 
prioritize areas for street sweeping. This can be done using geospatial analysis by intersecting the 
feature layer of interest (e.g., drainage boundaries) with street corridor canopy polygons derived 
through quantitative (Section 2.1.4.1) or qualitative (Section2.2) assessment. Area-weighting can be 
used to calculate an average street corridor canopy cover at the overlay feature scale. Feature areas can 
then be prioritized by average tree canopy cover ratings as shown in Figure 6. 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 53

https://naip-usdaonline.hub.arcgis.com/
https://www.mngeo.state.mn.us/chouse/wms/geo_image_server.html


 
Figure 6. City of Forest Lake sweeping zones based developed through overlay of lake management areas, 
storm sewer catchments, and tree canopy cover. Area with high connectivity to surface waters and/or high 
canopy covers were prioritized for increased sweeping frequency.   

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 54



4 Summary 

I. Mapped tree canopy cover can be used to quantify tree canopy density for areas that are most 
likely to contribute leaf litter and duff to municipal street surfaces.  
• Where mapped canopy cover data are available (7-County TMCA), this analysis is simple, 

but additional data and data processing are required to perform the same analysis in other 
parts of the state.  

• Manual correction of data may be needed in areas of recent development 
• The accuracy of this method is sufficient for use in planning street sweeping; however 

additional parameters, such as water resource planning priorities or pre-defined routes, 
are needed to rank or prioritize areas for sweeping. 

II. For small study areas, visual assessment of tree canopy cover using aerial imagery may a more 
efficient way to estimate street corridor tree canopy density for the purpose of planning street 
sweeping.  

III. Tree canopy density ratings can be paired with drainage boundaries or other data sets that 
inform  street sweeping objectives to identify and prioritize area of higher tree canopy cover 
for high frequency street sweeping. 
 

5 References and Works Consulted 

EOR, 2018, for the Comfort Lake-Forest Lake Watershed District; City of Forest Lake Street Sweeping 
Management Plan, http://ci.forest-lake.mn.us/documentcenter. 

Kalinosky, P., 2015. Quantifying Solids and Nutrient Recovered Through Street Sweeping in a Suburban 
Watershed. Master’s Thesis, University of Minnesota 

Kalinosky, P., Baker, L., Hobbie, S., Bintner, R., Buyarski, C., 2013. User Support Manual: Estimating Nutrient 
Removal by Enhanced Street Sweeping, University of Minnesota for Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency (MPCA). 

 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 55



Appendix A: Guide for Visual Assessment of Street Corridor Tree Canopy  

For some municipalities, zoning boundaries may serve as a proxy for tree canopy assessment. Street corridor tree canopy tends to be most dense in 
older residential neighborhoods with mature trees in front yards and least dense  in commercial industrial areas where trees tend to be less 
mature and laid out in easily discernable geometries. Areas of new development tend to have the least dense street corridor canopy. 

 
Figure 7. USDA-NRCS-NCGC Digital Ortho Quad County Mosaic, 1Meter, Typical tree canopy characteristics at the municipal zoning scale. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 56



Tree Canopy Density: Low (<5%)  Assessment Boundary:  Right-of-Way + 10 feet. 

Area-weighted Average Density ~ 3% Area-weighted Average Density = < 1% 

 

 

Area-weighted Average Density ~ 2% 

 
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 57



Tree Canopy Density:  Moderate  (5%-10% )  Assessment Boundary:  Right-of-Way + 10 feet. 

Area-weighted Average Density ~ 8% Area-weighted Average Density ~ 6% 

 

 

Area-weighted Average Density ~7% 

 
  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 58



Tree Canopy Density:  Medium (10%-15% )  Assessment Boundary:  Right-of-Way + 10 feet. 

Area-weighted Average Density ~ 10% Area-weighted Average Density ~ 13% Area-weighted Average Density ~ 11% 

   

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 59



Tree Canopy Density:  High (15%-25%)  Assessment Boundary:  Right-of-Way + 10 feet. 

Area-weighted Average Density ~ 21% Area-weighted Average Density ~19% 

  
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 60



Tree Canopy Density:  Very High  (≥25% )  Assessment Boundary:  Right-of-Way + 10 feet. 

Area-weighted Average Density ~ 42% Area-weighted Average Density ~ 40% 

  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 61



APPENDIX B : The Influence of Street Corridor Canopy on Solids 
Collected from Street Surfaces – Section from the Prior Lake Street 
Sweeping Study 

The mass of recovered solids collected per sweep increased with increasing street corridor tree canopy 
cover and decreased with increasing sweeping frequency (Table 6). On an annual basis, the mass of 
recovered solids increased with both increasing street corridor tree canopy and increasing sweeping 
frequency (Table 7).  
 

Table 6. Average dry solids collected per sweep by route (lb/lane-mile) 
Sweeping Interval Low Canopy Medium Canopy High Canopy 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
  

Fr
eq

ue
nc

y 28 days 0.055 0.062§ 0.121† 

14 days 0.044 0.065 0.086 

7 days 0.041 0.055 0.053 

Table 7. Average dry solids collected per year by route (lb/lane-mile) 

Sweeping Interval Low Canopy Medium Canopy High Canopy 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
  

Fr
eq

ue
nc

y 28 days 195 220§ 429† 

14 days 156 231 305 

7 days 145 195 188 

§Route originally classified as ‘medium’ canopy, but quantified canopy cover was closer to ‘low’ canopy routes. 
†Route originally classified as ‘high’ canopy, but quantified canopy cover was closer to ‘medium’ canopy routes. 

 
On an annual basis, street corridor tree canopy cover was a significant predictor of recovered total 
phosphorus (Figure 8). 

 

 
Figure 8. Average total phosphorus recovered per year vs. percent street corridor tree canopy cover  for the nine 
street sweeping routes in the Prior Lake Street Sweeping Study.  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 62



Street corridor tree canopy cover was a significant predictor of recovered total phosphorus for data 
points in 6 of the 9 months assessed; and a significant predictor of coarse organic solids and total 
nitrogen recovered in all months (March – November), (Table 8).  

Table 8. Months for which street corridor tree canopy cover (%) and sweeping frequency were significant predictors 
of recovered loads, Prior Lake Street Sweeping Study.  

Load Type 
(lb/curb-mile) 

Months for which each factor was a significant predictor of  the total load1,2  

% Street Corridor Canopy Cover Average sweeping interval3 

Total Dry Solids Oct, Nov Apr-Jun, Aug, Sep, Nov 

Coarse Organic Solids4 Mar-Nov (all) Apr, Sep 

Fine Solids Oct Apr-Jun, Aug, Oct, Nov 

Total P May, Jun, Aug, Sep, Oct, Nov  Mar-May, Sep, Nov 

Total N Mar-Nov (all) Sep 
1 Data include sweepings in March through November. Data were sparse for the months December though January. 
2 Regression analysis, α=0.05 significance level.  
3 Monthly, bi-weekly, or weekly sweeping intervals. 
4 Component of street sweepings = floatable solids with diameter > 2mm. Organic litter with diameter < 2 mm were included 

in the ‘fine solids’ component of sweepings  along with other soil-like particles. 
 
 

When assessed at different buffer distances from the street, correlations between tree canopy cover 
and  recovered loads tended to increase with increasing distance from the street. The increase in 
correlation typically leveled off at about 20 feet from curb lines.  

 

 
Figure 9. Pearson correlations for canopy cover vs. recover load (annual) for different canopy cover assessment 
boundaries and recovered load types.  
 

  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 63



APPENDIX C: Road Classifications and ROW Widths 

Road centerline shapefiles developed by the Minnesota Department of Transportation include a route 
classification attribute, ‘ROUTE_SYS,’ which contains the route system codes shown below. The full 
document summarizing MDNOT route system descriptions is available on the MNDOT website. 

 
 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 64

http://www.dot.state.mn.us/tda/Route_System_Descriptions.pdf
http://www.dot.state.mn.us/tda/Route_System_Descriptions.pdf


 
Table 9. Survey of minimum right-of way width by road classification for three TCMA municipalities. 

Road Type/Functional Class Minimum ROW Width (feet) Source 

Arterial 150 A 

Arterial 100 - 150 C 

Collector 80 - 120 C 

Collector 80 - 100 A 

Collector Streets 150 B 

Commercial or Industrial Service Street 80 C 

Street with Medians 80 B 

Residential, High-density  70 C 

Residential, Multi-family 66 C 

Residential, Single family high 60 C 

Local Road 50 - 60 A 

Residential Public Minor Streets 60 B 

Half Street 30 A 

A. City of Inver Grove Heights, MN, Code of Ordinances. 
B. City of Forest Lake Engineering Design Standards, 2022 
C. City of Lake Engineering Specifications, 2022.  

 

 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 65



Appendix to the 2022-23 Annual Plan of Work 
Lower St. Croix Fast Track Project Policy 

 

Beginning on July 1, 2022, the Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership will use a stream-lined approach to 
review and recommend projects for funding. Projects submitted by participating entities will be ranked 
and reviewed two to three times per year in spring, summer, and fall.  
 
On occasion, however, the Partnership recognizes that high value projects may arise that are well-aligned 
with the goals of our Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan but require more timely review in 
order to be completed within the calendar year. For time-sensitive projects such as these, local partners 
may request that their project be reviewed at the next scheduled monthly steering committee meeting.  
 
All projects that are recommended for funding by the Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership will be 
required to follow the same process, regardless of the timing for their review. This includes: completing a 
project request form and self-evaluation; submitting the project for steering committee and/or policy 
committee review; executing a contract for funding with the fiscal agent; and filling out and submitting 
an invoice template to the fiscal agent upon project completion.  
 
Projects will only be fast-tracked if they cannot wait until the next scheduled review meeting and their 
benefit would significantly outweigh that of future projects that will be considered. 
 
This policy should not be construed to include “emergency projects”, as defined by Minnesota Statute 
103D.615. The term “emergency project” is strictly applicable to watershed districts and counties during 
a declared State of Emergency. The Lower St. Croix Watershed Partnership does not have authority under 
Minnesota Statute to declare a State of Emergency nor complete “emergency projects.”  
 
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 66

Home
Text Box
Attachment G



 

1 
 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 1 
FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 2 

THE LOWER ST. CROIX COMPREHENSIVE WATERSHED MANANGEMENT PLAN 3 
 4 
 Pursuant to Minnesota Statute Section 471.59, this Joint Powers Agreement is entered by 5 
and between the political subdivisions and local units of governmental units of the State of 6 
Minnesota and identified, as follows: 7 

The Counties of Anoka, Chisago, Isanti, Pine, Ramsey and Washington each by and 8 
through its respective Board of Commissioners (collectively referred to as the Counties); 9 

The Anoka, Chisago, Isanti, Pine and Washington Soil and Water Conservation Districts, 10 
each by and through its respective Board of Supervisors (collectively referred to as the 11 
SWCDs); 12 

The Brown’s Creek, Carnelian Marine St. Croix, Comfort Lake Forest Lake, South 13 
Washington and Valley Branch Watershed Districts, each by and through its respective 14 
Board of Managers (collectively referred to as the Watershed Districts); and 15 

The Middle St. Croix, and Sunrise River Joint Powers Watershed Management 16 
Organizations, each by and through its respective governing board (collectively referred 17 
to as the Watershed Management Organizations).  18 

Together, the above identified Counties, SWCD’s, Watershed Districts and Watershed 19 
Management Organizations collectively formed the Lower St. Croix Watershed Implementation 20 
Partnership and for purposes of this Agreement, said political subdivisions and local units of 21 
government and those added in accordance with the terms of this Agreement are herein 22 
collectively referred to as “Parties” and individually, as “Party.” 23 

 24 

RECITALS 25 

WHEREAS, pursuant Minnesota Statutes Section 103B.305, Subd. 5 and 103B.3363, each of the 26 
Parties to this agreement is a local unit of government having the responsibility and authority to 27 
separately or cooperatively, by joint agreement pursuant to Minnesota Statute Section 471.59, to 28 
prepare, develop, adopt, implement and administer a comprehensive local water management 29 
plan, as defined pursuant to Section 103B.3363, subd. 3, or a comprehensive watershed 30 
management plan, as a substitute thereof, and carry out implementation actions, programs and 31 
projects toward achievement of goals and objectives of such plans.  32 

 33 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Minnesota Statute Sections 103B.101 and 103B.801, the Minnesota 34 
Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) is authorized, amongst things, to coordinate the 35 
water and resource planning and implementation activities of counties, soil and water 36 
conservation districts, watershed districts and watershed management organizations and to 37 
administer and oversee the Minnesota Comprehensive Watershed Management Planning 38 
Program, known as the One Watershed, One Plan program; and  39 

 40 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 67

Home
Text Box
Attachment H



 

2 
 

WHEREAS, each of the Parties exercises water management authority and responsibility within 1 
the Lower St. Croix River Watershed Management Area, a geographical area consisting of those 2 
portions of Anoka, Chisago, Isanti, Pine, Ramsey and Washington counties that drain into the St. 3 
Croix River watershed as depicted on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein; and  4 

 5 

WHEREAS, the Parties have previously entered into the Lower St. Croix Watershed 6 
Memorandum of Agreement for the purpose to collaboratively develop, as local government 7 
units, a coordinated comprehensive watershed management plan for the Lower St. Croix River 8 
planning boundary ; and  9 

 10 

WHEREAS, in accordance with BWSR policy, the Memorandum of Agreement for planning 11 
established a framework of consistency and cooperation through a governing structure having a 12 
Policy Committee and an Advisory Committee and provisions that the role and authority of the 13 
governing bodies of the Parties, the Policy Committee and Advisory Committee; and 14 

 15 

WHEREAS, in accordance with BWSR policy adopted pursuant to Minnesota Statute Section 16 
103B.801, the Parties have developed the Lower St. Croix Comprehensive Watershed 17 
Management Plan, hereinafter referred to as the “Plan” and it is the intent of the Parties that said 18 
Memorandum of Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and this Agreement shall not be 19 
construed as to modify or supplant the terms or provisions of the Memorandum of Agreement; 20 
and  21 

  22 

WHEREAS, with matters that relate to coordination of water management authorities pursuant to 23 
Minnesota Statute Chapters 103B, 103C, and 103D and with public drainage systems pursuant to 24 
Minnesota Statute Chapter 103E, this Agreement does not change the rights or obligations of the 25 
public drainage system authorities; and  26 

 27 

WHEREAS, this Agreement and the Lower St. Croix Comprehensive Watershed Management 28 
Plan does not replace or supplant local land use, planning, or zoning authority of the respective 29 
Parties and the Parties intend that this Agreement shall not be construed in that manner.  30 

 31 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 32 

 33 

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 471.59 and other relevant state law 34 
and in consideration of the mutual promises and benefits that the parties shall derive herefrom, 35 
all Parties hereby enter into this joint powers agreement and agree, as follows: 36 

 37 

1. Purpose:  This Agreement has the following purposes: 38 

 39 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 68



 

3 
 

a. This Agreement establishes the terms and conditions, governing structure and 1 
processes by which the Parties will jointly and cooperatively continue the planning 2 
and the implementation of the Plan.  Consistent with its terms and conditions, this 3 
Agreement authorizes the Parties to cooperatively exercise their common and similar 4 
power of local water planning and management notwithstanding the territorial limits 5 
within which they may otherwise exercise separately.   6 

 7 

b. This Agreement does not establish a joint powers entity.  Rather, this Agreement 8 
continues the collaborative governing structure established under the Memorandum 9 
of Agreement and redefines the role and authority of the governing bodies, the Policy 10 
Committee and Advisory Committee in the decision-making process as applicable for 11 
implementation of the plan.   This Agreement provides criteria and a process to add 12 
additional local units of government as Parties to this Agreement.   13 

 14 

c. This Agreement identifies the process of preparing, adopting and carrying out annual 15 
work plans that will serve as the mechanism essential for Plan implementation.    16 

 17 

d. This Agreement provides for the designation and appointment of a Party or Parties or 18 
their representative to carry out the administrative responsibilities associated with the 19 
continued collaborative planning and implementation of the Plan and to perform all 20 
fiscal responsibilities associated Plan implementation.     21 

   22 

2. Eligibility and Procedure to Become A Party 23 

 24 

a. Qualifying Party: A county, SWCD, watershed district or watershed management 25 
organization located and authorized to carry out water planning and resource 26 
management responsibilities within the Lower St. Croix River Management Area is 27 
eligible to become a Party to this Agreement.  28 

 29 

b. Initial Parties: A county, SWCD, watershed district or watershed management 30 
organization  may be an initial Party through adoption of one or more resolutions by 31 
its respective governing board that indicates its intent to be a Party to this Agreement; 32 
that adopts and authorizes such local unit of government to enter into this Agreement; 33 
and that adopts and begins implementation of the Plan, or later amendments, within 34 
60 days of State approval of the Plan, or within 45 days of executing this Agreement, 35 
whichever is later.  Such local unit of government shall also give notice of plan 36 
adoption in accordance with provisions of Minnesota Statutes Chapters 103B and 37 
103D.  Any qualifying county, SWCD, watershed district or watershed management 38 
organization that desires to become a Party after expiration of the 60 day period for 39 
joining as an Initial Party will be eligible to become a Party as an Additional Party 40 
pursuant to Section 2.c., below 41 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 69



 

4 
 

 1 

c. Adding Additional Parties: A qualifying local unit of government that desires to 2 
become a Party to this Agreement at any time later than 60-days following State 3 
approval of the Plan shall provide the Administrative Coordinator a formal statement 4 
that indicates its intent to become a Party to this Agreement and a certified copy of 5 
the resolution or motion adopted by its governing board that contains all of the 6 
following: 7 

i. A declaration of intent to join as a Party to the Agreement; 8 

ii. A statement that the local government unit is authorized to enter into and be bound 9 
by the terms and conditions of this Agreement; including but not limited to the 10 
bylaws, policies and procedures adopted by the Policy Committee; and 11 

iii. A statement that the local government unit adopts the Plan. 12 

Upon receipt of such certified documents, the Administrative Coordinator shall issue a 13 
signature page to the local government unit and instructions to execute and return the 14 
same along with the name and contact data of the representatives appointed by the 15 
local government unit to serve on the Policy Committee and the names and contact 16 
information of staff of the local government unit assigned to serve on the Advisory 17 
Committee. The local government unit will have all duties, rights and responsibilities 18 
as a Party to this Agreement upon filing with the Administrative Coordinator a copy of 19 
its authorized signature to this Agreement.    20 

d. Procedure for Parties to Leave Membership of Agreement: Any Party desiring to 21 
leave the membership of this Agreement shall indicate its intent in writing to the 22 
Policy Committee in the form of an official board resolution. Notice must be made 90 23 
days in advance of leaving.  A Party that leaves the membership of the Agreement 24 
remains obligated to comply with the terms of any grants associated with the 25 
Agreement until the grant has ended. 26 

 27 

3. Payments and Financial Responsibilities of the Parties 28 

Each Party is financially responsible for its costs and expenses incurred in implementing 29 
the Plan or in carrying out related implementation activities, projects, and programs.      30 

 31 

4. Term and Termination 32 

a. Effective Date: This Agreement is effective upon signature of all initial Parties and 33 
will remain in effect until December 31, 2031, unless terminated consistent with 34 
terms of this Agreement or as otherwise provided under law.  35 

b. Review: Commencing in the second year following the effective date of this 36 
Agreement and continuing each year thereafter, the Policy Committee will annually 37 
conduct a review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the joint and collaborative 38 
partnership provided by this Agreement and the governing structure of the Policy 39 
Committee.  With the assistance of the Advisory Committee, the Policy Committee 40 
shall prepare a report on its findings and provide recommendations as appropriate to 41 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 70



 

5 
 

governing boards of the Parties.    The report and recommendations should be 1 
submitted to the governing boards at the time in which the Policy Committee 2 
provides its recommendation on the proposed annual work plan.     Any 3 
recommendation of the Policy Committee to revise a term or condition of this 4 
Agreement will only become effective upon 2/3rds approval of the governing boards 5 
of the then present Parties.  6 

c. Termination: This Agreement may be terminated by resolution adopted by the 7 
governing bodies of all of the then existing Parties.  The parties acknowledge their 8 
respective and applicable obligations, if any, under MN Statutes Section 471.59, 9 
Subd. 5 after the agreement has been terminated or the purpose of the Agreement has 10 
been completed. 11 

 12 

5. General Provisions 13 

a. Compliance with Laws/Standards:  The Parties agree to abide by all federal, 14 
state, and local laws; statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or 15 
hereafter adopted pertaining to this Agreement. 16 

b. Timeliness:   The Parties agree to perform the obligations under this Agreement 17 
in a timely manner and inform each other about delays that may occur.  18 

c. Liability and Insurance: Each Party shall be liable for the acts, errors and omissions 19 
of its respective officers, employees or agents and each Party shall carry liability 20 
insurance coverage of not less than $1.5 million per occurrence, the maximum 21 
liability for each Party as provided under Minnesota Statutes Section 466.04.  The 22 
Parties may participate in a self-insurance pool to meet this requirement.     23 

d. Indemnification: The provisions of the Municipal Tort Claims Act, Minnesota 24 
Statute Chapter 466 and other applicable laws govern liability of the Parties.  To the 25 
full extent permitted by law, actions by the Parties, their respective officers, 26 
employees, and agents pursuant to this Agreement are intended to be and shall be 27 
construed as a “cooperative activity.” It is the intent of the Parties that they shall be 28 
deemed a “single governmental unit” for the purpose of liability, as set forth in 29 
Minnesota Statutes Section 471.59, subd. 1a(a). For purposes of Minnesota Statutes 30 
Section 471.59, subd. 1a(a) it is the intent of each party that this Agreement does not 31 
create any liability or exposure of one party for the acts or omissions of any other 32 
party.  If a Party is found responsible for any liability associated with the actions of 33 
the Lower St. Croix One Watershed, One Plan Policy Committee or implementation 34 
of the Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan, said Party agrees to indemnify 35 
and hold harmless any of the other non-liable parties of this Agreement for any 36 
defense costs and expenses associated with any such claim.  37 

e. Employee Status: The respective employees and agents of each Party shall remain 38 
the employees of each individual respective Party.  39 

f. Data Practices, Data Management and Record Retention:   Notwithstanding 40 
Minn. Stat. 13.82, subd. 24 or any other provision of law the parties agree that for 41 
purposes of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act and all other statutes and 42 
provision of law related to data practices, data management and records retention, 43 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 71



 

6 
 

each party shall remain the exclusive responsible authority, as defined in Minn. Stat. 1 
13.02, subd. 16, for its own data management, for responses to data requests and for 2 
all aspects of records retention for any and all data in any form that is collected, 3 
created, received, maintained or disseminated by the party agency. This section 4 
includes but is not limited to all data regardless of its classification as the term 5 
government data is defined in Min. Stat. 13.02, subd. 7. 6 

g. Auditor Access and Review of Business Records: Pursuant to Minn. Stat. 7 
16C.05 subd. 5 the parties agree that each party, the State Auditor or legislative 8 
Auditor, or any duly authorized representative at any time during normal business 9 
hours and as often as they deem reasonably necessary, shall have access to and the 10 
right to audit, excerpt and transcribe any books, documents, papers, records, etc. that 11 
are pertinent to the accounting practices and procedures of the parties and involve 12 
transactions relating to this Agreement. The parties agree to maintain and make 13 
available these business records for a period of at least 6 years from the date of the 14 
termination of this agreement. 15 

 16 

6. Annual Work Plans:  17 

a. Required Contents: Annual work plans will be developed that detail 18 
implementation of the Plan, minimally including projects and programs to be 19 
completed collaboratively and associated budgets.  A fiscal agent and a responsible 20 
Party or Parties shall be identified for each project, program or implementation 21 
activity contained in the annual work plan.  The responsible Party or Parties must 22 
provide any grant matching funds and accept responsibility for implementation and 23 
outcomes. The annual work plans may include a summary of projects, programs and 24 
implementation activities to be accomplished with state Watershed Based 25 
Implementation Funds, competitive state grants, local funds or others. 26 

b. Process for Development and Adoption of Annual Work Plans. 27 

The decision – making process in the development and adoption of annual work 28 
plans shall be as follows: 29 

1. The Advisory Committee shall draft and prepare the proposed annual work plan 30 
ranking projects, programs and implementation activities utilizing the selection 31 
criteria contained in the Plan.  32 

2. The Advisory Committee shall present the proposed annual work plan to the 33 
Policy Committee for discussion and revision as appropriate.  34 

3. The Policy Committee shall vote to recommend a proposed annual work plan to 35 
the governing boards of the Parties for approval. A vote of 2/3rd of the members 36 
present of the Policy Committee is necessary to move a recommended annual 37 
work plan onto the governing boards.  38 

4. The governing bodies of the Parties shall approve the annual work plan for its 39 
implementation.  An annual work plan will be approved only through approval 40 
of 2/3rd of the governing bodies of then existing Parties.  41 

7. Structure and Governance 42 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 72



 

7 
 

To carry out the coordinated and collaborative planning, development and 1 
implementation of the Plan and development, adoption of annual work plans, the Parties 2 
will continue the Policy Committee and Advisory Committee, as established under the 3 
Memorandum of Agreement.  The function and the authority of the governing boards of 4 
the Parties and the composition, function and authority of the Policy Committee and 5 
Advisory Committee are as follows;  6 

a. Governing Boards of Parties 7 

i. The governing boards are the elected or appointed officials of the respective 8 
Party to this Agreement.  9 

ii. Responsibilities: The governing boards of the Parties have the responsibility 10 
to take approval action on matters required by the terms of this Agreement 11 
and on matters recommended by the Policy Committee.  Matters on which 12 
governing boards must take formal action include, but are not limited to, as 13 
follows: 14 

1. Designation of an elected or appointed member or members to serve on 15 
the Policy Committee and set the term of service of each member so 16 
designated.  17 

2. Approval of  Annual Work Plans; 18 

3. Amendments to the provisions of the Plan; and  19 

4. Adoption or approval of other matters necessary for Plan implementation.  20 

iii. Authority:  A governing board of a Party shall exercise its decision-21 
making authority only by adoption of a formal resolution.  Governing boards 22 
must act on Policy Committee recommendations within 60 days after the day 23 
in which the Policy Committee formally adopted such recommendation.   The 24 
decisions of the various governing boards of the Parties will be deemed 25 
approved for purposes of this Agreement when 2/3rds    of the governing bodies 26 
have adopted formal action on the respective recommendation.      27 

 28 

b. Policy Committee 29 

i. Responsibilities: The Policy Committee has the responsibility to develop and 30 
make recommendations on those matters that require approval by the 31 
governing boards of the Parties, including, but not limited to, annual work 32 
plans, additional parties to this Agreement, revisions and modifications to this 33 
Agreement and amendments to the Plan.   Each member of the Policy 34 
Committee member shall serve as a liaison to his or her respective governing 35 
board;  keep such governing board informed on the implementation of the 36 
Plan; and ensure that the preferences and ideas of such governing board are 37 
communicated to the Policy Committee.   38 

ii. Composition: The Policy Committee shall be composed of one 39 
representative from each Party to this Agreement, except that Chisago County 40 
shall have three representatives seated on the Policy Committee.   Each party may 41 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 73



 

8 
 

also have one alternate in the absence of the designated representative.  With 1 
exception of Chisago County, representatives and alternates must be an elected or 2 
appointed member of that Party’s governing board and selected by the Party’s 3 
governing board. The Chisago County Board of Commissioners must appoint 4 
three representatives to the Policy Committee, with one representative and an 5 
alternative representative each being a Commissioner and the two other 6 
representatives and respective alternatives to the Policy Committee appointed by 7 
the Chisago County Board of Commissioners as it may determine as appropriate. 8 
The term of each representative is decided by the appointing governing board.   9 

iii. Governance:  The Policy Committee shall be governed pursuant to by-10 
laws and rules of procedure as the Policy Committee may develop, adopt and 11 
revise from time to time. The Policy Committee may utilize bylaws adopted in 12 
the preparation and development of the Plan and may revise the same to be 13 
suitable for purposes of Plan implementation. Bylaws and rules of procedure 14 
shall comply with relevant statutory provisions and be in as much as possible 15 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement. In the event of conflict or 16 
ambiguity, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.  17 

iv. Rules of Procedure:  At a minimum, the rules of procedure of the Policy 18 
Committee must provide that: 19 

1. The Policy Committee will have at least twice-annual meetings and 20 
special meetings as necessary for implementation of the Plan.    21 

2. The Chair or any four representatives may call special meetings giving not 22 
less than 72 hours written notice of the time, place and purpose of such a 23 
meeting delivered by mail or email to each Party. 24 

3. All meetings of the Policy Committee will comply with statutes and rules 25 
requiring open and public meetings.  The official posting location for 26 
meeting dates and locations shall be the Lower St. Croix One Watershed 27 
One Plan website.  28 

4. The conduct of all meetings of the Policy Committee shall be generally 29 
guided by the most recent edition of Robert’s Rules of Order.  30 

5. A quorum for decision-making shall consist of at least 50% plus one of the 31 
representatives.   32 

6. Each representative present shall have one vote.  All decisions shall be 33 
approved by a supermajority vote of 2/3rds of those representatives 34 
present. All votes shall be made in person, and no representative may 35 
appoint a proxy for any question coming before any meeting for a vote. 36 

 37 

c. Advisory Committee 38 

i. Responsibilities: The Advisory Committee has the responsibility to assist 39 
and advise the Policy Committee and to prepare and develop matters 40 
necessary for Policy Committee recommendation, including, but not limited 41 
to, annual work plans, and proposed amendments to the Plan and this 42 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 74



 

9 
 

Agreement.  1 

ii. Composition: The Advisory Committee is composed of staff of the 2 
Parties to this Agreement. Each Party may assign up to two staff to serve on 3 
the Advisory Committee.  On a vote of two-thirds of its members present, the 4 
Policy Committee may increase the number of members on the Advisory 5 
Committee.   6 

 7 

8. Administrative Coordinator 8 

a. The Parties shall designate a Party to serve as Administrative Coordinator.  The 9 
Administrative Coordinator has the responsibility to perform the administrative and 10 
coordinative work necessary for Plan implementation that is not associated with a 11 
specific implantation activity, project or program.  The responsibility of the 12 
Administrative Coordinator may include serving as fiscal agent to accept and carryout 13 
all responsibilities associated with grants, grant agreements and financial transactions 14 
that are part of and related to grant agreement and contract implementation.   15 
Alternatively, the Parties may designate a separate Party to carry out fiscal agent 16 
responsibilities.  A Party designated to serve as Administrative Coordinator or fiscal 17 
agent may assign that function to its staff or contract for such services.  18 

b. The Parties agree that until the first annual work plan is adopted that the Washington 19 
Conservation District and Chisago Soil and Water Conservation District will be 20 
jointly designated as Administrative Coordinator. The first annual work plan and each 21 
annual work plan thereafter shall identity the Party that is the designated 22 
Administrative Coordinator and, as appropriate, the fiscal agent, for purposes of 23 
implementing that respective annual work plan.  24 

c. The governing board of the Administrative Coordinator and fiscal agent is authorized 25 
to make payments and to take other actions within a respective approved annual work 26 
plan.     27 

d. The costs and expenses incurred by a Party in performing the function of 28 
Administrative Coordinator and fiscal agent may be paid with grant funds, including 29 
state Watershed Based Implementation Funds unless prohibited by State policy, grant 30 
contract or law. In the event that these funds are unavailable or insufficient, such 31 
costs and expenses remain the financial responsibility of such Party incurring the 32 
same unless the Parties otherwise agree through an approved annual work plan or 33 
separate action adopted by the governing boards of the then existing parties.  34 

9. Miscellaneous 35 

a. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 36 
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which when taken together shall 37 
constitute one and the same agreement. Any counterpart signature transmitted by 38 
facsimile or by sending a scanned copy by electronic mail or similar electronic 39 
transmission shall be deemed an original signature.  This executed Agreement 40 
including all counterparts shall be filed with each party to this agreement with a 41 
notification of the Agreement’s effective date.  42 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 75



 

10 
 

b. Amendments Any changes, amendments, or modifications to this Agreement 1 
may only be made formal resolution adopted by all of the governing boards of the 2 
then existing Parties.  3 

c. Savings Clause: In the event that any provision of this Agreement is determined by 4 
a court of law to be null and void, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall 5 
continue in full force and effect.  6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

10. Authorized Representatives 12 

 13 

The following persons have been authorized as representatives to act as the primary contact 14 
for all matters concerning this agreement are: 15 
 16 

Anoka County, County Administrator Rhonda Sivarajah or successor 17 
Chisago County, County Administrator Chase Burnham or successor 18 
Isanti County, County Administrator Julia Lines or successor 19 
Pine County, County Administrator David Minke or successor 20 
Ramsey County, County Board Chair Toni Carter or successor 21 
Washington County, County Administrator Kevin Corbid or successor 22 
Anoka Conservation District, District Manager Chris Lord or successor 23 
Chisago SWCD, District Manager Craig Mell or successor 24 
Isanti SWCD, District Manager Tiffany Determan or successor 25 
Pine SWCD, District Manager Jill Carlier or successor 26 
Washington Conservation District, District Manager Jay Riggs or successor 27 
Brown’s Creek Watershed District, District Administrator Karen Kill or successor 28 
Carnelian Marine St. Croix Watershed District, District Administrator Mike Isensee or 29 
successor 30 
Comfort Lake Forest Lake Watershed District, Administrator Mike Kinney or successor 31 
South Washington Watershed District, Administrator Matt Moore or successor 32 
Valley Branch Watershed District, President Jill Lucas or successor 33 
Middle St. Croix WMO, Administrator Matt Downing or successor 34 
Sunrise River WMO, Chair Dan Babineau or successor 35 

 36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

(Signature Pages begin on next Page).   40 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 76



 

11 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF the Parties have duly executed this agreement by their duly 1 
authorized officers.  (Repeat this page for each participant) 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

PARTNER:  _________________________________________ 6 

 7 

 8 

APPROVED: 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

BY: ______________________________________________ 14 

 Board Chair     Date 15 

 16 

 17 

 18 

 19 

BY: ______________________________________________ 20 

 Manager/Administrator   Date 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

APPROVED AS TO FORM (use if necessary)  25 

 26 

BY: ______________________________________________ 27 

 County Attorney  Date    28 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 77



  
 

Please email this completed application to: 
KKill@mnwcd.org  
 

Deadline:   

 

Application:  Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) 
 
Name:     ______________________________________ 

Address: ______________________________________ 

        ______________________________________ 

Email:       ________________________________________   Phone Number:   ______________________ 

Why are you interested in becoming a Citizen Advisor for the Watershed District?

  ________________________________________________________________________________

  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

List three things you hope to accomplish while serving on the committee? 

1. ________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. ________________________________________________________________________________ 

3. ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
What are the strengths and/or qualifications  you can bring to help this committee  fulfill its purpose  
and duties? 
 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

    
One of the roles of CAC members  is to identify education needs in the community. What is one need,  
related to water, that you have seen? 

 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Are you able to commit to attending even ing  meetings and special meetings as needed? 

 
yes    no   

 

 

 

Would you like to learn more about Brown’s Creek Watershed District?  Visit www.bcwd.org 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 78

kkill
Typewritten Text

kkill
Typewritten Text
Ongoing until further notice

kkill
Typewritten Text

kkill
Typewritten Text

kkill
Typewritten Text

kkill
Typewritten Text

kkill
Typewritten Text
Date: ________________

kkill
Typewritten Text
BCWD Resident:      Yes         No

kkill
Typewritten Text

kkill
Typewritten Text



Project Name |  Oak Glen Golf Course Stormwater Reuse Date | 12/5/2023 

To / Contact info | BCWD Board of Managers 

Cc / Contact info | Karen Kill, District Administrator 

From / Contact info | Ryan Fleming, PE; Kyle Crawford, PE 

Regarding | 2024 CIP Seasonal Operation and Maintenance 

Background 
In 2024, the Oak Glen Golf Course Stormwater Reuse system is entering its fourth season of operation. 
The irrigation reuse system is activated in the spring and operated through the season until the golf 
course ceases irrigating in the fall.  The on-going operation and maintenance of the project is anticipated 
to include guidance and support for the spring start-up operations, winterization of the system in the fall, 
visual monitoring of the pump settings based on wetland stage, weather conditions and coordination 
with the Oak Glen Golf Course, site visits to monitor operation, vegetation, sediment accumulation, 
erosion, and overall system condition.  EOR will coordinate with golf course staff to maintain the wetland 
outlet and pump system inlet and outlet. It is assumed the WCD will record the monthly total gallons 
pumped as well as monitoring of the flow leaving the golf course’s irrigation pond as they have 
previously. 

An end of season performance evaluation from the monitoring results will be provided to assist the golf 
course in their annual reporting.  EOR will also update the project operation and maintenance manual 
based on the activities throughout the year (pump on/off or other setting alterations, additional 
maintenance performed outside of the norm, etc.). 

In addition to the reuse pump that draws water from the large wetland north of Lake McKusick, there 
are also two groundwater wells that supply water to the irrigation system.  BCWD is only able to monitor 
pumped volume at the reuse pump (total gallons pumped since installation), and at the south well pump 
(gallons per pumping event with time recorded).  The Administrator has requested that EOR vet options 
of installing a flow meter with logged timing at the north pump and other technological improvement 
options, e.g. telemetry and cloud reporting, that will make the data more accessible and accurate to assist 
us in understanding the flow timing from each water source.  An outcome of Task 4 in Table 1 below may 
be drafting of construction plans and specifications for which a separate scope of work will be brought 
to the Board for approval.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 79



Scope  
Table 1. Task cost and hours anticipated for the 2024 season. 

Task Description Hours Cost 

Task 1: Start-up and 
Winterization 

Coordinate spring start-up, pump/float adjustments, mileage 9 $1,730 

Task 2: System Check-
in, Maintenance 

Site inspections and check-in, system maintenance, adjustment, 
and coordination with Oak Glen Golf Course & WCD, mileage 15 $2,620 

Task 3. Pumping 
Volume Summary, 
O&M Manual Update 

Review of 2023 & 2024 monitoring data, system performance 
evaluation, and reporting. Update project Operation & 
Maintenance Manual 

16 $2,425 

Task 4. Flow 
recording & reporting 
improvement options 

Discussing recording and reporting goals with Oak Glen, 
researching flow meter and data logging options, site visit with 
pump and controls specialist to review retrofit options  

26 $4,620 

Total 66 $11,395 

*Given the weather-dependent nature of the work, the costs are estimates only.  Additional project needs will be 
brought to the attention of the District Administrator and outlined in a separate scope of work.   

Requested Action 

Consider approval of this scope of services for an estimated cost of $11,395 from account 948-0000.   

 
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 80



Brown's Creek Watershed District 
2023 Budget

Revised 12-13-2023

 Revised 2022 
Carry Forward 

for Approval 
 2023 Grants  2023 Levy  

 2023 Total 
Budget  

 Allocated  Available 

100-2910 Designated Funds - Management Plan Projects 1,230,373.90$    1,230,374$          1,175,778$          

-$                    -$                    

Revenue -$                    -$                    

100-3700 Interest Income -$                    -$                    
100-3601 Metropolitan Council Outlet Monitoring Grant 5,000$                5,000$                5,000$                
100-3627 BWSR Clean Water Fund 2019 - Stormwater Reuse OG -$                   36,010$              
100-3628 BWSR Clean Water Fund 2020 - Stormwater Reuse SCC -$                   -$                   
100-3629 BWSR Clean Water Fund 2019 - Millbrook Riparian Restoration -$                   39,380$              
100-3630 Washington County Cost-share Applewood Reuse -$                   66,800$              
100-3631 MPCA Small Watershed Grant 2023-2026 320,706$            320,706$            -$                   
100-3400 Permits -$                   -$                   
100-3100 Tax Levy 1,150,415$         1,150,415$         1,122,277$         

TOTAL, ESTIMATED Sources of Funding 1,230,374$        325,706$           1,150,415$        2,706,494$         -$                 2,445,245$         

ACCT. # General Expenses
 Revised 2022 

Carry Forward 
for Approval 

 2023 Grants  2023 Levy  
 2023 Total 

Budget  
 Allocated  Available 

200-4000 Manager Per Diem and Expense -$                   10,000$              10,000$              10,000$           -$                   
200-4220 Secretarial Services -$                   4,000$                4,000$                4,000$                
200-4250 Dues & Subscriptions (MAWD 5000 and LMCIT 2000) -$                   7,000$                7,000$                7,000$             -$                   
200-4270 Bonding & Insurance -$                   5,500$                5,500$                4,000$             1,500$                
200-4280 Postage & Delivery -$                   1,000$                1,000$                1,000$                
200-4290 Printing & Notices -$                   1,000$                1,000$                1,000$                
200-4330 Accounting -$                   4,305$                4,305$                4,100$             205$                   
200-4331 Audit -$                   9,350$                9,350$                8,500$             850$                   
200-4949 Misc., Other Expense -$                   2,000$                2,000$                1,000$             1,000$                
200-4320 Wash. Conservation District--Admin -$                   55,640$              55,640$              55,640$           -$                   
200-4265 Admin Conference Registrations -$                   2,000$                2,000$                250$                1,750$                
200-4410 Legal Fees - General (1,000.00)$         25,480$              24,480$              24,480$           -$                   
200-4500 Staff Engineer -$                   27,090$              27,090$              27,090$           -$                   

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Training -$                   5,000$                5,000$                325$                4,675$                
Contingency Reserve 56,644$             -$                   56,644$              56,644$              

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES: 55,644.48$        -$                    159,365$           215,009$            142,385$         72,624$              

ACCT. # MANAGEMENT PLAN EXPENSES
 Revised 2022 

Carry Forward 
for Approval 

 2023 Grants  2023 Levy  
 2023 Total 

Budget  
 Allocated  Available 

300-4320 Wash. Conservation District--Administrator 3,610.00$          166,400$            170,010$            170,010$         -$                   
300-4410 Legal Fees - Mgmt Plan -$                   52,000$              52,000$              30,648$           21,352$              
300-4501 Staff Engineer 5,841.00$          80,325$              86,166$              86,166$           -$                   
300-4702 Permitting, Legal Review -$                   13,000$              13,000$              13,000$              
300-4703 Permitting, Engineering Review -$                    52,500$               52,500$               52,500$               
300-4704 Permitting, Inspection Database -$                    1,000$                 1,000$                 1,000$                 
300-4710-1 Baseline Monitoring 13,215$              5,000$                 125,000$             143,215$             143,215$          -$                    
300-4640 Equip. Maint. and Upgrades -$                   27,500$              27,500$              9,080$             18,420$              
300-4810 Shared Educator Position -$                   20,500$              20,500$              20,500$           -$                   
300-4950 Management Plan Implementation -future projects -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
903-0001 Trout Habitat Preservation Project: Monitoring, 2,231$               6,300$                8,531$                8,531$             (0)$                     
909-0000 Rules Review/Evaluation 17,123$              10,000$               27,123$               27,123$               
909-0001 Groundwater Dep Nat Resource Inventory update 10,000$              -$                    10,000$               10,000$               
909-0002 Permitting Program Internal Procedure updates -$                    25,000$               25,000$               25,000$               
910-0000 Education & Outreach 6,537$               10,000$              16,537$              8,031$             8,506$                
911-0000 Volunteer Stream Monitoring (204)$                 4,160$                3,957$                3,957$             -$                   
912-0000 Grant Preparation -$                   5,000$                5,000$                5,000$                
914-0000 Homeowner BMP Program 8,000.00$          60,000$              68,000$              22,692$           45,308$              
922-0000 Plan Reviews - LGU/LWMP -$                   -$                   -$                   
923-0000  H & H Model Maintenance 37,750$             5,250$                43,000$              43,000$           (0)$                     

923-0002 Flood Risk Assessment 108,000$            (8,000)$               100,000$             10,684$            89,316$               

927-0000 Management Plan Update 57,000$              90,000$               147,000$             10,000$            137,000$             
929-0000 Long Lake Plan Implementation-shoreline management -$                    3,700$                 3,700$                 3,700$                 
929-0010 Long Lake -Implementation - regional treatmen 273,750$           (35,000)$            238,750$            228,234$         10,516$              
929-0011 Long Lake - 62nd Street Pond Retrofit Feasibility 15,773$             3,350$                19,123$              19,123$              
929-0012 Long Lake - Marketplace Reuse Feasibility 1,919$               164,900$            166,819$            1,919$             164,900$            
931-0001 Benz Lake Management Plan Implementation 15,500$              15,500$              15,500$              

932-0004 Iron Enhanced Sand Filter/Performance Monitoring (9,000)$               9,000$                 -$                    -$                    
935-0000 Land Conservation Program 50,000$             50,000$              100,000$            100,000$            
935-0002      110th Street Property Implementation 23,457$             25,000$              48,457$              48,457$              
935-0003      Develop Land Conservation Priorities 20,000$             -$                   20,000$              20,000$              
940-0000 BMP Program – LGU/Community Demonstration Projects 10,000$             -$                   10,000$              10,000$              
940-0001 Flood Prevention Grant Program 100,000$           (100,000)$          -$                   -$                   
942-0004 Measuring Trends in GW Elevations & Flow 1,662$               12,600$              14,262$              8,686$             5,576$                
942-0007 Groundwater - Browns Creek piezometers 11,200$             (2,240)$              8,960$                8,960$                
942-0011 Groundwater - Coordination with users 1,215$               4,725$                5,940$                5,940$             -$                   
942-0012 Groundwater - Install Monitoring Wells 33,901$             31,900$              65,801$              7,440$             58,361$              
942-0013 Groundwater - Pump Test 8,000$               13,300$              21,300$              5,952$             15,348$              
947-0011 Countryside Auto BMP-performance monitoring (2,080)$              2,080$                -$                   -$                   
947-0016 Brown's Creek - BC Trails Park Parking Lot Perfm Mon (2,600)$              2,600$                -$                   -$                   
947-0017 Brown's Creek Implementation - Ecoli site visits/cost-share 10,000$             -$                   10,000$              10,000$              
947-0018 Brown's Creek - Biological Survey (Macroinvert & Fish) 810$                  8,000$                8,810$                4,607$             4,203$                
947-0020 Brown's Creek - Stream Channel Survey -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
947-0022 Brown's Creek - Buffer and Stream Restoration 83,846$             320,706$            -$                   404,551$            45,675$           358,876$            
947-0023 Brown's Creek - Golf Course Reuse - Oak Glen -$                   6,300$                6,300$                6,300$                
947-0025 Brown's Creek - Golf Course Reuse -  SCC 44,000$             (44,000)$            -$                   -$                   
948-0000 CIP Maintenance 18,500$             99,100$              117,600$            79,966$           37,634$              
950-0001 South School Curly Leaf Treatment 8,000$                8,000$                6,890$             1,110$                
950-0002 Lynch Lake Fish/Veg Management 466$                  4,500$                4,966$                4,966$             -$                   
951-0001 Woodpile Lake Management Plan Implementation 10,000$             -$                   10,000$              10,000$              
953-0000 Fen Management Plan Implementation (100)$                 4,100$                4,000$                4,000$             -$                   
956-0000 Bass East & West Management Plan -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
957-0000 Weather Station -$                   3,700$                3,700$                3,622$             78$                     
959-0002 Resource Assessment - Diversion Tribs - Head cut Repairs 125,000$           (65,000)$            60,000$              60,000$              
959-0003 Resource Assessment - Brown's Creek Gorge Bluff 1,798$               -$                   1,798$                1,798$             -$                   
960-0000 St Croix Phosphorus Reduction 10,000$             -$                   10,000$              10,000$              
961-0000 Mendel Wetland Restoration Feasiblity 29,953$              6,000$                 35,953$               10,785$            25,168$               
962-0000 District-Wide Pond Management Planning/Implementation 24,157$              10,500$               34,657$               24,157$            10,500$               
963-0000 District-Wide Vegetation Surveys 10,000$             -$                   10,000$              10,000$              
964-0000 District-Wide Chloride Source Assessment 2,500$                2,500$                2,500$                

TOTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN PROJECT EXPENSES: 1,174,729.42$   325,706$           991,050$           2,491,485$        1,011,150$      1,480,335$        

TOTAL, OPERATING EXP. & MGMT. PLAN PROJECTS: 1,230,373.90$   325,706$           1,150,415$        2,706,494$        1,153,535$      1,552,959$        

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 81



BROWN'S CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT

12/13/2023 ECKLES   _____   _____   _____   _____

CURRENT ITEMS PAYABLE-PAGE 1 of 2 JOHNSON  _____  _____  _____  _____
LEROUX   _____   _____   _____   _____
WIRTH   _____   _____   _____   _____

SAHULKA   _____   _____   _____   _____

VENDOR ACCOUNT # ITEMS TOTAL CK NO
Emmons & Olivier Resources, Inc.Invoices November 2023

Inv. 41-0000-216 Retainer 300-4500 7,078.50$         

Inv. 41-0000-216 Retainer 200-4500 2,359.50$         

Inv. 41-0001-219 Permits 2000-2007 300-4703 4,423.34$         

Inv. 41-0276-76 Permits 2016
     Permitting #16-03 Heifort Hills 300-4703 204.75$            

Inv. 41-0307-81 Permits 2017
     Permitting #17-04 Stillwater Senior Living 300-4703 36.75$              

     Permitting #17-17 West Ridge 300-4703 66.00$              

Inv. 41-0330-70 Permits 2018
     Permitting #18-02 Heifort Hills Estate 300-4703 132.00$            

     Permitting #18-04 Boutwell Farm 300-4703 198.00$            

     Permitting #18-15 Rogness 300-4703 87.58$              

Inv. 41-0384-32 Permits 2021
     Permitting #21-22 Bond Residence 300-4703 37.05$              

Inv. 41-0402-22 Permits 2022
     Permitting #22-05 13290 Boutwell Rd N 300-4703 29.25$              

     Permitting #22-07 Liberty Academy 300-4703 58.50$              

     Permitting #22-10 Caribou Coffee 300-4703 245.75$            

     Permitting #22-11 WOS Lot 106 300-4703 154.05$            

     Permitting #22-17 Read Residence 300-4703 58.33$              

     Permitting #22-22 Fanberg Residence 300-4703 37.05$              

     Permitting #22-24 WOS Lot 109 300-4703 37.05$              

     Permitting #22-25 WOS Lot 113 300-4703 37.05$              

     Permitting #22-30 CSAH 5 Ph2 300-4703 37.05$              

Inv. 41-0420-11 Permits 2023
     Permitting #23-01 CR 61 300-4703 37.05$              

     Permitting #23-02 WOS Lot 114 300-4703 907.58$            

     Permitting #23-03 Boutwell Farm Lot 1 300-4703 16.75$              

     Permitting #23-08 72nd Street 300-4703 37.05$              

     Permitting #23-10 Curio Dance Studio 300-4703 333.00$            

     Permitting #23-11 WOS Lot 122 300-4703 53.80$              

     Permitting #23-13 Sandhill Shores 300-4703 37.05$              

     Permitting #23-15 WOS Lot 102 300-4703 53.80$              

     Permitting #23-16 Brock Residence 300-4703 29.25$              

     Permitting #23-17 Sundance Stillwater 300-4703 6,380.25$         

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 82



EOR Continued.      Permitting #23-18 WOS L124 300-4703 95.55$              

Inv. 41-0421-11 IESF OM 2023   948-4500  396.00$            

Inv. 41-0418-12 Brown's Ck Pk Restoration  947-0022 13,254.24$       

Inv. 41-0205-75 CIP Operation and Maintenance 948-4500 272.00$            

Inv. 41-0433-2 2024 H&H Model Update 923-0000 14,233.00$       

Inv. 41-0424-5 BCWD 2023 Weather Station  957-4500 285.05$            

Inv. 41-0429-3 2023 GW Elevations 942-0004 594.00$            

Inv. 41-0432-3 Enhanced Stakeholder Engagement 927-0000 1,435.00$         53,767.97$        

Washington Conservation DistrictInv. 6291 Ocotber 2023- Water Monitoring
     Baseline Water Monitoring- labor  300-4710 10,133.33$       

     Baseline Water Monitoring- equipment  300-4640 38.29$              

Inv. 6295 October 2023- BMP Program   914-0000  3,730.00$         

Inv. 6284 Administration Q3 2023
     Administration (1/3)    200-4320   18,804.17$       

     Administration (2/3)    300-4320   37,608.33$       

     MAWD Registrations- Staff 200-4265 25.00$              

     Miscellaneous Expesnses 200-4949 23.87$              

     Education and Outreach 910-0000 113.21$            

     Printing 200-4290 1,339.50$         

     Viking Industrial Center  300-4640 200.74$            

     August 2023 Admin Overpay: Credit    200-4320   (219.26)$          71,797.18$        

Smith Partners November Invoices
Inv. 44461 Retainer - Meetings, Preparation 200-4410 2,040.00$         

Inv. 44462 General Legal Services 300-4410 107.60$            

Inv. 44463 Planning 300-4410 188.30$            

Inv. 44464 Contracts 300-4410 161.40$            

Inv. 44465 Permits 300-4703 780.10$            

Inv. 44466 Policy Issues 300-4410 753.74$            

Inv. 44467 Brown's Creek Restoration 300-4410 1,910.51$         5,941.65$          

Xcel Energy Inv. 854028800- Iron Enhanced Sand Filter pump operation 948-4500 42.97$              42.97$               

MNL Inv. 42941 BC Tributary Restoration Maintenance Pay Request #4 948-4500 1,950.75$         1,950.75$          

Domain Listings Annual Website Domain Listing 910-0000 288.00$            288.00$             

Celia Wirth Computer Services Website Hosting 2022-2023 910-0000 15.80$              15.80$               

Dave McCord Inv. 4149 October 2023 Accounting Services  200-4330 380.00$            380.00$             

Paul Dahlen & Lori Dossett BCWD Stewardship Grant Reimbursement 2023-10 914-0000 500.00$            500.00$             

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 83



Jake Woley #21-35 Permit Closure VOID Check 300-4703 (542.11)$          (542.11)$            Check #4584
Redstone Builders #21-35 Permit Closure- Re-Issue 300-4703 542.11$            542.11$             

Liberty Classical Academy #22-07 Permit Closure 300-4703 1,953.63$         1,953.63$          

Mikden of Stillwater #22-10 Permit Closure 300-4703 3,456.30$         

Cash Escrow 300-4703 146,500.00$     149,956.30$      

Total Amount Disbursed 286,594.25$      

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 84



BROWN'S CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT
12/13/2023
MONTHLY ITEMS DEPOSITED - Page 1 of  1

VENDOR INVOICE/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # CK NO DEPOSIT DATE TOTAL

Royal Credit Union CD 02217 Close Out/Withdrawal Transfer of District Funds 1025759 11/16/2023 105,017.19$        

Royal Credit Union CD 02225 Close Out/Withdrawal Transfer of District Funds 1025761 11/16/2023 51,396.51$          

Royal Credit Union CD 02233 Close Out/Withdrawal Transfer of District Funds 102760 11/16/2023 51,396.51$          

Washington County Tax Settlement- 2nd Half 2023 Levy 100-3100 Direct Deposit 11/30/2023 546,052.08$        

4M Fund Dividend 100-3700 Direct Deposit 11/30/2023 1,481.68$            

TOTAL AMOUNT DEPOSITED: 755,343.97$        

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 85



Brown's Creek Watershed District

Trearsure's Report

December 13, 2023

US Bank Accounts

Checking 9903 1,144,506.88

Checking 6671 2,447.89

Checking 6614- Permitting 29,808.27

4M Fund 510,754.49

Total Balance 12/13/23 1,687,517.53

Accounts Payable 286,594.49

Unrecorded Deposits 546,052.08

Total Balance 12/13/23 2,233,569.61

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 86



 

 

       Emmons & Olivier Resources, Inc. is an Equal Opportunity Affirmative Action Employer 

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

memo 
 Project Name |  BCWD Permit 23-17 Sundance Townhomes Date | 12/11/2023 

To / Contact info | BCWD Board of Managers 

Cc / Contact info | Ryan Sailer, Timberland Partners ; Dan Sjoblom, PE / Alliant Engineering 

Cc / Contact info | Karen Kill, Administrator / BCWD 

From / Contact info | Camilla Correll, PE / EOR; John Sarafolean, EOR; Paul Nation, PE / EOR 

Regarding | Permit Application No. 23-17 Engineer’s Report 

The following review of the above-mentioned project located within the legal jurisdiction of the 
Brown’s Creek Watershed District (BCWD) was conducted to determine compliance with the BCWD 
rules for purposes of the engineer’s recommendation to the Board of Managers for its determination 
of the permit application. 
 
Applicant: Ryan Sailer, Timberland Partners1 
Permit Submittal Date:  11/15/2023 
Completeness Determination: 11/22/2023 
Board Action Required By: 1/21/2024 
Review based on BCWD Rules effective April 1, 2020 
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
 

GENERAL COMMENTS 

The applicant proposes a 17-unit multifamily townhome redevelopment on 22.83 acres in Stillwater. 
The project will include subdivision of five existing parcels into one; demolition of five existing single-
family homes, re-grading of the entire property; construction of the townhomes and a central 
clubhouse; and construction of infrastructure, including bituminous roads and a stormwater-
management system, along with establishment of buffer areas. The city has granted preliminary plat 
approval for the proposed project.  

Existing Conditions: The project is located to the southeast of the intersection of Manning Avenue 
North and 80th Street North. The project area consists of five parcels with existing homes – a total of 
2.16 acres of existing impervious area, along with wooded and prairie areas, and a manage 2 wetland 
complex located on the south end of the property. The south central tributary of Brown’s Creek runs 
through the wetland complex which extends beyond the site; a total of 4.57 acres of the project site 
is wetland.    

 
Proposed Conditions: The Sundance Townhomes redevelopment consists of multifamily housing 
townhomes, bituminous roadways, and stormwater management features (Figure 1). Stormwater 

 

 

 

 
1  The applicant has secured authorization to apply for the BCWD permit from current property owners. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 87



memo 
2 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

from the newly created impervious surfaces will be treated by two wet sedimentation basins, 
stormwater reuse for irrigation, and bioretention facilities planted with trees. Storm sewer outfalls 
from the wet sedimentation basins(wet ponds) will convey storm water runoff to the existing 
wetland complex as it does under existing conditions. The project will disturb 19.16 acres, including 
all existing impervious, and the total proposed impervious area is 9.36 acres. With the disturbance 
of 50 percent or more of existing impervious surfaces onsite, subsection 2.4 of the BCWD rules 
applies to all impervious surfaces and disturbed areas on the project site.  
 
 
Recommendation: The BCWD engineer recommends that the Board approve the application with 
the conditions outlined in the report. 
 
 
 
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 88



memo 
3 of 14 

Emmons  &  Ol i v ie r  Resources ,  Inc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

 

 
Figure	1:	Site	Plan	 	

80th STREET NORTH 

M
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
V

EN
U

E 
N

O
R

T
H

 

EAST WET POND 

SOUTH WET POND SO. CENTRAL TRIBUTARY 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 89



memo 
4 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

 

Rule 2.0—STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 

Under 2.2(b) of the rules, the proposed project triggers the application of Rule 2.0 Stormwater 
Management because it creates one or more acres of new and/or reconstructed impervious surface. 
The site is located within the Diversion Structure Subwatershed, so the stormwater criteria in 
subsection 2.4.1(b) apply. 

The	stormwater	management	plan	for	the	project	includes:	

 Two	wet	ponds	to	provide	rate	control	and	water	quality	treatment.		
 Stormwater	 reuse	 for	 irrigation	 across	 5.88	 acres	 of	 the	 redevelopment	 to	 provide	 volume	

control.		
 Replacement	planting	of	192	trees	with	the	requisite	storage	to	allow	for	evapotranspiration.		

	

Existing	drainage	from	the	site	consists	of	three	drainage	areas:	west,	central,	and	east	(Figure 2).	The	
drainage	areas	are	4.22	acres,	15.84	acres,	and	2.73	acres	respectively.	Under	existing	conditions,	the	
stormwater	runoff	from	the	site	sheet	flows	to	the	wetland	complex	located	along	the	southern	portion	
of	 the	site.	Under	proposed	conditions,	 these	drainage	areas	are	combined	 into	 two	drainage	areas:	
north	and	south,	the	drainage	areas	are	10.63	acres	and	12.16	acres	respectively	(Figure 3).	Stormwater	
runoff	is	discharged	from	the	site	to	the	wetland	complex	via	storm	sewer	from	the	two	wet	ponds.		

 

	

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 90



memo 
5 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

 

Figure	2:	Existing	site	drainage	

 
Figure	3:	Proposed	site	drainage	

EAST WET POND 

SOUTH WET POND 

SO. CENTRAL TRIBUTARY 

SO. CENTRAL TRIBUTARY 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 91



memo 
6 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

Rate Control 
According to BCWD Rule 2.4.1(b)(i), an applicant must submit a stormwater-management plan 
providing no increase in the existing peak stormwater flow rates from the site for a 24-hour 
precipitation event with a return frequency of two, 10 or 100 years for all points where discharges 
leave the site.   

☒ Rule Requirement Met with conditions.  

The	stormwater	management	plan	developed	 for	the	site	was	evaluated	using	a	HydroCAD	model	of	
existing	and	post‐development	site	conditions.	A	comparison	of	the	modeled	peak	flow	rate	is	included	
in	Table	1	and	Table	2.		

Table	1	– Peak Discharge Rates East 

The existing east discharge point is now the northeast offsite discharge point under proposed conditions.  

Event Existing	(cfs) Proposed*	(cfs)	

2-year 
(2.80”) 3.7 .06 

10-year 
(4.17”) 7.8 1.9 

100-year 
(7.23”) 18.2 3.8 

	
Table	2	–	Peak Discharge Rates South 

The existing central and west discharge points are combined to create the south discharge point under 
proposed conditions. This includes the south pond and east pond outlets.  

Event Existing	(cfs) Proposed*	(cfs) 

2-year 
(2.80”) 21.4 5.1 

10-year 
(4.17”) 45.9 29.6 

100-year 
(7.23”) 107.2 80.1 

*Proposed	runoff	rates	will	be	lower	than	what	is	included	in	tables	1	&	2	because	the	abstraction	for	
the	tree	planting	areas	was	not	included	in	the	HydroCAD	model.	

Volume Control  
According to BCWD Rule 2.4.1(b)(ii), an applicant must submit a stormwater-management plan 
providing retention onsite of 1.1 inches of stormwater volume from the regulated impervious 
surface. 
A	geotechnical	evaluation	for	the	site	confirmed	the	information	provided	in	the	Washington	County	
geologic	atlas,	that	the	area	is	a	former	glacial	lake	predominantly	consisting	of	clay	deposits.	The	soil	

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 92



memo 
7 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

borings	show	that	most	of	the	soils	fall	in	hydrologic	soil	group	D.	The	applicant	explored	alternative	
methods	 for	 achieving	 volume	 control	 as	 described	 in	 the	 analysis	 below.	Given	 this,	 the	 applicant	
asserts,	and	the	BCWD	concurs,	that	 it	 is	not	reasonably	feasible	to	meet	the	2.4.1(b)(ii)	standard	of	
retention	onsite	of	1.1	 inches	of	stormwater	volume	 from	 the	regulated	 impervious	surface,	and	 the	
flexible	treatment	options	in	subsection	2.4.3	apply	to	determine	the	volume‐control	(and	water‐quality)	
requirements	 for	 the	 project:	 “…	 management	 of	 volume	 and	 water	 quality	 from	 the	 regulated	
impervious	surface	[must	be	provided]in	accordance	with	the	following	priority	sequence:		

(a)	 Retention	 onsite	 of	 0.55	 inches	 of	 runoff	 and	 removal	 of	 75	 percent	 of	 the	 annual	 total	
phosphorus	loading;	
(b)	 Retention	 onsite	 of	 stormwater	 volume	 to	 the	maximum	 extent	 	Brown’s	 Creek	Watershed	
District	Rules		15	practicable	and	removal	of	60	percent	of	the	annual	total	phosphorus	loading. 

☒ Rule Requirement Met with conditions. 

	Alternative	volume	control	options	summarized	in	Table	3	were	evaluated	to	identify	how	much	volume	
control	 could	be	provided	onsite.	The	applicant	proposes	 the	 following	practices	 to	provide	 volume	
control:		

1. Evapotranspiration	 (ET)	 from	 192	 newly	 planted	 trees	 incorporated	 as	 part	 of	 the	
landscaping	plan.	Stormwater	runoff	from	the	buildings	will	be	directed	to		11‐foot	diameter	
by	0.5‐foot	deep	circular	depressional	storage	surrounding	the	base	of	planted	with	trees	
that	will	utilize	 that	 stormwater	 runoff	 for	 evapotranspiration.	Evapotranspiration	was	
calculated	 using	 guidance	 provided	 by	 the	 Minnesota	 Pollution	 Control	 Agency	 and	
accounts	 for	 8,096	 cubic	 feet	 (CF)	 of	 volume	 control.	 One	 of	 the	 assumptions	made	 in	
calculating	 the	volume‐control	achieved	 from	ET	 is	 that	 the	vegetation	 is	100%	mature,	
which	will	not	be	the	case	for	the	first	five	to	10	years.		

2. Interception	 from	 192	 newly	 planted	 trees	 incorporated	 as	 part	 of	 the	 bioretention	
facilities	on	site.	Using	the	 interception	calculation	 from	the	Minnesota	Pollution	Control	
Agency,	the	newly	planted	trees	will	provide	1,808	CF	of	volume	control.		

3. Stormwater	Reuse	from	the	development	will	be	sourced	from	the	two	wet	sedimentation	
basins	onsite	and	used	for	irrigation	on	5.88	acres	of	the	development.	The	reuse	system	will	
provide	11,330	CF	of	volume	control.	

As	Table	4	demonstrates,	the	stormwater	management	plan	exceeds	the	0.55	inch	requirement	in	2.4.3	
FTO(a).		

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 93



memo 
8 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

Table	3	–	BMPs Evaluated 

BMP Evaluated? Utilized? Why or why not? 

Infiltration 
Yes No Hydrologic soil group HSG D 

Harvest and 
Reuse Yes Yes Irrigating all available green space across the site (see figure 3) 

Green Roofs Yes No Buildings have pitched roofs which aren’t conducive to green roofs. 

ET/Tree 
Trenches Yes Yes 

Utilizing ET with 192 tree plantings by creating depressional storage for 
uptake.  

Interception Yes Yes Utilized with the 192 tree plantings. 

Permeable 
Pavers/ 

Pavement 
Yes No Hydrologic soil group HSG D 

	
	

Table	2 – Summary of Volume Requirements for Rule 2. 

Volume	Control	
Requirement 

Required	Volume	(CF) Provided	Volume	(CF) %	of	Required	
Volume	

2.4.3(a) FTO (a) 

0.55” over 9.36 acres 

18,687 21,234 113% 

	

As	Table	2	demonstrates,	the	stormwater	management	facilities	will	achieve	(or	exceed)	the	Flexible	
Treatment	Option	of	0.55	inches	of	retention	on	site.	The	trees	planned	to	be	planted	along	the	roadway	
will	address	more	 than	 stormwater	management	and	 serve	 to	address	urban	heat	 island	effect,	air	
quality,	noise	pollution	and	wildlife	habitat	needs.	

Infiltration Pretreatment 

According to BCWD Rule 2.5.2 surface flows to infiltration facilities must be pretreated for long-term 
removal of at least 50 percent of sediment loads. 

☐ Rule Not Applicable to Permit. There	are	no	infiltration	practices	proposed.		

Water Quality 

According to BCWD Rule 2.4.3, an applicant must submit a stormwater-management plan providing 
retention of 0.55 inches of runoff and removal of 75 percent of the annual total phosphorus loading. 

☒ Rule Requirement Met. 

Through	the	use	of	wet	ponds	and	stormwater	reuse	by	irrigation,	the	development	meets	the	BCWD	
water	quality	requirement	in	2.4.3(a).	The	wet	ponds	are	designed	to	the	Minnesota	Stormwater	Manual	
Design	Level	3	Wet	Ponds	to	meet	removal	requirements	of:	total	suspended	solids	=	90%,	particulate	

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 94



memo 
9 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

phosphorus	=	90%,	and	total	phosphorus	=	60%.	Combining	the	wet	ponds	with	the	stormwater	reuse	
by	irrigation	system,	the	BMPs	remove:	total	suspended	solids	=	94%	and	total	phosphorus	=	76%.	Again,	
these	 water	 quality	 treatment	 calculations	 do	 not	 reflect	 the	 volume	 reduction	 provided	 by	
evapotranspiration	which	will	result	in	greater	water	quality	treatment.		

Lake/Wetland Bounce 

According to BCWD Rule 2.4.1(b)(iii), an applicant must submit a stormwater-management plan 
providing no increase in the bounce in water level or duration of inundation for a 24-hour 
precipitation event with a return frequency of two, 10 or 100 years in the subwatershed in which the 
site is located, for any downstream lake or wetland beyond the limit specified in Appendix 2.1.  

☒  Rule Requirement Met 

The	wetland	complex	on	site	is	adjacent	to	the	south‐central	tributary	to	Brown’s	Creek.	This	wetland	
does	 not	 contain	 depressional	 storage	 and	 has	 a	 positive	 grade	 to	 the	 tributary	 which	 carries	
stormwater	runoff	further	downstream.	As	such,	there	will	be	no	increase	in	bounce	and	inundation	as	
water	routed	to	the	wetland	passes	through	the	system	and	travels	downstream	via	the	south‐central	
tributary.	

The	Manage	2	wetland	complex	has	a	permitted	bounce	for	all	storm	events	of	pre‐development	bounce	
plus	1	foot.	To	demonstrate	compliance,	the	increase	in	stormwater	volume	for	the	100‐yr	storm	was	
divided	by	the	surface	area	of	the	wetland	onsite	to	attain	the	increase	in	bounce.	Calculations	shown	
below	demonstrate	that	the	increase	in	bounce	meets	the	BCWD	rules,	since	the	bounce	for	the	2‐year	
and	the	10‐year	would	be	less	than	the	100‐year	event.	

	

𝐶ℎ𝑎𝑛𝑔𝑒 𝑖𝑛 𝑏𝑜𝑢𝑛𝑐𝑒 ൌ
𝐼𝑛𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑎𝑠𝑒 𝑖𝑛 100 𝑦𝑒𝑎𝑟 𝑟𝑢𝑛𝑜𝑓𝑓 𝑣𝑜𝑙𝑢𝑚𝑒ሺ𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒 െ 𝑓𝑡ሻ 

𝑊𝑒𝑡𝑙𝑎𝑛𝑑 𝑠𝑢𝑟𝑓𝑎𝑐𝑒 𝑎𝑟𝑒𝑎 ሺ𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠ሻ
	

	

𝐶ℎ𝑎𝑛𝑔𝑒 𝑖𝑛 𝑏𝑜𝑢𝑛𝑐𝑒 ൌ
11.371 െ 8.616 

4.57
ൌ 0.60 𝑓𝑡 ൏ 1 𝑓𝑡	

 
Rule 2.0 Conditions: 

2-1. Provide BCWD with the final Civil Plan Set along with the following revisions. (BCWD 2.7.9) 

a. Identify which ponds are being drawn from for the irrigation reuse system on the plan set 
and provide an irrigation reuse supply and distribution plan outlining pump sources and 
irrigated areas to remain in perpetuity on the property.   

b. Identify clearly on the plan set which trees will be utilized for evapotranspiration and 
clearly demarcate the depressional storage for each tree. 

c. Submit a revised detail for the tree planting specifying that the depressional storage is 
required for evapotranspiration. Clearly show the dimensions for the depressional storage in 
the detail. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 95



memo 
10 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

2-2. Provide a draft stormwater facility maintenance declaration for BCWD approval, then, after 
approval, provide proof of recordation with Washington County. A template is available 
under the permit section of the District’s website. Include in the maintenance plan protection 
of all natural areas and trees to be used to meet stormwater-management requirements 
through evapotranspiration and interception. Include protection of all vegetated areas that 
must be preserved for irrigation use on the property in the maintenance plan and require in 
the annual documentation of the weekly depth of water to be used for irrigation along with 
the dates during which the irrigation system will be active. (BCWD Rule 2.6) 

2-3. Provide documentation as to the status of a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
stormwater permit for the project from the Minnesota pollution Control Agency and provide 
the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) as it becomes available (BCWD Rule 
2.7.15). 

2-4. 100-yr HWL values on plans do not match the HydroCAD report values. Update for 
consistency. 

 

Rule 3.0—EROSION CONTROL  

According to BCWD Rule 3.2, all persons undertaking any grading, filling, or other land-altering 
activities which involve movement of more than fifty (50) cubic yards of earth or removal of 
vegetative cover on five thousand (5,000) square feet or more of land must submit an erosion control 
plan to the District, and secure a permit from the District approving the erosion control plan.  The 
proposed project triggers the application of Rule 3.0 Erosion Control because of land altering 
activities involving movement of more than fifty cubic yards of earth and removal of vegetative cover 
on five thousand square feet or more of land.  

☒  Rule Requirements Met with Conditions 

The	erosion	and	sediment	control	plan	includes:		
 Silt	fence	
 Rock	construction	entrance	
 Inlet	protection	
 Dual	row	silt	fence	
 Rip	rap	at	stormwater	outflows	
 Rip	rap	at	emergency	overflows	
 Temporary	seeding	and	blanketing	
 Temporary	sedimentation	basins	

The	following	conditions	must	be	addressed	in	the	erosion	and	sediment	control	plan	to	comply	with	the	
District’s	requirements:	

Rule 3.0 Conditions:	

3-1. Provide the contact information for the erosion and sediment control responsible party 
during construction once a contractor is selected.  Provide the District with contact 
information for the Erosion Control Supervisor and the construction schedule when available 
(BCWD 3.3.2). 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 96



memo 
11 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

3-2. Provide a dewatering plan for review and approval that provides water quality control 
commensurate with the classification of the downstream water resources (BCWD 3.3.2). 

3-3. Provide documentation showing that existing discharge rates will be maintained throughout 
construction(BCWD 3.3.2).  

Rule 4.0—LAKE, STREAM, AND WETLAND BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

According to BCWD Rule 4.2.1, Rule 4.0 applies to land that is (a) adjacent to Brown’s Creek; a 
tributary of Brown’s Creek designated as a public water (Minnesota Statutes section 103G.005, 
subdivision 15); a lake, as defined in the rules; a wetland one acre or larger; or a groundwater-
dependent natural resource; and (b) that has been either (i) subdivided or (ii) subject to a new 
primary use for which a necessary rezoning, conditional use permit, special-use permit or variance 
has been approved on or after April 9, 2007, (for wetlands and groundwater-dependent natural 
resources other than public waters) or January 1, 2000 (for other waters). 

☒  Rule Requirements Met with conditions. 

Rule	4.0	applies	to	the	site	because	it	is	adjacent	to	the	S.	Central	Tributary	of	Brown’s	Creek	and	its	
adjacent	wetland	complex,	which	is	larger	than	one	acre	and	the	proposed	project	involves	subdivision	
of	the	property	and	a	conditional	use	permit	from	the	City	of	Stillwater.	Both	the	wetland	delineation	
and	a	site	visit	by	District	staff	established	that	the	tributary	and	the	adjacent	wetland	complex	are	not	
groundwater	dependent.	The	portion	of	the	wetland	complex	located	on	the	site	has	been	identified	as	
a	manage	2	wetland	and	requires	a	buffer	of	50	 feet.	The	tributary	stream	buffer	requires	a	25‐foot	
streamside	 zone,	 50‐foot	middle	 zone,	 and	 a	 75‐foot	 outer	 zone,	 all	 of	which	 are	 subsumed	 by	 the	
wetland	complex	manage	2	50‐foot	buffer.	Within	the	buffer,	grading	and	storm	utilities	are	proposed	
associated	with	the	construction	of	the	east	and	south	stormwater	(wet)	ponds.	No	construction	activity	
is	occurring	in	any	of	the	tributary	stream	buffer	zones.	Buffer	monumentation,	reviewed	and	approved	
by	district	staff,	must	be	provided	and	installed	along	the	manage	2	wetland	complex	buffer	edge	every	
200	feet.			

Under Rule 4.4.1, at the time a buffer is created under Rule 4.0, the District may require a planting or 
landscaping plan to establish adequate native vegetative cover for area that (a) has vegetation 
composed of more than 30 percent of undesirable plant species (including, but not limited to reed 
canary grass, common buckthorn, purple loosestrife, leafy spurge, bull thistle, or other noxious 
weeds); or (b) consists more than 10 percent of bare or disturbed soil or turf grass. 

Review	of	the	current	vegetative	condition	in	the	proposed	buffer	has	not	been	assessed	due	to	the	time	
of	year.		As	a	stipulation	of	permit	approval,	the	buffer	vegetation	needs	to	be	analyzed	and	the	project	
landscaping	plan	must	be	modified	and	approved	by	BCWD	as	needed	to	bring	the	wetland	buffers	into	
conformance	with	Rule	4.4.1.	

Under Rules 4.4.2, Lake and Wetland Buffers; Streamside Zone of Stream Buffer. The following 
activities are prohibited within a lake or wetland buffer, and within the streamside zone of a stream 
buffer: (c) Altering vegetation, except for (i) vegetative enhancements, as approved in writing by 
staff; and (ii) the removal of invasive exotic species or of trees for disease control or revegetation. A 
tree larger than six inches in diameter at a point two feet above the ground may be removed only on 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 97



memo 
12 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

written authorization from District staff on a determination that the function of the buffer will not be 
diminished. 

A	tree	removal	plan	was	submitted	for	the	entire	site.	The	site	tree	removal	plan	proposes	tree	removal	
in	the	manage	2	wetland	buffers.	These	trees	are	not	specifically	called	out	separately	from	the	overall	
site.		To	demonstrate	compliance	with	the	rule,	provide	a	list	and	description	(diameters)	of	the	trees	
proposed	to	be	removed	from	the	buffer	area	for	the	watershed	district	staff	to	review	and	approve.	 

	

Rule 4.0 Conditions:	

4-1. Provide a draft buffer-maintenance declaration for BCWD approval, then, after approval, 
proof of recordation with Washington County. A template is available under the permit 
section of the District’s website.  

4-2. Submit buffer monumentation marker sign design to be approved by District staff.  

4-3. Provide a list and description (diameters) of the trees proposed to be removed from the 
buffer area for the watershed district staff to review and approve.  (BCWD Rule 4.4.2(c)). 

Rule 5.0—SHORELINE AND STREAMBANK ALTERATIONS 

According to BCWD Rule 5.2, no person may disturb the natural shoreline or streambank partially or 
wholly below the ordinary high water mark of a waterbody, without first securing a permit from the 
District.  

☐  Rule Not Applicable to Permit. There	are	no	proposed	shoreline	or	streambank	alterations.	

Rule 6.0—WATERCOURSE AND BASIN CROSSINGS 

According to Rule 6.2, no person may use the beds of any waterbody within the District for the 
placement of roads, highways and utilities without first securing a permit from the District.  

☐  Rule Not Applicable to Permit. There	are	no	proposed	watercourse	or	basin	crossings.	

Rule 7.0—FLOODPLAIN AND DRAINAGE ALTERATIONS 

According to Rule 7.2, no person may alter or fill land below the 100-year flood elevation of any 
waterbody, wetland, or stormwater management basin, or place fill in a landlocked basin, without 
first obtaining a permit from the District.  No person may alter stormwater flows at a property 
boundary by changing land contours, diverting or obstructing surface or channel flow, or creating a 
basin outlet, without first obtaining a permit from the District. 

The	proposed	discharge	rates	from	the	site	are	less	than	existing	conditions	so	any	excess	volume	above	
existing	 conditions	will	be	discharged	at	a	 rate	 that	allows	 the	volume	 to	be	 conveyed	 through	 the	
existing	wetland	complex	and	tributary	system.	Given	this,	there	is	no	alteration	of	stormwater	flow	at	
the	property	boundary	triggering	the	rule.	However,	the	 freeboard	criteria	 in	subsection	7.3.2	apply	
through	operation	of	subsection	2.5.4;	the	freeboard	criteria	are	applied	here: 

  ☒  Rule Requirements Met	

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 98



memo 
13 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

According to BCWD rule 7.3.2 all new and reconstructed buildings must be constructed such that the 
lowest floor is at least two feet above the 100-year high water elevation or one foot above the 
emergency overflow (EOF) of a constructed basin.   

The	100‐year	high	water	elevations,	EOFs,	and	lowest	adjacent	building	elevations	were	evaluated	and	
meet	the	District’s	 low	 floor	requirement	as	demonstrated	 in	Table	3.	Stormwater	 flows	at	property	
boundaries	remain	the	same	from	existing	to	proposed	conditions.			

	

Table	3	‐	Freeboard Requirement Summary	

Stormwater	
Facility	 EOF	 100‐Year	HWL	

Allowable	Lowest	
Floor	

Lowest	Proposed	
Floor	

East Pond 897.50 897.52 899.52 901.50 

South Pond 897.50 897.29 898.50 903.50 

 
 

Rule 8.0—FEES 

Fees for this project as outlined below:  

 

1. Stormwater management fee $3,000.00 
2. Erosion control fee for grading $1,500.00 
3. Shoreline and streambank alterations fee $NA 
4. Stream and lake crossings fee $NA 
5. Floodplain and drainage alterations fee $500.00 

 
 	TOTAL	FEES	 $5,000.00	

Rule 9.0—FINANCIAL ASSURANCES 

Financial assurances for this project are as outlined below: 
1. Grading or Alteration (19.16 acres disturbed x $2,000/acre) $38,320.00 
2. Stormwater Management Facilities (125% of facility cost) $1,343,000.00 

 

 	TOTAL	FINANCIAL	ASSURANCES		
($5,000	Minimum	Performance	Financial	Assurance)	 $1,381,320.00	

Rule 10.0—VARIANCES 

According	to	BCWD	Rule	10.0,	the	Board	of	Managers	may	hear	requests	for	variances	from	the	literal	
provisions	 of	 these	 Rules	 in	 instances	where	 their	 strict	 enforcement	would	 cause	 undue	 hardship	
because	of	the	circumstances	unique	to	the	property	under	consideration.		The	Board	of	Managers	may	
grant	variances	where	it	is	demonstrated	that	such	action	will	be	keeping	with	the	spirit	and	intent	of	
these	rules.	Variance	approval	may	be	conditioned	on	an	applicant’s	preventing	or	mitigating	adverse	
impacts	from	the	activity.	

☒  Rule Not Applicable to Permit. There	are	no	requested	variances.	

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 99



memo 
14 of 14 

Emmons  &  O l i v ie r  Resources ,  I nc .   

1919 University Avenue West, Suite 300 St. Paul, MN  55104    T/ 651.770.8448    F/ 651.770.2552    www.eorinc.com 

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF THE PERMIT: 

The following is a summary of the remaining tasks necessary to bring the project into compliance 
with the BCWD Rules in all respects other than where variances are requested as discussed above: 

1. Demonstrate that the plan has received preliminary plat approval (BCWD Rule 1.3a). 
2. Address all stormwater management requirements (Conditions 2-1 to 2-4). 
3. Address all erosion control requirements (Conditions 3-1 to 3-3). 
4. Address all buffer requirements (Conditions 4-1 to 4-3). 
5. Replenish the Permit fee deposit to $5,000 (BCWD Rule 8.0). If the permit fee deposit is not 

replenished within 60 days of receiving notice that such deposit is due, the permit 
application or permit will be deemed abandoned and all prior approvals will be revoked and 
collection proceedings will begin on unpaid balances. 

6. Provide the required financial assurances (BCWD Rule 9.0): 
a. Total grading or alteration assurance 19.16 acres ($38,320.00). 
b. Stormwater management facilities assurance ($1,343,000.00). 

STIPULATIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1. Note that the permit, if issued, will require that the applicant notify the District in writing at 
least three business days prior to commencing land disturbance. (BCWD Rule 3.3.1) 

2. Provide the District with As-built record drawings showing that the completed grading and 
stormwater facilities conform to the grading plan. 

3. During the growing season, conduct an assessment of the proposed buffer zone area to 
determine the vegetative composition of undesirable plant species, bare, disturbed soil or 
turf grass. Modify the landscaping plan accordingly and submit for District review and 
approval. 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 100



Project Name |  Informational Signs Date | 12/4/2023 

To / Contact info | BCWD Board of Managers 

Cc / Contact info | Karen Kill, BCWD Administrator 

From / Contact info | Britta Hansen, PLA 

Regarding | Sign Design & Procurement Scope: Brown’s Creek Stream Restoration 

Background 
Based on past experience from the Tributaries Restoration Project and need for signage to inform 
local residents of project activities, particularly tree harvest, Karen Kill suggested similar signage be 
considered for the upcoming Brown’s Creek Stream Restoration project to inform the scope and 
benefits of the project to trail users along the Brown’s Creek State Trail. The table below includes two 
tasks to repeat the signage effort that was conducted for the Tributaries Restoration project and 
includes installation of temporary signage directing trail users and residents to more information on 
the District’s website via a QR code.  

Sign Design & Material Scope 

Task Description Hours Cost 

1. Design small 
“peg” style 
sign 

Temporary signage will be posted before the 
project begins (ideally by January 15, 2024). It 
will feature a simple graphic and QR code to web 
content about the project. The signs will be 
approximately 13”x15” in size and should be 
placed in highly visible locations along the Brown’s 
Creek State Trail. 

12 $1,900 

2. Order and 
install 
signage 

This cost reflects the following printing cost 
estimate provided by Bayport Printing: QTY 4 - 
12"X16" corrugated plastic signs with H stand (2 
sided) for $130.00. 

4 $775 

Total: 16 $2,675 

Requested Action 
1. Consider approval of this scope of services for an estimated cost of $2,675.00 from account 

910-0000. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 101



RESOLUTION OF THE BROWN’S CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT 
 

ADOPTION OF THE  
WASHINGTON COUNTY ALL-HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, the Brown’s Creek Watershed District has participated in the hazard 

mitigation planning process as established under the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, and 
WHEREAS, the Act establishes a framework for the development of a multi-

jurisdictional County Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 
WHEREAS, the Act as part of the planning process requires public involvement 

and local coordination among neighboring local units of government and businesses; and 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Plan includes a risk assessment including 

past hazards, hazards that threaten the County, an estimate of structures at risk, a general 
description of land uses and development trends; and 

WHEREAS, the Washington County Plan includes a mitigation strategy including 
goals and objectives and an action plan identifying specific mitigation projects and costs; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Washington County Plan includes a maintenance or 
implementation process including plan updates, integration of the plan into other 
planning documents and how Washington County will maintain public participation and 
coordination; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan has been shared with the Minnesota Division of Homeland 
Security and Emergency Management and the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
for review and comment; and 

WHEREAS, the Washington County All-Hazard Mitigation Plan will make the 
county and participating jurisdictions eligible to receive FEMA hazard mitigation 
assistance grants; and  

WHEREAS, this is a multi-jurisdictional Plan and cities that participated in the 
planning process may choose to also adopt the County Plan. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Brown’s Creek Watershed 

District supports the hazard mitigation planning effort and wishes to adopt the 
Washington County All-Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
The question was on the adoption of the resolution and there were ___ yeas and ___ nays as 
follows: 

     Yea  Nay  Absent  Abstain 
ECKLES                     
JOHNSON                    
LEROUX                    
SAHULKA                    
WIRTH                    
 
 
Upon vote, the chair declared the resolution adopted. 

 
*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 102



 
 I, Charles LeRoux, secretary of the Brown’s Creek Watershed District, do hereby certify 
that I have compared the above resolution with the original thereof as the same appears of record 
and on file with the BCWD and find the same to be a true and correct transcript thereof. 
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ____ day of 
______________, 2023. 
 
 
       ______________________________  
       Charles LeRoux, Secretary 
 
 
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 103



Managers: 
Klay Eckles, President  Celia Wirth, Vice-President  Gerald Johnson, Treasurer  Chuck LeRoux, Secretary  Debra Sahulka, Manager 

 

 
December 14, 2023 
 
Megan Moore, DNR – 1200 Warner Road, St. Paul, MN 55106   megan.moore@state.mn.us 
Abby Shea, MDH – 18 Wood Lake Drive, Rochester, MN 55904   abby.shea@state.mn.us  
Jeff Berg, MDA – 3725 12th Street North, St. Cloud, MN 56303   jeffrey.berg@state.mn.us 
Maureen Hoffman, MCES – 390 North Robert Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55101-1626  waterresourcesreviews@metc.state.mn.us 
Jeff Risberg, MPCA – 520 Lafayette Road North, St. Paul, MN 55155   jeff.risberg @state.mn.us 
Jason Swenson, MNDOT – 1500 W County Road B, Roseville, MN 55113  jason.swenson@state.mn.us 
Michelle Jordan, BWSR – 520 Lafayette Road North, St. Paul, MN 55155  Michelle.Jordan@state.mn.us 
Jessica Collin-Pilarski, Washington County Public Health & Environment –  

14949 62nd Street North, P.O. Box 6, Stillwater, MN 55082 Jessica.Collin-Pilarski@co.washington.mn.us  
Kevin Corbid, Washington County Administrator –  

14949 62nd Street North, P.O. Box 6, Stillwater, MN 55082   kevin.corbid@co.washington.mn.us 
Jay Riggs, Washington Conservation District –  

455 Hayward Ave N, Oakdale, MN 55128      jriggs@mnwcd.org 
City of Grant - Box 487, Willernie, MN 55090     clerk@cityofgrant.us 
City of Hugo - 14669 Fitzgerald Avenue North, Hugo, Minnesota, 55038  bbear@ci.hugo.mn.us  
City of Lake Elmo - 3800 Lavern Ave. N, Lake Elmo, MN  55042   jjohnson@lakeelmo.org 
May Township - 13519 May Ave. N, Stillwater, MN  55082    bobbi@townofmay.org 
City of Oak Park Heights - P.O. Box 2007, Oak Park Heights, MN  55082   JRife@cityofoakparkheights.com  
City of Stillwater - 216 N 4th Street, Stillwater, MN  55082    ssanders@ci.stillwater.mn.us  
Stillwater Township - 13636 90th Street N, Stillwater, MN  55082-9660     clerk@stillwatertownshipmn.gov 
Carnelian-Marine St. Croix Watershed District – PO Box 188 Scandia, MN 55073  mike.isensee@cmscwd.org 
Valley Branch Watershed District - P.O. Box 838, Lake Elmo, 55042   jhanson@barr.com 
Middle St. Croix Watershed Management Organization –  

455 Hayward Ave N, Oakdale, MN 55128     mdowning@mnwcd.org 
 
Re: Brown’s Creek Watershed District 2027-2036 Management Plan Initiation - 60 day notice  
 
Brown’s Creek Watershed District Plan Reviewer:  
 
The Brown’s Creek Watershed District (BCWD) will be developing its Fifth Generation Watershed Management Plan (2027-
2036).  We are providing you and all plan reviewers with this notification of plan initiation.  We look forward to working with 
you.  To develop the best plan possible for our water resources, the BCWD requests the following information from you in the 
next 60 days relevant to the Brown’s Creek Watershed District: 

 Description of management expectations for priority issues 
 Summaries of relevant water management goals 
 Official controls and programs  
 Water resource information  

Please submit information by Monday, February, 12, 2024 by email at Karen.kill@mnwcd.org or by mail at 455 
Hayward Ave N, Oakdale, MN 55128. 
 
Feel free to contact me with any questions at 651-330-8220.  Thank you for your help. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
 
Karen Kill, BCWD Administrator 
Cc: BCWD monthly stakeholder mailing list via email 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 104



BCWD ENHANCED ENGAGEMENT 
 

Date | 12/8/2023 

To / Contact info | BCWD Board of Managers / Karen Kill, District Administrator 

From / Contact info | Camilla Correll, Karli McCawley, Evan Murdoch, Will Martin 

Regarding | Next Steps for the Enhance Engagement Effort 

Background 

At the last Board Meeting, EOR asked that the BCWD Board of Managers complete the exercise of identifying who on 
the stakeholder list they have a connection to in order to narrow down the list of who will be contacted for the informal 
interviews. This memorandum summarizes the work completed to date and maps out the work that remains to be 
completed for this initial portion of the Enhanced Engagement Effort. 

Update 

To date, the following tasks have been completed for this effort: 

• Populated the list of potential stakeholders and/or entities who may be a gateway to stakeholders. 
• Categorized potential stakeholders. 
• Asked the CAC and the Board of Managers for feedback – identify gaps. 
• Asked CAC and the Board of Managers to identify which entities they have a relationship with so they can be 

assigned to conduct informal interviews with that entity. 
• Identify who is going to be interviewed by the Board and District Staff. 
• Evaluate who is missing from the audience. 
• Finalize the list of entities/people to be interviewed. 
• Add columns to the stakeholder list (database) to log the following information: 

o Contact for the entity. 
o When did they contact the entity/interviewee (initial contact)? 
o When did they meet (second contact)? 
o Was the meeting successful/were they engaged? 
o Is the Google Form complete? 

Next Steps for Conducting the Informal Interviews 

1. Draft scripts/interview questions. 
- See DRAFT Script and Interview Questions below. 

2. NEW – Consider developing a “leave behind” (See Handout Scope of Work on the agenda) 
- Handout to leave with the interviewee. 
- Signals that this is a serious effort/organization. 
- Provides contact information, link to the District’s website, etc. 

3. Schedule for conducting interviews. 
- December 11 CAC Meeting – Share/Confirrm Assignments 
- December 13 Board Meeting – Share/Confirm Assignments 
- December 15, 2023 - January 1, 2024 

i. Board and CAC to identify contacts or let District Staff know if they need assistance.  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 105



ii. EOR to complete handout, interviewee materials, script 
- January 1 – February 12/14, 2024 

i. Conduct interviews 
ii. Submit information collected during interviews. 
iii. Evaluate interest in additional meetings (i.e., 1-hour meeting, Focus Group meeting, other). 

4. Summarize information collected during interviews. 
- Google Form 
- Yes/no questions so interviewer can fill in a form using iPad where possible. 
- Open-ended questions can be filled in by taking notes. 
- Interviewer to populate Google Form after completing the interview. 

5. Recommendations for next steps. 

Draft Script and Interview Questions 

When engaging with residents to discuss watershed management, it's essential to ask questions that encourage 
dialogue, gather valuable insights, and foster a sense of shared responsibility. By fostering a sense of shared 
responsibility and emphasizing the tangible benefits of watershed management, you can encourage active 
participation and collaboration among citizens. 

Initial Conversation / Voicemail Message: 

- Hello. This is [your name here] calling on behalf of the Brown’s Creek Watershed District. 
- BCWD is a local unit of government which is responsible for the management of surface water resources. We 

work with cities, developers, and citizens to protect and restore our water and natural resources. 
- The BCWD covers parts of the cities of Oak Park Heights, Stillwater, Lake Elmo, Grant, , and Hugo and Stillwater,  

& May Townships.. 
- As part of our 10-year planning process, we are interested in expanding our network and looking for 

opportunities for mutual partnerships in order to provide more benefits to the community. To do this, we want 
to better understand who lives, works and/or recreates in the watershed so we better understand the needs 
of our community. 

- We are reaching out to people like yourself to see if we can schedule a 30-minute conversation to learn more 
about your organization and explore synergies between your work and the watershed district’s work. This 
meeting can take place in person, over a cup of coffee, or it can take place virtually. 

- If you are interested in meeting, please call me at [your number here]. 

Informal Introductory Interview [30 minutes]: 

[Note: This will be tailored to a couple of different audience types] 

The goal of this interview is to expand our network and identify win-win’s – how can the watershed district help your 
organization and/or the people you serve and how can you help us provide better/more equitable services. 

Introduction to the Organization/Interviewee [10 minutes]: 

- What is your organization’s mission? 
- How large is your membership? 
- Who belongs to your group? 
- How does your organization go about accomplishing its mission? 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 106



- Encourage interviewees to share how their organization or their constituents interact with the environment 
(i.e., walking to the grocery store, accessing trails/public open space or leaking roofs/basements subject to 
flooding). 

Introduction to the BCWD [10 minutes]: 

- What is a watershed district? Share the handout. 
- Have you heard of the BCWD? Have you seen our project signs along Brown’s Creek State Trail or at the Oak 

Glen Golf Course? 
- Have you or your organization had an interaction with the BCWD (i.e., watershed conservation or clean-up 

efforts)? 
- Have you or your organization used any of the BCWD’s resources? 
- BCWD has been an organization since 1997. 
- BCWD’s mission statement: “The Brown’s Creek Watershed District works with the community to: 

o Preserve and improve the quality of the District’s water and natural resources. 
o Educate residents about the value of this ecosystem and advise residents of their potential impacts 

on the functions and values of the District’s water and natural resources. 
o Implement acceptable solutions to water-related issues. 
o Sustainably accommodate development. 
o Assure that the integrity of the watershed is preserved for future generations. 

- Here are some of the things the BCWD does…See table below. 

Identify Synergies [5 minutes]: 

Do you see places where your work overlaps with our work? 

- Are there opportunities to: 
o Partner on projects. 
o Host education events together (i.e., hiking event and bring food for food drive) 

 What would make it easier for your organization or the people you serve to participate in 
an event (i.e., day care, accessibility, other)? 

o Solicit volunteers. 
 What would make it easier for your organization to participate in volunteer activities? 

o Participate on the co-design of projects. 
o Sit on the CAC. 
o Participate in the watershed management plan update. 

Do you have any suggestions for involving more residents in watershed-related activities? 

Who else do you think we would have synergies with? Who else should the BCWD be connecting with? 

Are you interested in continuing the conversation? 

1-to-10 question for the interviewer – What was the enthusiasm level of the interviewee? 
  

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 107



Interview Support Package: 

In addition to the handout/leave behind which will include a map of the BCWD, the following table may help the 
interviewer describe the BCWD’s activities and help to identify where there may be overlap or opportunities to partner 
in the work. 

 

BCWD Programs/ 
Initiatives 

Program Description Who is involved now? Who else could/should be 
involved? 

Capital 
Improvement 
Program 

BCWD implements capital improvement projects to 
address water quality, water quantity, and other 
issues identified in the 10-year watershed 
management plan. Examples include: Rock Crib at 
Brown’s Creek Park, and buffer along Oak Glen Golf 
Course. 

Cities, Townships, state 
agencies, Washington 
County 

Consider engaging the 
public in the co-design of 
projects, especially those 
being proposed to be 
constructed in their 
neighborhoods. 

Education and 
Outreach 

Provide education about the impacts of non-point 
source pollution on lakes, rivers, streams, wetlands 
and groundwater resources and to engage 
individuals and communities in projects that will help 
protect and improve water quality in the region. 

- Website 
- Project signage 
- Ice Cream Social 
- CAC-led events like buckthorn removals 

Cities, Townships, 
residents (i.e., lakeshore 
residents or those who 
attend community 
events), students (i.e., 
Stillwater HS students), 
trail users, developers, 
permit applicants and 
their engineering staff. 

Non-profit organizations, 
Health Care system, 
members of the business 
community 

Data Collection / 
Monitoring 

Monitor water quantity (flow) and water quality of 
high priority waterbodies.  

Metropolitan Council, 
MPCA, MNDNR, citizen 
volunteers, Stillwater HS 
– macroinvertebrate 
survey work 

TBD – Is there other 
information that the BCWD 
could collect to achieve 
broader participation (i.e., 
local examples of climate 
change impacts, crowd 
sourcing plants and 
animals)? 

Regulatory 
Program 

BCWD has rules to ensure that development activity 
doesn’t have an adverse impact to surface water and 
groundwater resources. 

Development 
community, member 
communities, 
Washington County, 
state agencies, Design 
and Engineering 
community, residents 

TBD 

Water Quality 
Grants 
Improvement 
Program 

Makes small grants available to landowners wishing 
to make improvements on their properties. BCWD 
provides 50% match grants of up to $2,500 for 
eligible projects. 

Individual homeowners 
– It would be helpful to 
map the location of past 
participants to get a 
sense of who is 
benefitting from this 
program. 

Homeowners who aren’t 
typically applying for this 
water quality 
improvement program. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 108



Community 
Demonstration 
Projects Cost-
Share Program 

To encourage and assist cities, towns, businesses 
and non-profits to integrate water quality 
improvement (retrofit) projects into municipal 
projects. Example is raingarden at Community 
Thread. 

Cities, Townships, 
businesses and non-
profits 

Businesses and non-profits 

Flood 
Management 
Program 

The BCWD’s current approach to flood management 
relies on its regulatory program’s floodplain 
management requirements to ensure no net loss of 
flood storage in the watershed as development and 
redevelopment occurs. Expansion of the District’s 
flood management program should address 
increasing occurrences of flooding (flood 
prevention) as well as flood risk mitigation. Given 
that factors such as climate change and increasing 
groundwater elevations heighten the uncertainty in 
planning and decision-making, the Board should 
consider an adaptive management approach that 
builds in the capacity to iterate and respond to 
future changes in conditions, additional information, 
and experience. 

Cities, Townships, 
Washington County, 
lakeshore residents (i.e., 
property owners along 
Long Lake). 

TBD 

Citizens Advisory 
Committee 

Volunteer advisory board comprised of community 
members. Members are appointed annually by the 
District's Board of Managers. Members serve two-
year terms. Activities include: Newsletter, Annual 
Report, scheduling monthly educational events, 
inventory and volunteer data collection at the 110th 
street property, table-top education materials. 

Residents. 

Residents with other lived 
experiences than those 
who have historically 
participated on the CAC. 

Technical Advisory 
Committee 

Member communities and state agencies convened 
to participate in the 10-year Watershed 
Management Planning process. See description 
below. 

Cities, Townships, 
Washington County, 
state agencies, adjacent 
watershed districts. 

TBD 

10-year 
Watershed 
Management 
Plans 

In 1987, the Legislature directed watershed districts 
and water management organizations in the seven 
county metro area to develop watershed 
management plans to protect water resources. 
Metro cities are also required to develop and 
implement local water management plans. 
Watershed management plans identify the BCWD’s 
activities for the next 10 years. 

CAC, TAC, the public via 
the Public Open House 

People with different life-
experiences to round out 
the plan development 
process and make 
implementation more 
equitable. 

Unique Species 
Inventory 

Inventory of the plant and animal communities 
dependent upon the Brown’s Creek system as well 
as upon the other natural resources in the BCWD 
(see Section 1.4 Biological Environment of the Land 
and Water Resource Inventory (Appendix A) in the 
2017-2026 Watershed Management Plan). 

District Staff, EOR, 
members of the CAC 
including Jyneen 
Thatcher and George 
Vanya 

Residents, students, 
schools, hunting and 
fishing groups, people 
recreating in the 
watershed 

Land Conservation 
Program Management of 110th Street Property CAC TBD 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 109

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/473.121#stat.473.121.2
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/473.121#stat.473.121.2
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/103B.231
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/103B.231


Project Name |  Engagement Handout/Leave-Behind  Date | 12/7/2023 

To / Contact info | BCWD Board of Managers 

Cc / Contact info | Karen Kill, District Administrator 

From / Contact info | Camilla Correll, PE; Karli McCawley 

Regarding | Scope of Services for Educational ‘Leave-Behind’ Flyer 

Background 
BCWD is in the process of putting together an Enhanced Stakeholder Engagement Plan to increase 
public knowledge regarding the functions of the district and engage more people with the work.   

As part of this work in widening the stakeholder base, individuals who may not have any familiarity 
with the district will be contacted, which had identified the need to create a flyer or ‘leave-behind 
document to provide more information.  This document can serve multiple purposes, including being 
provided to potential stakeholders during the Enhanced Stakeholder interviews, as well as being 
made available at events or left in locations (coffee shops, etc.) that the public can take as they like.  

Scope of Services 
Leave-Behind Engagement Flyer 

This task includes the design and development of the ‘leave-behind’ flyer to provide more 
information the watershed district and will include the following types of information: 
 

• About BCWD 
o What is a watershed district? 
o Map of Brown’s Creek 

• District Responsibilities 
• Notable Projects  
• Action to leave them with: 

o Request a Stewardship Grant 
o Join the CAC 
o Participate in the WMP Update 

• Contact Information including placeholder for a link and/or QR code to the WMP Update. 

 

Task Estimated Hours Estimated Cost 
Meeting with Karen Kill to identify content needs. 4 $650 
Develop DRAFT Handout/Leave-Behind 10 $1,436 
Revisions and FINAL Handout/Leave-Behind 2 $ 242 
Printing TBD TBD 

Totals 16 $2,329 

Requested Action 
1. Approve this scope of services in the amount of $2,329 from account number 910-0000. 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 110



Brown's Creek Watershed District 
2024 Budget
12-13-2023

 Estimated 2023 
Carry Forward 

 2024 Grants  2024 Levy   2024 Total Budget  
Change from 2023 to 

2024 

100-2910 Designated Funds - Management Plan Projects 1,003,777$                1,003,777$                 (226,597)$                   

-$                           -$                            

Revenue -$                           -$                            

100-3700 Interest Income -$                           -$                            
100-3601 Metropolitan Council Outlet Monitoring Grant 5,000$                 5,000$                       -$                           
100-3630 Washington County Cost-share Applewood Reuse 66,800$                    66,800$                     -$                           
100-3631 MPCA Small Watershed Grant 2023-2026 320,706$                  320,706$                   1$                              
100-3100 Tax Levy 1,180,803$               1,180,803$                30,388$                     

TOTAL, ESTIMATED Sources of Funding 1,391,283$               5,000$                1,180,803$              2,577,086$                (196,209)$                  

ACCT. # General Expenses
 Estimated 2023 
Carry Forward 

 2023 Grants  2023 Levy   2023 Total Budget  
Change from 2016 to 

2017 

200-4000 Manager Per Diem and Expense 10,000$                    10,000$                     -$                           
200-4220 Secretarial Services 4,000$                      (4,000)$                    -$                          (4,000)$                      
200-4250 Dues & Subscriptions (MAWD 6500 and LMCIT 2500) 9,000$                      9,000$                       2,000$                       
200-4270 Bonding & Insurance 6,000$                      6,000$                       500$                          
200-4280 Postage & Delivery 1,000$                      1,000$                       -$                           
200-4290 Printing & Notices 1,000$                      1,000$                       -$                           
200-4330 Accounting 4,560$                      4,560$                       255$                          
200-4331 Audit 10,300$                    10,300$                     950$                          
200-4949 Misc., Other Expense 2,000$                      2,000$                       -$                           
200-4320 Wash. Conservation District--Admin 58,670$                    58,670$                     3,030$                       
200-4265 Admin Conference Registrations 2,000$                      2,000$                       -$                           
200-4410 Legal Fees - General 25,800$                    25,800$                     1,320$                       
200-4500 Staff Engineer 28,445$                    28,445$                     1,355$                       

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Training 5,000$                      5,000$                       -$                           
Contingency Reserve 50,000$                    -$                         50,000$                     (18,401)$                    

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES: 54,000$                    -$                    159,775$                 213,775$                   (12,992)$                    

ACCT. # MANAGEMENT PLAN EXPENSES
 Estimated 2023 
Carry Forward 

 2023 Grants  2023 Levy   2023 Total Budget  
Change from 2021 to 

2022 

300-4320 Wash. Conservation District--Administrator 176,005$                  176,005$                   5,995$                       
300-4410 Legal Fees - Mgmt Plan 60,000$                    60,000$                     8,000$                       
300-4501 Staff Engineer 90,474$                    90,474$                     4,308$                       
300-4702 Permitting, Legal Review 15,000$                    15,000$                     2,000$                       
300-4703 Permitting, Engineering Review 55,000$                     55,000$                      2,500$                        
300-4704 Permitting, Inspection Database 1,000$                       1,000$                        -$                            
300-4710-1 Baseline Monitoring 5,000$                 136,420$                   141,420$                    (1,795)$                       
300-4640 Equip. Maint. and Upgrades 15,000$                    10,000$                    25,000$                     (2,500)$                      
300-4810 Shared Educator Position 20,500$                    20,500$                     -$                           
300-4950 Management Plan Implementation -future projects -$                         -$                          (20,993)$                    
903-0001 Trout Habitat Preservation Project: Monitoring, 6,500$                      6,500$                       (2,031)$                      
909-0000 Rules Review/Evaluation 27,000$                     3,000$                       30,000$                      2,877$                        
909-0001 Groundwater Dep Nat Resource Inventory update 10,000$                     (10,000)$                   -$                           (10,000)$                     
909-0002 Permitting Program Internal Procedure updates 25,000$                     25,000$                      -$                            
910-0000 Education & Outreach 15,000$                    15,000$                     (1,537)$                      
911-0000 Volunteer Stream Monitoring 4,045$                      4,045$                       89$                            
912-0000 Grant Preparation -$                          (5,000)$                      
914-0000 Homeowner BMP Program 50,000$                    50,000$                     (18,000)$                    
922-0000 Plan Reviews - LGU/LWMP -$                          -$                           
923-0000  H & H Model Maintenance 10,250$                    141,030$                  151,280$                   141,030$                   

923-0002 Flood Risk Assessment 89,316$                     (73,566)$                   15,750$                      (84,250)$                     

927-0000 Management Plan Update 127,000$                   90,000$                     217,000$                    70,000$                      
929-0000 Long Lake Plan Implementation-shoreline management -$                           -$                          -$                           (3,700)$                       
929-0010 Long Lake -Implementation - regional treatmen 75,000$                    (75,000)$                  -$                          (305,550)$                  
929-0011 Long Lake - 62nd Street Pond Retrofit Feasibility 15,000$                    15,000$                     (4,123)$                      
929-0012 Long Lake - Marketplace Reuse Feasibility 164,900$                  60,220$                    225,120$                   58,301$                     
931-0001 Benz Lake Management Plan Implementation 15,500$                    (15,500)$                  -$                          (15,500)$                    

932-0004 Iron Enhanced Sand Filter/Performance Monitoring -$                           -$                            
935-0000 Land Conservation Program 100,000$                  50,000$                    150,000$                   50,000$                     
935-0002      110th Street Property Implementation 48,457$                    25,000$                    73,457$                     25,000$                     
935-0003      Develop Land Conservation Priorities 20,000$                    20,000$                     -$                           
940-0000 BMP Program – LGU/Community Demonstration Projects 10,000$                    10,000$                     -$                           
940-0001 Flood Prevention Grant Program -$                          -$                          -$                           
942-0004 Measuring Trends in GW Elevations & Flow 4,000$                      4,000$                       (10,262)$                    
942-0007 Groundwater - Browns Creek piezometers 8,960$                      8,960$                       -$                           
942-0011 Groundwater - Coordination with users 24,000$                    24,000$                     18,060$                     
942-0012 Groundwater - Install Monitoring Wells 58,000$                    (58,000)$                  -$                          (65,801)$                    
942-0013 Groundwater - Pump Test 15,000$                    (15,000)$                  -$                          (21,300)$                    
947-0011 Countryside Auto BMP-performance monitoring -$                          -$                           
947-0016 Brown's Creek - BC Trails Park Parking Lot Perfm Mon -$                          -$                           
947-0017 Brown's Creek Implementation - Ecoli site visits/cost-share 10,000$                    10,000$                     -$                           
947-0018 Brown's Creek - Biological Survey (Macroinvert & Fish) 4,000$                      4,000$                       (4,810)$                      
947-0022 Brown's Creek - Buffer and Stream Restoration 330,000$                  133,000$                  463,000$                   58,449$                     
947-0023 Brown's Creek - Golf Course Reuse - Oak Glen -$                          -$                          (6,300)$                      
947-0025 Brown's Creek - Golf Course Reuse -  SCC -$                          -$                           
947-0026 Brown's Creek - Brown's Creek Cove Reach 20,000$                    20,000$                     20,000$                     
948-0000 CIP Maintenance 30,900$                    135,000$                  165,900$                   48,300$                     
950-0001 South School Curly Leaf Treatment 1,000$                      (1,000)$                    -$                          (8,000)$                      
950-0002 Lynch Lake Fish/Veg Management -$                          -$                          (4,966)$                      
951-0001 Woodpile Lake Management Plan Implementation 10,000$                    (10,000)$                  -$                          (10,000)$                    
953-0000 Fen Management Plan Implementation -$                          -$                          (4,000)$                      
956-0000 Bass East & West Management Plan -$                          -$                          -$                           
957-0000 Weather Station -$                          3,700$                      3,700$                       -$                           
959-0001 Resource Assessment - upstream 110th/Drone flight -$                          4,700$                      4,700$                       4,700$                       
959-0002 Resource Assessment - Diversion Tribs - Head cut Repairs 60,000$                    (60,000)$                  -$                          (60,000)$                    
959-0003 Resource Assessment - Brown's Creek Gorge Bluff -$                          -$                          (1,798)$                      
960-0000 St Croix Phosphorus Reduction 10,000$                    10,000$                     -$                           
961-0000 Mendel Wetland Restoration Feasiblity 20,000$                     15,000$                     35,000$                      (953)$                          
962-0000 District-Wide Pond Management Planning/Implementation 10,500$                     4,500$                       15,000$                      (19,657)$                     
963-0000 District-Wide Vegetation Surveys 10,000$                    (10,000)$                  -$                          (10,000)$                    
964-0000 District-Wide Chloride Source Assessment 2,500$                      2,500$                       -$                           

TOTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN PROJECT EXPENSES: 1,337,283$               5,000$                1,021,028$              2,363,311$               (183,217)$                  

TOTAL, OPERATING EXP. & MGMT. PLAN PROJECTS: 1,391,283$               5,000$                1,180,803$              2,577,086$               (196,209)$                 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 111



Resolution No. 23-07 
 

BROWN’S CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT BOARD OF MANAGERS 
2024 FINAL BUDGET & CERTIFIED 2024 TAX LEVY RESOLUTION: ALL FUNDS 

 
Manager LeRoux offered the following resolution and moved its adoption, seconded by Manager Wirth. 
 

WHEREAS on September 13, 2023, pursuant to published notice and in conformance with 
Minnesota Statutes § 103D.911, the Brown’s Creek Watershed District Board of Managers held a 
public hearing to receive comments on the District’s 2024 budget and levies; and 

 
WHEREAS public testimony was received on the proposed budget and considered by the 
managers;   
 
WHEREAS at its regular meeting of December 13, 2023, the Board of Managers provided an 
opportunity for public comment on the 2024 Operating and Capital Budget and levies in 
accordance Minnesota Statutes chapter 275 and [no] comments were received. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Brown’s Creek Watershed District 
Board of Managers adopts a 2024 Operating and Capital Budget totaling $2,577,086 as 
follows: 

Management Plan Implementation    $ 2,363,311 
Operations       $    213,775 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the District’s 2024 budget includes a 
2023 carryover and certain non-levy revenues, together totaling $1,396,283, resulting in a levy of 
$1,180,803;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a mill rate sufficient to produce the 
following sums, totaling $1,180,803, be levied upon all taxable property in Brown’s Creek 
Watershed District, Washington County, State of Minnesota, for the year of 2024, and for the 
purposes noted below: 
 
1. General Fund: $159,775 for the purpose of paying the administrative expenses of the 

District as provided by Minnesota Statute §103D.905, subdivision 3; and, 
 

2. Management Planning Fund:  $1,021,028 for the purpose of paying the cost of watershed 
management planning and implementation of specific projects according to the 
Watershed Management Plan, as provided by Minnesota Statutes 103B.241. 

 
The question was on the adoption of the resolution and there were ___ yeas and ___ nays as follows: 

     Yea  Nay  Absent 
ECKLES               
JOHNSON              
LEROUX              
SAHULKA              
WIRTH              
 
Upon vote, the chair declared the resolution adopted. 

 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 112



*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 I, Charles LeRoux, secretary of the Brown’s Creek Watershed District, do hereby certify that I 
have compared the above resolution with the original thereof as the same appears of record and on file 
with the BCWD and find the same to be a true and correct transcript thereof. 
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ____ day of ______________, 
2023. 
 
 
       ______________________________  
       Charles LeRoux, Secretary 
 
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 113



 
You’re Invited! 

Valley Branch Watershed District 
2025 Management Plan Kickoff and Open House 

 

 

 
The Valley Branch Watershed District is updating its Watershed Management Plan 
to set priorities and guide activities for the next 10 years. The Board of Managers 
invite you to participate in this process. Learn what we have heard thus far from 
residents, cities, and partner entities. Share your thoughts and ideas through 
maps and conversations with VBWD Managers and staff. 
 

• What do you want to know about the VBWD? 
 

• What resources are you concerned about? What ideas do you have to 
protect and improve them?  

 
Drop in anytime between 3:00 and 7:00 p.m. to join in conversation and share 
your ideas. 
 

• No registration necessary. 
 

• Light refreshments provided. 

Tuesday, December 12, 2023 
3:00 – 7:00 PM 

Baytown Community Center 
4020 McDonald Driver North 

Stillwater, MN  55082 

Can’t attend? Learn more and 
engage via the VBWD website at: 

www.vbwd.org 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 114

https://www.vbwd.org/newsdetail_T2_R67.php


2023 Strategic 
Plan 

Accomplishments

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 115



Use committee meetings to 
support the board of 

directors, members, and 
event development

Adopted and implemented a 
Communication Plan Monthly review of policies 

and expenditures

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 116



Updated Website

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 117



Legislative Briefing 
and Day at the 

Capitol

Drainage Workshop

Summer Tour at Shell Rock River, 
Cedar River, and Turtle Creek WDs

Welcome returning 
members:

Cormorant Lakes WD
High Island Creek WD

Warroad WD
Mississippi WMO

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 118



BWSR Summer Tour

Monthly meetings with 
BWSR leadership

Clean Water Council Meetings

Increased partnership activities

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 119



Andy Henschel, Shell Rock River WD 
and Tera Guetter, Pelican River WD 
testify in the Senate Environment 
Committee on behalf of the general 

levy increase

Jan Voit, Minnesota 
Watersheds Executive 

Director testifies with bill 
author Senator Bill Weber in 
the Senate Tax Committee on 
behalf of the general levy 

increase

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 120



Adopted a Legislative Coordination and Communication Plan

Implemented a 
Lobbyist Succession Plan

Working with BWSR to update M.S. 
Chapter 103D

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 121



Watershed 
Management 
Workshop at 
the 2023 
Annual 
Conference

2023 Legislative Briefing

Summer Tour 
Education Workshop

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 122



our mission is to support and advocate for leaders in watershed

management and our vision is to establish excellence and innovation in member organizations

mnwatersheds.com

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 123



Project Name |  BCWD Permit Program Date | 12/08/2023 

To / Contact info | BCWD Board of Managers 

Cc / Contact info | Karen Kill, District Administrator 

From / Contact info | John Sarafolean, EOR; Paul Nation, PE / EOR 

Regarding | November Permit Inspection Update 

Background 
BCWD has an on-going permit review process in support of the District Rules.  Developments within 
the District Jurisdictional Boundary are reviewed for compliance with the Rules and conditions of the 
permit. This memo documents inspections from 11/03/2023 through 12/08/2023. 

Inspection of Existing Permits 

Project Name Permit ID Date Grade 

Bond Residence 21-22 11/14/2023 B 

WOS Lot 106 Wiechmann Residence 22-11 11/14/2023 B 

Read Residence 22-17 11/17/2023 B 

Fanberg Residence 22-22 11/14/2023 B 

WOS Lot 109 Benjamin-Mohammed Residence 22-24 11/14/2023 B 

WOS Lot 113 Miller Duis Residence 22-25 11/14/2023 B 

CSAH Phase 2  22-30 11/14/2023 B 

HWY 61  23-01 11/14/2023 B 

WOS Lot 114 Tweden Residence 23-02 11/17/2023 B 

72nd Street Road Improvements 23-08 11/14/2023 B 

WOS lot 122 23-11 11/14/2023 C 

Sandhill Shores 23-13 11/14/2023 C 

12/06/2023 B 

WOS Lot 102 Mensah 23-15 11/14/2023 C 

WOS Lot 124 Penny Lane 23-18 11/14/2023 B 

  
 

BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 124



Active Permit

Conditional Approval

Under Review

BCWD Political Boundary
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 125



Active Permit

Conditional Approval

Under Review

BCWD Political Boundary
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 126



Active Permit

Conditional Approval

Under Review

BCWD Political Boundary
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 127



Active Permit

Conditional Approval

Under Review

BCWD Political Boundary
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 128



Active Permit

Conditional Approval

Under Review

BCWD Political Boundary
BCWD Board Packet 12-13-2023 
Page 129


	2-121323agenda
	4a-110823 Draft Minutes
	4b-Permit Fee Statement Dec 2023
	4c- Lower St Croix 2024 Workplan
	Attach A 2024 Work Plan
	Attach B: 2024 LSC Project Process r
	Attach C: WBIF Proposed Project Evaluation and Approval Process for the Lower St. Croix
Watershed Partnership
	Attach D: Non-Structural Agricultural BMP Policy
	Attach E: Non-Structural Urban BMP Policy
	Attach F: Tree Canopy Assessment Protocol for Enhanced Street Sweeping Prioritization
	Attach G: Lower St. Croix Fast Track Project Policy
	Attach H: Joint Powers Agreement

	4d- CAC application CHASENSKY
	4e-Oak_Glen_Golf_Reuse_O&M_2024
	Background
	Scope
	Task 1: Start-up and Winterization

	5a-Authorized Funds Spreadsheet 12-13-2023
	5bi-Current Items Payable & Deposted 12.13.2023
	Current Items Invoiced 12.13.2023
	Current Items Deposited 12.13.2023

	5bii-Treasurer Report 12-13-2023
	6a-BCWD Permit 23-17 Sundance Townhomes - Engineer Review
	7a2-Browns Creek Restoration - Project Signage Scope
	Background
	Sign Design & Material Scope
	Requested Action

	7b1-Resolution 23-06 Adopting Wash Co All Haz Mitigation Plan
	8a- Management Plan initiation 60-day notice
	8b1-Enhanced Stakeholder Engagement  Next Steps
	BCWD Enhanced Engagement
	Background
	Update
	Next Steps for Conducting the Informal Interviews
	Draft Script and Interview Questions


	8b2-BCWD Engagement Leave Behind Scope
	Background
	Scope of Services
	Requested Action

	9a-2024 Budget
	9b-Resol 23-07 2024 Final Budget and Levy 12-13-2023
	11a1a-VBWD_Kickoff_announcement_11202023
	11a1e-MN Watersheds 2023 Strategic Plan Accomplishments
	11a2-Permit Inspection Update 12-13-2023
	BCWD_Permit_Insp_Update_December2023.pdf
	Background
	Inspection of Existing Permits



	Name: Hallie Chasensky
	Date: 11/16/2023
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box4: Off
	Address 1: 10491 Dellwood Rd N
	Address 2: Stillwater MN 55082
	Email: hchasensky@gmail.com
	Phone Number: 651-895-2330
	Why are you interested in becoming a Citizen Advisor for the Watershed District 1: I care about the health and longevity of this community
	Why are you interested in becoming a Citizen Advisor for the Watershed District 2: I want to find more ways to be involved in conservation issues
	1: Provide personal expertise
	2: Help in any way to support the mission
	3: Learn more about my community and its values
	Strength and Qualifications: 6+ years in non-profit marketing communications industry
	Strength and Qualifications 2: Coordination of educational efforts, programs, events, and more
	needs 1: identifying invasive species
	needs 2: clean up days
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Off


